Table of Contents



Table of Contents

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

M ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
For fiscal year ended: December 31, 2007

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES

EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission file number: 618539

EVANS BANCORP, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

New York 16-1332767
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation oganization) (I.LR.S. Employer Identification No
14-16 North Main Street, Angola, New York 14006
(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)

(716) 926-2000
Registrant’s telephone number (including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(hefAct:

Title of Each Clas Name of Exchange on Which Registe
Common Stock, Par Value $.50 per shar The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghefAct:

None
(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a vielbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405eoB#turities Act. YeRl No M

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®ecl5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act. '
O NoM

Indicate by check mark whether the registranth@g filed all reports required to be filed by Sewtl3 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sslobrter period that the registrant was requirefilésuch reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 dayssi® No [

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiletrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K it oontained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledgealdfinitive proxy or information statements incorgted by reference in Part IIl of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10{H.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated file™ Accelerated fileOd Non-accelerated fileO Smaller reporting compari
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compe
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantseell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExgje Act). Yedd No M

On June 29, 2007, the aggregate market value aktistrant’'s common stock held by non-affiliatessvapproximately $44.6 million, based
upon the closing sale price of a share of the tegiss common stock on The NASDAQ Global Market.

As of March 10, 2008, 2,748,924 shares of the tegi’ s common stock were outstandil
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s Proxy Statement retatb the registrant’s 2008 Annual Meeting of Shalders, to be held on April 24, 2008,
which will be subsequently filed with the Secustiend Exchange Commission within 120 days afteetiteof the fiscal year to which this
Report relates, are incorporated by referenceRatt Il of this Annual Report on Form 10-K whenglicated.
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PART |

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K may contain cerfaimvard-looking statements within the meaning et®n 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and SeQ@ItE of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asratad (the “Exchange Act”), that
involve substantial risks and uncertainties. Wheaduin this report, or in the documents incorpatdte reference herein, the words
“anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “imnd,” “may,” “plan,” “seek,” and similar express®identify such forward-looking statements.
These forward-looking statements include statemmgtarding Evans Bancorp, Inc.’s (“the Company’3ibass plans, prospects, growth and
operating strategies, statements regarding the @sakty of the Company’s loan and investment fodids, and estimates of the Company’s
risks and future costs and benefits.

These forward-looking statements are based laeljre expectations of the Company’s managemenaansdubject to a number of risks and
uncertainties, including but not limited to genezabnomic conditions, either nationally or in then@pbany’s market areas, that are worse than
expected; increased competition among depositoogtar financial institutions; inflation and chasga the interest rate environment that
reduce the Company’s margins or reduce the faurevaf financial instruments; changes in laws orggoment regulations affecting financial
institutions, including changes in regulatory faesl capital requirements; the Company’s abilitgter new markets successfully and
capitalize on growth opportunities; the Companygity to successfully integrate acquired entitielsanges in accounting pronouncements and
practices, as adopted by financial institution tatpry agencies, the Financial Accounting Stand&ualsrd (“FASB”) and the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board; changes in consumendipg, borrowing and saving habits; changes inGbmpany’s organization,
compensation and benefit plans; and other factsrigsed elsewhere in this Report on Form 10-Kyedkas in the Compang’periodic repor
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisstbe (SEC”). Many of these factors are beyond then@any’s control and are difficult to
predict.

Because of these and other uncertainties, the Quyrgactual results, performance or achievementtdadiffer materially from those
contemplated, expressed or implied by the forwankihg statements contained herein. Forward-looktagements speak only as of the date
they are made. The Company undertakes no obligatiqoublicly update or revise forward-looking infeation, whether as a result of new,
updated information, future events or otherwise.

Item 1. BUSINESS
EVANS BANCORP, INC.

Evans Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) is a New Yousimess corporation which is registered as a filmhholding company under the Bank
Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (the “BHEAhe principal offices of the Company are locaaéd4-16 North Main Street,
Angola, New York 14006 and its telephone numbéri) 926-2000. The Company was incorporated oolict28, 1988, but the continuity
of its banking business is traced to the orgaropatif the Evans National Bank of Angola on Jandyy1920. Except as the context otherwise
requires, the Company and its direct and indirabsgliaries are collectively referred to in thigg@e as the “Company.” The Company’s
common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Masdyedtem under the symbol “EVBN.”

At December 31, 2007, the Company had consolidatatiassets of $442.7 million, deposits of $32GiBion and stockholders’ equity of
$43.3 million.

The Companys primary business is the operation of its subs&salt does not engage in any other substantisinless activities. The Comp:
has two direct wholly-owned subsidiaries: Evansitiatl Bank (“Evans National Bank” or the “Bank”)high provides a full range of banking
services to consumer and commercial customers stéffeNew York, and Evans National Financial Sewjdnc. (“ENFS”), which owns
100% of the common stock of ENB Insurance Ageney, (‘ENBI”"), which sells various premium-basedunsnce policies on a commission
basis. At December 31, 2007, the Bank representé&t¥®and ENFS represented 2.8% of the consolidedselts of the Company. Further
discussion of our segments is included in Noteolthé Company’s Consolidated Financial Statememteultem 8 of this Report on Form 10-
K.

Evans National Bank

The Bank is a nationally chartered bank that rmkeadquarters and full-service banking officedaNbrth Main Street, Angola, New York,
and a total of eleven full-service banking offige€rie County and Chautauqua County, New York.
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At December 31, 2007, the Bank had total asse$d8®.2 million, security investments of $72.4 noifij net loans of $319.6 million, deposits
of $325.8 million and stockholders’ equity of $38nllion compared to total assets of $461.5 millisacurity investments of $137.7 million,
net loans of $285.4 million, deposits of $355.7liml and stockholders’ equity of $32.9 million ae@mber 31, 2006. The Bank’s principal
source of funding is deposits, which it reinvestshie community in the form of loans and investraemhe Bank offers deposit products, wt
include checking and NOW accounts, passbook amensemt savings, and certificates of deposit. ThekBadeposits are insured up to the
maximum permitted by the Bank Insurance Fund (theurance Fund”) of the Federal Deposit Insuranag@ration (“FDIC”). The Bank
offers a variety of loan products to its customarsluding commercial and consumer loans and coroialesind residential mortgage loans.

As is the case with banking institutions generdty, Bank’s operations are significantly influendsdgeneral economic conditions and by
related monetary and fiscal policies of bankingutatpry agencies, including the Federal Reserve®¢&RB”) and FDIC. The Bank is also
subject to the supervision, regulation and exarionaif the Office of the Comptroller of the Currgnaf the United States of America (the
“OCC").

Other Subsidiaries
In addition to the Bank, the Company has the foilgadirect and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries:

Evans National Leasing, Inc(“Evans National Leasing” or “ENL"). ENL, a whollgwned subsidiary of the Bank, provides direct firiag
leasing of commercial small-ticket general busiregpsipment to companies located throughout theigwotis 48 United States.

Evans National Holding Corp.(“ENHC"). ENHC was incorporated in February 2008das a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank. ENHC
operates as a real estate investment trust (“REREY) holds commercial real estate loans and regalenortgages, which provides additional
flexibility and planning opportunities for the bosss of the Bank.

Evans National Financial Services, Inc(“Evans National Financial Services” or “ENFS”). EN is located at One Grimsby Drive, Hamburg,
New York. It was incorporated in September 2004, iare. wholl--owned subsidiary of the Company. ENFS’s primargibess is to own the
business and assets of the Company’s non-bankiagdial services segment subsidiaries.

ENB Insurance Agency, Inc.(“ENB Insurance Agency” or “ENBI”). ENBI, a whollpwned subsidiary of ENFS, is an insurance agendgh
sells various premium-based insurance policies conamission basis, including business and perdosatance, surety bonds, risk
management, life, disability and long-term carearage. ENBI has offices located in Erie, Niagafaa@auqua, and Cattaraugus Counties in
New York.

ENB Associates Inc(“ENB Associates” or “ENB”). ENB, a wholly-owned bsidiary of ENBI, offers nomleposit investment products, suc
annuities and mutual funds.

Frontier Claims Services, Inc.(“FCS”). FCS is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ENBidaprovides claims adjusting services to various
insurance companies.

The Company also has two special purpose entifiesns Capital Trust |, a statutory trust formedSaptember 29, 2004 under the Statutory
Trust Act, solely for the purpose of issuing anllirsg certain securities representing undivideddfeial interests in the assets of the trust,
investing the proceeds thereof in certain debestafé¢he Company and engaging in those activiteeegasary, advisable or incidental thereto;
and ENB Employers Insurance Trust, a Delaware tostpany formed in February 2003 for the sole psepaf holding life insurance policies
under the Bank'’s bank-owned life insurance program.

The Company operates in two reportable segmenémkifg activities and insurance agency activitgee Note 17 to the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements included unéen B of this Report on Form 10-K for more inforrmaton the Company’s reportable
segments.

MARKET AREA

The Company’s primary market area is Erie Counfggra County, northern Chautauqua County and western Cattaraugus County, New
York. This primary market area is the area wheeeBhnk principally receives deposits and makesd@emd ENBI sells insurance. Even tho
ENL conducts business outside of this defined ntaakea, this activity is not deemed to expand tbm@any’s primary market.
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AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION

The table presents the significant categories @fffsets and liabilities of the Bank, interest ime@nd interest expense, and the corresponding
yields earned and rates paid in 2007, 2006 and.Z0@5assets and liabilities are presented as dadyages. The average loan balances in
both performing and non-performing loans. Intemsbme on loans does not include interest on Iéanehich the Bank has ceased to accrue
interest. Securities are stated at fair value réstieand yield are not presented on a tax-equitakesis.

2007 2006 2005
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
(dollars in thousand: (dollars in thousands (dollars in thousands
Assets
Interes-earning asset:
Loans and leases, r $ 297,90! $ 23,91¢ 8.03% $ 268,53t $ 20,40t 7.6(% $ 236,75¢ $ 16,23¢ 6.8€%
Taxable securitie 68,45! 2,91¢ 4.2€¢% 104,36¢ 4,20¢ 4.03% 124,77. 4,66 3.7%%
Tax-exempt securitie 38,92: 1,68: 4.32% 44,04 1,881 4.21% 45,75 1,93¢ 4.23%
Time deposit-other bank: — — —% — — —% 21t 3 1.4(%
Federal funds sol 6,44¢ 317 4.92% 1,097 49 4.47% 4,46: 118 2.52%
Total interes-earning asse! 411,72¢ 28,83" 7.00% 418,04 26,54« 6.35% 411,95¢ 22,94¢ 5.51%
Non interes-earning asset:
Cash and due from ban 11,45¢ 12,06¢ 11,18
Premises and equipment, | 8,56¢ 8,19/ 8,21¢
Other asset 29,56¢ 29,02: 26,16(
Total Assets $ 461,31 $ 467,32¢ $ 457,51«
Liabilities & Stockholders’ Equity
Interes-bearing liabilities
NOW $ 11,01« 33 0.3(% $ 11,767 22 0.1%% $ 11,97¢ 22 0.1¢%
Regular savings depos 88,68! 1,061 1.2(% 88,52: 92€ 1.05% 94,84 804 0.85%
Muni-vest saving: 39,84( 1,69¢ 4.2¢% 36,30: 1,55( 4.27% 51,30( 1,45¢ 2.8™%
Time depositt 149,57¢ 7,264 4.8€% 151,53( 6,481 4.28% 126,94! 3,961 3.12%
Other borrowed fund 29,65¢ 1,164 3.9% 46,30 1,80( 3.8% 49,93¢ 1,61¢ 3.23%
Junior subordinated debentu 11,33( 891 7.86% 11,33( 85C 7.5(% 11,33( 662 5.8%%
Securities sold under
agreement to repurcha 6,694 53 0.7$% 8,49: 68 0.8(% 6,461 50 0.77%
Total interes-bearing liabilities 336,79t 12,16: 3.61% 354,24 11,69: 3.3(% 352,79¢ 8,56¢ 2.4%
Non interes-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposit 73,577 67,04¢ 62,18¢
Other 9,60¢ 8,15: 6,41¢
Total liabilities 419,98: 429,44¢ 421,40:
Stockholder’ equity 41,33t 37,88:¢ 36,11:
Total Liabilities & Equity $ 461,31 $ 467,32¢ $ 457,51
Net interest earning $ 16,67¢ $ 14,847 $ 14,37:
Net yield on interest earning ass 4.05% 3.55% 3.4%%
Interest rate spree 3.3% 3.05% 3.14%

SECURITIES ACTIVITIES

The primary objective of the Barksecurities portfolio is to provide liquidity whipreserving safety of principal. Secondary obyestinclude
the investment of funds during periods of decredsad demand, interest rate sensitivity considenati providing collateral to secure local
municipal deposits, supporting local communitie®tigh the purchase of tax-exempt securities anglanning considerations. The Bank’s
Board of Directors is responsible for establishiwgrall policy and reviewing performance of the Barinvestments.

Under the Bank'’s policy, acceptable portfolio invesnts include: United States (“U.S.”) Governmeligations, obligations of federal
agencies or U.S. Government-sponsored enterprisa$gage backed securities, municipal
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obligations (general obligations, revenue obligaicschool districts and non-rated issues fronBtrgk’'s general market area), banker’s
acceptances, certificates of deposit, Industrialdb@pment Authority Bonds, Public Housing AuthorBpnds, corporate bonds (each
corporation limited to the Bank’s legal lending tijncollateralized mortgage obligations, Federak&ve stock and Federal Home Loan Bank
stock.

The Bank’s general investment policy is that intestecurities must be rated at least Moody’s Baadaivalent) at the time of purchase. Out-
of-state issues must be rated at least Moody’soAaduivalent) at the time of purchase. Bonds oustes rated below A are reviewed
periodically to assure their continued credit wiméiss. While purchase of non-rated municipal séiesris permitted, such purchases are
limited to bonds issued by municipalities in thenBa general market area which, in the Bank’s judgimpossess no greater credit risk than
Baa (or equivalent) bonds. The financial statemehfthe issuers of non-rated securities are revielyethe Bank and a credit file of the issuers
is kept on each non-rated municipal security wétlevant financial information. In addition, the B&mloan policy permits the purchase of
notes issued by various states and municipalitlisiwhave not been rated by Moody’s or Standarc&rR. The securities portfolio of the
Bank is priced on a monthly basis.

Pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Saash@'SFAS”) No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Intagents in Debt and Equity
Securities,” which establishes accounting treatmf@ninvestments in securities, all securitieshia Bank’s investment portfolio are either
designated as “held to maturity” or “available ade.”

Income from securities held in the Bank’s investinmrtfolio represented approximately 16.0% of kaiterest income of the Company in
2007 as compared to 22.9% in 2006 and 28.8% in.280Becember 31, 2007, the Bank’s securities pbdfof $72.4 million consisted
primarily of U.S. and federal agency obligatiorntates and municipal securities and mortgage-bacgedrgies, including collateralized
mortgage obligations (“CMQ’s"), issued by the Fedétational Mortgage Association (“FNMA”) and FedeHome Loan Mortgage Corp
(“FHLMC"). The decrease in the securities portfdiiom December 31, 2006 is a result of the Compastrategy to restructure its balance
sheet. The Company sold $45 million in securitiedune 2007 while allowing other securities to matdManagement has the intent and ability
to hold its investment securities until maturityoré2spondingly, the Company allowed certain mumicipne deposits to roll off and priced
down its muni-vest savings account with certain-nore municipal customers that resulted in the tdgbose muni-vest accounts.

Available for sale securities with a total fair walof $65.8 million at December 31, 2007 were péetigs collateral to secure public deposits
and for other purposes required or permitted by law

The following table summarizes the Bank’s secsitigth those designated as “available for saletiedlat fair value and securities designated
as “held to maturity” valued at amortized cost BBecember 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

2007 2006 2005
(in thousands

Available for Sale:
Debt securitie:

U.S. government agenci $14,18¢ $ 30,89 $ 36,60
States and political subdivisio 35,65¢ 38,43¢ 42,46
Total debt securitie $49,84" $ 69,32¢ $ 79,067
Mortgage-backed securitie
FNMA $ 8,13t $ 30,16¢ $ 35,56¢
FHLMC 7,06: 8,44¢ 10,747
GNMA — 1,044 1,33¢
CMO'’s 1,58i 20,62¢ 24,50¢
Total mortgag-backed securitie $16,78¢ $ 60,28¢ $ 72,15¢
FRB and Federal Home Loan Bank St 3,512 3,901 4,38¢
Total securities designated as available for $70,14¢ $133,51¢ $155,61(
Held to Maturity:
U.S. government agenci $ 35 $ 35 $ 35
States and political subdivisio 2,231 4,17¢ 4,307
Total securities designated as held to matt $ 2,26¢ $ 4,211 $ 4,34:
Total securitie: $72,41( $137,73( $159,95:.
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The following table sets forth the contractual misies and weighted average interest yields ofBhek’s securities portfolio (yields on tax-
exempt obligations are not presented on a tax-etpnv basis) as of December 31, 2007:

Maturing
Within After One But After Five But After
One Year Within Five Years Within Ten Years Ten Years
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield

(dollars in thousand:
Available for Sale:
Debt Securities
U.S. governmer

agencies $ 7,33¢ 34(% $ 4,852 42% $ — — $ 2,00C 7.4(%
States and politice
subdivisions 1,53¢ 4.91% 14,88( 4.4% 17,42; 4.62% 1,821 4.7¢%
Total debt securitie $ 8,87( 3.66%  $19,73: 442%  $17,42; 463% $ 3,821 6.15%
Mortgage-backed Securitie
FNMA $ — — $ 93E 502% $ 1,197 5.0 $ 6,00¢ 5.25%
FHLMC 1,99¢ 3.25% 2,32¢ 3.96% 1,541 4.9(% 1,197 5.65%
CMO's — — 232 4.25% — — 1,35¢ 4.47%
Total mortgag-backec
securities $ 1,99¢ — $ 3,49¢ 42¢% $ 2,73¢ 49%% $ 8,55¢ 5.18%
Total available for sal $10,86¢ 3.58%  $23,22¢ 44%  $20,16: 467%  $12,37: 5.48%
Held to Maturity:
U.S. government agenci $ — — $ — — $ 35 — $ — —
States and politice
subdivisions $ 1ve 4.44% 82¢ 3.81% 47€ 4.56% 754 3.7(%
Total held to maturit $ 1ve 4.44% 82¢ 3.81% 511 4.24% 754 3.7(%
Total securitie: $11,03¢ 3.6(%  $24,05¢ 43t%  $20,67: 4.6€% 13,13! 5.38%

LENDING AND LEASING ACTIVITIES

General. The Bank has a loan and lease policy, which indwdan and lease loss allowance policy, whiapoved by its Board of
Directors on an annual basis. The loan and lealsgymmverns the conditions under which loans aabkés may be made, addresses the lendin
authorities of Bank officers, charge off policiedalesired portfolio mix.

The Bank offers a variety of loan and lease pragltecits customers, including residential and comwiaéreal estate mortgage loans,
commercial loans, direct financing leases, andillment loans. The Bank primarily extends loansustomers located within the Western N
York area, except for direct financing leases, Wwtdee originated in all 48 contiguous states. Bgeincome on loans and leases represented
approximately 82.9% of the total interest incoméhaf Company in 2007 and approximately 76.9% and%®f total interest income in 2006
and 2005, respectively. The Bank’s loan and leastqbio, after unearned discounts, loan originatémsts and allowances for loan and lease
losses, totaled $319.6 million and $285.4 milliomacember 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respctAt December 31, 2007, the Bank
had a $4.6 million allowance for loan losses whghpproximately 1.41% of total loans and leaséss Tompares with approximately

$3.7 million at December 31, 2006 which was apprately 1.29% of total loans and leases. The inereathe allowance for loan and lease
losses of $0.9 million in 2007 reflects managenseassessment of the portfolio composition, of whiither risk commercial real estate loans
comprise a significant component, the increasdgifdr risk leases and its assessment of the New State and local economy. The net loan
portfolio represented approximately 72.2% and 60a2%he Company’s total assets at December 31, a6@7December 31, 2006,
respectively.

Real Estate LoansApproximately 73.3% of the Bank’s loan and leassefpbo at December 31, 2007 consisted of realtedtzans or loans
collateralized by mortgages on real estate, inalgidésidential mortgages, commercial mortgageso#imel types of real estate loans, compared
to 76.1% at December 31, 2006. The Bank’s reateettan portfolio was $237.5 million at December 2007, compared to $220.0 million at
December 31, 2006. The real estate loan portfoticsiased approximately 8.0% in 2007 over 2006 coeabt an increase of 5.2% in 2006
over 2005.

The Bank offers fixed rate residential mortgagenowith terms of 10 to 30 years with, typically, topan 80% loan-to-value ratio. Fixed rate
residential mortgage loans outstanding totaled366llion at December 31, 2007, which was approxetyal?7.4% of total loans outstanding.
In 1995, the Bank entered into a contractual aearent with FNMA, pursuant to which the Bank sellsrigage loans to FNMA and the Bank
retains the servicing rights as to those loans.
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In 2007, the Bank sold approximately $2.9 milliomnortgages to FNMA under this arrangement, conthtr&2.6 million in mortgages sold

in 2006. The Bank currently retains the serviciigits on $28.4 million in mortgages sold by the BeamFNMA. The Company has recorded a
net servicing asset for such loans of approxim&#élg million at December 31, 2007. The Bank deteeswith each origination of a
residential real estate loan which desired maag;tivithin the context of overall maturities in {ban portfolio, provide the appropriate mix to
optimize the Bank’s ability to absorb the corregfing interest rate risk within the Bank’s toleramaages.

Since 1993, the Bank has offered adjustable raidestial mortgage loans with terms of up to 30rgeRates on these mortgage loans remain
fixed for a predetermined time and are adjustediainthereafter. On December 31, 2007, the Baakistanding adjustable rate residential
mortgage loans were $12.1 million or 3.7% as coexbao $8.7 million or 3.0% of total loans at Decem®1, 2006. This balance did not
include any construction mortgage loans, whichdiseussed below.

The Bank also offers commercial mortgage loans wjitho an 80% loan-to-value ratio for up to 20 geam a variable and fixed rate basis.
Many of these mortgage loans either mature or@gst to a rate call after three to five yearse Bank’s outstanding commercial mortgage
loans were $131.1 million at December 31, 2007 civlwas approximately 41.0% of total loans outstagdr his balance included

$37.3 million in fixed rate and $93.8 million inn@ble rate mortgage loans, which include interas calls.

The Bank also offers other types of loans collditezd by real estate such as home equity loans BEmk offers home equity loans at variable
and fixed interest rates with terms of up to 15ryeand up to an 80% loan-to-value ratio. At Decen®ie 2007, the real estate loan portfolio
included $26.4 million of home equity loans outstiaig, which represented approximately 8.1% ofataltloans outstanding. This balance
included $16.9 million in variable rate and $9.9lion in fixed rate loans.

The Bank does not have any sub-prime or Alt-A megts in its portfolio at December 31, 2007.

The Bank also offers both residential and commeéret estate construction loans at up to an 8CG#0-to-value ratio at fixed interest or
adjustable interest rates and multiple maturité€December 31, 2007, fixed rate real estate canogtn loans outstanding were $0.6 millior
0.2% of the Bank’s loan portfolio, and adjustalaterconstruction loans outstanding were $10.9aniltr 3.3% of the portfolio.

As of December 31, 2007, approximately $4.3 millaorl.8% of the Bank’s real estate loans were 3tdays delinquent, and approximately
$0.1 million or 0.1% of real estate loans were aonruing. The Bank also had one real estate laad0f@ million or 0.1% of real estate loans
that was over 90 days past due and still accruing.

Commercial Loans. The Bank offers commercial loans on a secureduasdcured basis, including lines of credit anthtkrans at fixed and
variable interest rates and multiple maturitiese Bank’s commercial loan portfolio totaled $34.8liom and $29.6 million at December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively. Commercial loans sspreed approximately 10.7% and 10.2% of the Batdtal loans at December 31, 2007
2006, respectively.

As of December 31, 2007, approximately $149 thodsarD.4% of the Bank’s commercial loans were 30Gaays past due and $0.2 million
or 0.6% of its commercial loans were non-accruthg,latter due primarily to one borrower.

Commercial lending entails significantly more riblan real estate loans. Collateral, where applé&abhy consist of inventory, receivables,
equipment and other business assets. Approximéie8¢b of the Bank’s commercial loans are at vaeiabtes which are tied to the prime rate.

Installment Loans . The Bank’s consumer installment loan portfolitated $2.1 million and $3.1 million at December 30207 and 2006,
respectively, representing approximately 0.6% efBlank’s total loans at December 31, 2007 and Dbfifde Bank’s total loans at

December 31, 2006. Traditional installment loaresaifered at fixed interest rates with various méigs of up to 60 months, on a secured and
unsecured basis. As of December 31, 2007, appréaiyn®36 thousand or 1.7% of the Bank’s installmeans were 30 to 90 days past due.

Direct Financing LeasesDirect financing leases totaled $45.1 million a8l ¥ million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, re$palgt
representing approximately 13.9% and 11.0% of taekis total loans at December 31, 2007 and 20Gpectively. As of December 31, 2007,
approximately $0.3 million or 0.7% of the Bank’setit financing leases were 30-90 days past due.
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The Bank’s lending limit to any one borrower is gab to regulation by the OCC. The Bank continuafignitors its loan portfolio to review

compliance with new and existing regulations.

The following table summarizes the major classifaas of the Bank’s loans and leases (net of defeorigination costs) as of the dates

indicated.

Mortgage loans on real esta
Residential -4 family
Commercial and mu-family
Constructior
Second mortgage
Home equity lines of cred

Total mortgage loans on real est
Direct financing lease
Commercial loan

Consumer loan

Other

Net deferred loan and lease origination c

Total loans and leas:

Allowance for loan and lease loss

Loans and leases, r

December 31,

2007

$ 68,55¢
131,14¢
11,44¢
9,457
16,92¢
237,52
45,07¢
34,56
2,08:
3,98¢
881
324,11

(4,555)
$319,55¢

2006

$ 57,70:
123,70:
11,84¢
8,62¢
18,14%
220,02
31,74
29,58¢
3,101
3,991
654
289,10¢

(3,739
$285,36°

2005
(in thousands

$ 48,58(
123,72
9,27(
6,45/
21,08:
209,11
16,94¢
29,92(
2,741
642

654
260,02:

(3,211)
$256,81(

2004

$ 38,49
107,39:
8,18¢
5,71¢
22,10¢
181,89¢
4,54¢
28,76
2,832
1,97:
59C
220,59¢

(2,999
$217,59¢

2003

$ 30,16(
99,68
5,09(
6,27
18,26:
159,47(

188,06°

(2,539
$185,52¢

Loan Maturities and Sensitivities of Loans in Intelest Rates The following table shows the maturities of comoied and real estate
construction loans outstanding as of December @27 2nd the classification of such loans due afiteryear according to sensitivity to

changes in interest rates.

Commercial
Real estate constructic

Loans maturing after one year wi
Fixed Rate:
Variable Rate!

11

After One But

Within Five After Five
Years Years
(in thousands
$ 13,99¢ $18,24¢
5,057 1,25¢
$ 19,05t $19,50!
$ 10,55¢ $ 2,50z
8,491 16,99¢
$ 19,05 $19,50!




Table of Contents

Non-accrual, Past Due and Restructured Loans and lases. The following table summarizes the Bank’s nonraatand accruing loans and
leases 90 days or more past due as of the datss tislow. The Bank had no restructured loansasds as of those dates. Any loans classified
for regulatory purposes as loss, doubtful, substahdr special mention that have not been discldseabt represent or result from trends or
uncertainties which management reasonably expatitsiaterially impact the Compang’future operating results, liquidity or capitadoerces
See Part Il, Item 7 of this Report on Form 10-K divdgement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financialdt@n and Results of Operations —
Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses,” for furthdormation about the Company’s non-accrual, pastahd restructured loans and leases.

At December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(in thousands

Non-accruing loans and least
Mortgage loans on real esta

Residential -4 family $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 3C
Commercial and mu-family 112 14& 60C 27¢ 17¢€
Constructior — — — — —
Second mortgage — — — — 50
Home Equity lines of cred — — — — —
Total mortgage loans on real est 112 14& 60C 27¢ 25¢€
Direct financing lease 21k — — 2 —
Commercial loan: 224 44: 1,17¢ 1,37¢ 40
Consumer installment loans Ot — — — — —
Total nor-accruing loans and leas $ 551 $ 58¢ $ 1,77 $ 1,65t $ 29€
Accruing loans and leases 90+ days past 163 74 95 151 627
Total nor-performing loans and leas $ 714 $ 662 $ 1,87(C $ 1,80¢ $ 92:
Total nor-performing loans and leases to total as 0.16% 0.15% 0.41% 0.42% 0.27%
Total non-performing loans and leases to total $ceamd
leases 0.22% 0.23% 0.72% 0.82% 0.4%

The following table summarizes the Bank’s allowafardoan and lease losses and changes in the atlosvfor loan and lease losses by
categories:
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ANALYSIS OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(in thousands
BALANCE AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR $ 3,73¢ $ 3,211 $ 2,99¢ $ 2,53¢ $ 2,14¢
CHARGE-OFFS:
Commercial (159) (212) (417) (200) (59
Real estate mortgag (5) — (25) (6) (30
Direct financing lease (2,04¢) (500 (2098 — —
Installment loan: @) (44) (86) 9 (172)
Overdrafted deposit accour (58 (42 (39 — —
TOTAL CHARGE-OFFS (1,277) (79¢) (675) (215 (95
RECOVERIES:
Commercial 26 53 — 48 7
Real estate mortgag — — 40 8 —
Direct financing lease 10t 62 56 — —
Installment loan: 18 63 11 4 1
Overdrafted deposit accour 21 20 11 — —
TOTAL RECOVERIES 17C 19¢ 11€ 60 8
NET CHARGE-OFFS (2,107 (600) (557) (155) (87)
PROVISION FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSE 1,917 1,12¢ 76¢ 48~ 48C
ADDITION OF ALLOWANCE FROM ACQUISITION — — — 13C —
BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 4,55¢ $ 3,73¢ $ 3,211 $ 2,99¢ $ 2,53¢
RATIO OF NET CHARGE-OFFS TO AVERAGE NET
LOANS AND LEASES OUTSTANDING 0.37% 0.22% 0.23% 0.0¢% 0.05%

The increase in the allowance for loan and leassel®reflects the continued growth in higher riskimercial loans and direct financing leases,
the downgrade of a small number of individual lgaared management’s assessment of the local anddekvState economic environment.
Both the local and New York State economies haggdd behind national economic growth in recentgddarginal job growth, combined
with a declining population base, has left the Baupkimary market more susceptible to potentiatdrproblems. This is particularly true of
commercial borrowers. Recent national economiccfasts indicate a likelihood of slowed economic glgwvith an increasing chance of a
recession. Much of the economic turmoil in the ovadl economy is due to the sub-prime mortgage teedes. As the Company has no
exposure to sub-prime lending, and the local re@te market has not experienced the same higls lefzappreciation seen in high-growth
parts of the country, the faltering sub-prime drearket has not affected the Company’s loan aaskl@ortfolio and local real estate values
have remained steady to slightly higher. Howevemagement is closely monitoring the loan and Ipastolio for potential losses and
heightened risk factors with customers. The Compaaintains a robust loan review process to en$iatespecific credits are appropriately
reserved. In particular, management is monitoriregléasing portfolio for signs of weakness in aendrallenging economic environment.
Also, management is cognizant that commercial@stte values may be susceptible to decline irdaarse economy. Management believes
that the provision for loan and lease losses Isc8¥e of its assessment of the local environmaatyell as the continued trend in commercial
loan activity and balances outstanding.

SOURCES OF FUNDS - DEPOSITS

General. Customer deposits represent the primary sourdeeoBank’s funds for lending and other investmemppses. In addition to deposits,
other sources of funds include loan and lease rapais, loan sales on the secondary market, intenelstlividend income from investments,
matured investments, and borrowings from the Fédtrme Loan Bank (“FHLB”) and from correspondenhka First Tennessee Bank and
M&T Bank.
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Deposits. The Bank offers a variety of deposit products|uding checking, passbook, statement savings, N@¥dunts, certificates of depc
and jumbo certificates of deposit. Bank depositthefBank are insured up to the limits providedtey FDIC. At December 31, 2007, the
Bank’s deposits totaled $325.8 million consistirfighe following:

(In thousand:
Demand deposit $ 69,26¢
NOW account: 10,14:
Regular saving 92,86¢
Muni-vest saving: 24,53(
Time deposits, $100,000 and o 51,12¢
Other time deposit 77,89¢
Total $ 325,82

The following table shows daily average deposits average rates paid on significant deposit categdry the Bank (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006 2005
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate

Demand deposil $ 73,571 0.0(% $ 67,04¢ 0.0(% $ 62,18¢ 0.0(%
NOW account: 11,01« 0.3(% 11,767 0.1<% 11,97¢ 0.1&%
Regular Saving 88,68t 1.2(% 88,52: 1.05% 94,841 0.85%
Muni-vest saving: 39,84( 4.2¢% 36,30: 4.2% 51,30( 2.8%
Time deposit: 149,57¢ 4.8€% 151,53( 4.2&% 126,94! 3.12%
Total $362,69: 2.71% $355,16¢ 2.5% $347,24¢ 1.8(%

The following schedule sets forth the maturitieshaf Bank’s time deposits as of December 31, 2007:

Time Deposit Maturity Schedule
(in thousands)

0-3 3-6 6-12 Over 12

Mos. Mos. Mos. Mos. Total
Time deposit— $100,000 and ove $14,67: $ 5,20 $14,49: $16,76( $ 51,12¢
Other time deposit 20,81« 19,10¢/ 21,49¢ 16,48¢ 77,89¢
Total time deposit $35,48¢ $24,30¢ $35,98¢ $ 33,24+ $129,02¢

Federal Funds Purchased and Other Borrowed FundsAnother source of the Bank’s funds for lending &maksting activities at
December 31, 2007 consisted of short and long lemmowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank.

Other borrowed funds consisted primarily of variaglwances from the Federal Home Loan Bank with bigéld and variable interest rate te
ranging from 3.02% to 3.61%. The maturities andglvesd average rates of other borrowed funds atmkee31, 2007 are as follows (dollars
in thousands):
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Weighted
Average
Maturities Rate

2008 $ 33,98( 3.62%
2009 92C 4.9%
2010 112 6.0(%
2011 69 6.0(%
2012 — —
Thereaftel 13,00( 3.4€%
Total $ 48,081 3.5%%

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchas&€he Bank enters into agreements with depositosglido the depositors securities owned
by the Bank and repurchase the identical secugégerally within one day. No physical movementhaf securities is involved. The depositc
informed that the securities are held in safekegpinthe Bank on behalf of the depositor. Secwisield under agreements to repurchase
totaled $3.8 million at December 31, 2007 compa&oe$9.0 million at December 31, 2006.

MARKET RISK

For information about, and a discussion of, the Gany’s “Market Risk,” see Part I, ltem 7 “Managemtie Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations — kdaRisk” of this Report on Form 10-K.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

In the course of its business, the Bank has aatjainel may acquire in the future, property seculdags that are in default. There is a risk that
the Bank could be required to investigate and elgahazardous or toxic substances or chemicalgeteat such properties after acquisition by
the Bank in a foreclosure action, and that the Baal be held liable to a governmental entity orctiparties for property damage, personal
injury and investigation and clean-up costs inaditsg such parties in connection with such contationaln addition, the owner or former
owners of contaminated sites may be subject to comlaw claims by third parties based on damagesasitd resulting from environmental
contamination emanating from such property.

To date, the Bank has not been required to perforyinvestigation or clean-up activities, nor haseien subject to any environmental claims.
There can be no assurance, however, that thigemilkin the case in the future.

COMPETITION

All phases of the Company’s business are highlypstitive. The Company competes actively with locadjional and national financial
institutions, as well as with bank branches oriiasae agency offices in the Company’s market af&aie County, Niagara County, northern
Chautauqua County, and northwestern CattaraugustZddew York. These Western New York counties havegh density of financial
institutions, many of which are significantly largend have greater financial resources than thepaagn The Company faces competition for
loans, direct financing leases and deposits frdrerotommercial banks, savings banks, savings amddesociations, mortgage banking
companies, credit unions, insurance companies et inancial services companies. The Companysfadelitional competition for deposits
and insurance business from non-depository congpetiiuch as the mutual fund industry, securitiestankerage firms, and insurance
companies and brokerages. The Company attemptsgderterally competitive with all financial institits in its service area with respect to
interest rates paid on time and savings depositgice charges on deposit accounts, and intereest charged on loans and leases.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

Bank holding companies and banks are extensivelylaged under both federal and state laws and agguok that are intended to protect
depositors. To the extent that the following infation describes statutory and regulatory provisidris qualified in its entirety by reference
the particular statutory and regulatory provisiolisy change in the applicable law or regulationaahange in the way such laws or
regulations are interpreted by regulatory agenaieurts, may have a material adverse effect etCibmpany’s business, financial condition
and results of operations.
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Bank Holding Company Regulation (BHCA)

As a financial holding company registered underBRECA, the Company and its non-banking subsidiaaiessubject to regulation and
supervision under the BHCA by the FRB. The FRB nexguperiodic reports from the Company, and is atled by the BHCA to make regu
examinations of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Company is required to obtain the prior appro¥¢he FRB before acquiring direct or indirectrmsvship or control of more than 5% of the
voting shares of a bank or bank holding companyg FRB will not approve any acquisition, merger ensolidation that would have a
substantial anti-competitive result, unless théemtpetitive effects of the proposed transactimnautweighed by a greater public interest in
meeting the needs and convenience of the public.

The FRB also considers managerial, capital and ditm@ncial factors in acting on acquisition or mer applications. A bank holding company
may not engage in, or acquire direct or indirecttoa of more than 5% of the voting shares of aognpany engaged in any non-banking
activity, unless such activity has been determimgthe FRB to be closely related to banking or ngam@abanks. The FRB has identified by
regulation various non-banking activities in whechank holding company may engage with noticertprior approval by, the FRB.

The FRB has enforcement powers over financial hgldompanies and their subsidiaries, among otlmgghto interdict activities that
represent unsafe or unsound practices or constitoligtions of law, rule, regulation, administragierders, or written agreements with a federal
bank regulator. These powers may be exercisedghrthe issuance of cease and desist orders, aribtary penalties or other actions.

Bank holding companies and their subsidiary bam&satso subject to the provisions of the CommuRi#gnvestment Act (“CRA”). Under the
terms of the CRA, the FRB (or other appropriatekbra@gulatory agency, in the case of the Bank, tR&€Dis required, in connection with its
examination of a bank, to assess such bank’s resomteting the credit needs of the communitiegseskby that bank, including low- and
moderate-income neighborhoods. Furthermore, sis#sasent is taken into account in evaluating aplicgtion made by a bank holding
company or a bank for, among other things, approf/albranch or other deposit facility, office reddion, a merger or an acquisition of bank
shares.

Supervision and Regulation of Bank Subsidiaries

The Bank is a nationally chartered banking corponasubject to supervision, examination and regutadf the FRB, the FDIC and the OCC.
These regulators have the power to enjoin “unsafemeound practices,” require affirmative actiorceorect any conditions resulting from any
violation or practice, issue an administrative orth@t can be judicially enforced, direct an insean capital, restrict the growth of a bank,
assess civil monetary penalties, and remove a banffiters and directors.

The operations of the Bank are subject to numestatsites and regulations. Such statutes and reagndaelate to required reserves against
deposits, investments, loans, mergers and consiolidaissuance of securities, payment of divideedtablishment of branches, and other
aspects of the Bank’s operations. Various consuawes and regulations also affect the operatiorth@Bank, including state usury laws, laws
relating to fiduciaries, consumer credit and equeadlit, fair credit reporting, and privacy of noaktic financial information.

The Bank is subject to Sections 23A and 23B ofRtbderal Reserve Act and Regulation W thereundeichadovern certain transactions, such
as loans, extensions of credit, investments anchaises of assets between member banks and thiatedf including their parent holding
companies. These restrictions limit the transfemfits subsidiaries, including the Bank, of funddite Company in the form of loans,
extensions of credit, investments or purchasess#ta (collectively, “Transfers”), and they requirat the Bank’s transactions with the
Company be on terms no less favorable to the Blaask tomparable transactions between the Bank amtated third parties. Transfers by the
Bank to the Company are limited in amount to 10%hefBanks capital and surplus, and transfers to all afésaare limited in the aggregate
20% of the Banls capital and surplus. Furthermore, such loanseatehsions of credit are also subject to variolisial requirements. The
regulations and restrictions may limit the Comparability to obtain funds from the Bank for its baweds, including funds for acquisitions,
and the payment of dividends, interest and opeyakpenses.

The Bank is prohibited from engaging in certaimgyarrangements in connection with any extensiceredit, lease or sale of property or
furnishing of services. For example, the Bank matygenerally require a customer to obtain othevises from the Bank or the Company, and
may not require the customer to promise not toinkither services from a competitor as a conditan extension of credit. The Bank is also
subject to certain restrictions imposed by the FedReserve Act on extensions of credit to exeeutifficers, directors, principal stockholders
or any related interest
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of such persons. Extensions of credit: (i) mustiaele on substantially the same terms (includingrést rates and collateral) as, and following
credit underwriting procedures that are not lesagent than those prevailing at the time for corapée transactions with persons not covered
above and who are not employees, and (ii) musinvotve more than the normal risk of repayment msgnt other unfavorable features. The
Bank is also subject to certain lending limits aestrictions on overdrafts to such persons. A viotaof these restrictions may result in the
assessment of substantial civil monetary penattiethe Bank or any officer, director, employee,rage other person participating in the
conduct of the affairs of the Bank or the impositaf a cease and desist order.

The deposits of the Bank are insured by the FDIGuph the Insurance Fund to the extent providethiy Under the FDIC's risk-based
insurance system, institutions insured throughnkarance Fund are currently assessed premiumd basaligible deposits and the
institutions’ capital position and other supervistactors. Legislation also provides for assessmagainst institutions insured through the
Insurance Fund which will be used to pay certaiafficing corporation (“FICO”) obligations. In additi to any Insurance Fund assessments,
banks insured through the Insurance Fund are eagh¢atmake payments for the FICO obligations baseeligible deposits each year. The
assessment is determined quarterly.

Regulations promulgated by the FDIC pursuant tdRéderal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvemenibf 1991 place limitations on the
ability of certain insured depository institutioiwsaccept, renew or rollover deposits by offeriates of interest which are significantly higher
than the prevailing rates of interest on depodfered by other depository institutions having Haene type of charter in such depository
institutions’ normal market area. Under these ratjoihs, well-capitalized institutions may acceptew or rollover such deposits without
restriction, while adequately capitalized instibm$ may accept, renew or rollover such deposits avivaiver from the FDIC (subject to certain
restrictions on payment of rates). Undercapitalimstitutions may not accept, renew or rollovertsdeposits.

Under the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovemy &nforcement Act of 1989, a depository institntiosured by the FDIC can be held liable
for any loss incurred by, or reasonably expectdaketincurred by, the FDIC in connection with: {igtdefault of a commonly controlled FDIC-
insured depository institution, or (ii) any assmta provided by the FDIC to a commonly controll&@ €-insured institution in danger of
default. “Default” is defined generally as the ajppment of a conservator or receiver, and “in dargféefault” is defined generally as the
existence of certain conditions indicating thatlafault” is likely to occur in the absence of regjoly assistance.

The federal regulators have adopted regulationseaathination procedures promoting the safety anddoess of individual institutions by
specifically addressing, among other things: (i@inal controls, information systems and internalibsystems; (ii) loan documentation;
(iii) credit underwriting; (iv) interest rate expo®; (v) asset growth; (vi) ratio of classified etssto capital; (vii) minimum earnings; and
(viil) compensation and benefits standards for mganzent officials.

The FRB, the OCC and other federal banking agerzge broad enforcement powers, including the paavégrminate deposit insurance, and

impose substantial fines and other civil and crahjpenalties and appoint a conservator or recédrahe assets of a regulated entity. Failure to
comply with applicable laws, regulations and sufsemy agreements could subject the Company oulisidiaries, as well as officers, directors
and other institution-affiliated parties of theggamnizations, to administrative sanctions and gatkecivil monetary penalties.

Capital Adequacy

The FRB, the FDIC and the OCC have adopted riskdaapital adequacy guidelines for bank holding manies and banks under their
supervision. Under these guidelines, the so-célléer 1 capital” and “Total capital” as a percengagf risk-weighted assets and certain off-
balance sheet instruments must be at least 4%%nde8pectively.

The FRB, the FDIC and the OCC have also imposederage standard to supplement their risk-basesbrathis leverage standard focuses on
a banking institution’s ratio of Tier 1 capitaldaverage total assets, adjusted for goodwill anthiceother items. Under these guidelines,
banking institutions that meet certain criteriglirding excellent asset quality, high liquiditywlanterest rate exposure and good earnings, and
that have received the highest regulatory ratingtrmaintain a ratio of Tier 1 capital to total astpd average assets of at least 3%.

Institutions not meeting these criteria, as welinagitutions with supervisory, financial or opeoaial weaknesses, along with those experier
or anticipating significant growth, are expectedraintain a Tier 1 capital to total adjusted averagsets ratio equal to at least 4%. As refle
in the following table, the risk-based capital @atand leverage ratios of the Company and the Bard€ December 31, 2007 and 2006
exceeded the required capital ratios for clasgificaas “well capitalized,” the highest classificat under the regulatory capital guidelines.
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Capital Components and Ratios at December 31,
(dollars in thousands)

2007 2006
Company Bank Company Bank

Capital component

Tier 1 capita $ 44,22« $ 39,10 $ 40,48¢ $ 37,847

Total risk-based capite 48,45 43,28¢ 44,22¢ 41,57¢
Risk-weighted assets and -balance sheet instrumet 338,01¢ 334,49 316,76 315,45t
Risk-based capital rati

Tier 1 capita 13.1% 11.7% 12.9% 12.(%

Total risk-based capite 14.2% 12.% 14.(% 13.2%
Leverage ratic 10.(% 9.C% 8.9% 8.4%

The federal banking agencies, including the FRBtArdOCC, maintain risk-based capital standarasder to ensure that those standards take
adequate account of interest rate risk, conceatrati credit risk, the risk of non-traditional adties and equity investments in non-financial
companies, as well as reflect the actual performamal expected risk of loss on certain multifarhibysing loans. Bank regulators periodically
propose amendments to the risk-based capital guedeand related regulatory framework, and consitlanges to the risk-based capital
standards that could significantly increase thewamhof capital needed to meet the requirementthiocapital tiers described below. While the
Company’s management studies such proposals niiregtiof adoption, ultimate form and effect of amgls proposed amendments on the
Company’s capital requirements and operations damnpredicted.

The federal banking agencies are required to tpkanipt corrective action” in respect of depositmstitutions and their bank holding
companies that do not meet minimum capital requares) FDICIA established five capital tiers: “wedlpitalized,” “adequately capitalized,”
“undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitaliZednd “critically undercapitalized.” A depositorgstitution’s capital tier, or that of its bank
holding company, depends upon where its capit@léeare in relation to various relevant capital suees, including a risk-based capital
measure and a leverage ratio capital measure,atalrcother factors.

Under the implementing regulations adopted by #ukefal banking agencies, a bank holding compaiaok is considered “well capitalized”
if it has: (i) a total risk-based capital ratioXi% or greater; (ii) a Tier 1 risk-based capitdioraf 6% or greater; and (iii) a leverage ratidc8b

or greater; and is not subject to any order ortemitlirective to meet and maintain a specific eével for a capital measure. An “adequately
capitalized” bank holding company or bank is defias one that has: (i) a total risk-based capdtist Iof 8% or greater; (ii) a Tier 1 risk-based
capital ratio of 4% or greater; and (iii) a levezagtio of 4% or greater (or 3% or greater in thgecof a bank with a composite CAMELS rating
of (1)). A bank holding company or bank is cons@tk(A) “undercapitalized” if it has: (i) a totakki-based capital ratio of less than 8%; (ii) a
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of less than 4%(iigra leverage ratio of less than 4% (or 3%he tase of a bank with a composite CAMELS
rating of (1)); (B) “significantly undercapitalized the bank has: (i) a total risk-based capitgtio of less than 6%; or (ii) a Tier 1 risk-based
capital ratio of less than 3%; or (iii) a leveragéo of less than 3%; and (C) “critically underitafized” if the bank has a ratio of tangible
equity to total assets equal to or less than 2%.HRB may reclassify a “well capitalized” bank holgicompany or bank as “adequately
capitalized” or subject an “adequately capitalized*undercapitalizedinstitution to the supervisory actions applicaldeite next lower capit
category if it determines that the bank holding panmy or bank is in an unsafe or unsound conditrase@ms the bank holding company or
bank to be engaged in an unsafe or unsound praxit@ot to have corrected the deficiency. The Gomi@and the Bank currently meet the
definition of “well capitalized” institutions.

“Undercapitalized” depository institutions, amorer things, are subject to growth limitations; prehibited, with certain exceptions, from
making capital distributions; are limited in thability to obtain funding from a Federal ReservenBaand are required to submit a capital
restoration plan. The federal banking agencies nohyaccept a capital plan without determining, aghother things, that the plan is based on
realistic assumptions and is likely to succeecdestaring the depository institution’s capital. bid&ion, for a capital restoration plan to be
acceptable, the depository institution’s parentihm company must guarantee that the institutidhosimply with such capital restoration plan
and provide appropriate assurances of performahaelepository institution fails to submit an aptable plan, including if the holding
company refuses or is unable to make the guaraetseibed in the previous sentence, it is treasdtliais “significantly undercapitalized.”
Failure to submit or implement an acceptable chplta also is grounds for the appointment of aseswator or a receiver. “Significantly
undercapitalized” depository institutions may bbjeat to a number of additional requirements astricions, including orders to sell
sufficient voting stock to
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become “adequately capitalized,” requirements tluce total assets and cessation of receipt of dsgosm correspondent banks. Moreover,
the parent holding company of a “significantly urdeitalized” depository institution may be ordetedlivest itself of the institution or of
non-bank subsidiaries of the holding company. ‘iCaity undercapitalized” institutions, among otlileings, are prohibited from making any
payments of principal and interest on subordinaisat, and are subject to the appointment of aveceir conservator.

Each federal banking agency prescribes standaratefmsitory institutions and depository institatisolding companies relating to internal
controls, information systems, internal audit systeloan documentation, credit underwriting, ins¢érate exposure, asset growth,
compensation, a maximum ratio of classified agsetapital, minimum earnings sufficient to absarbsles, a minimum ratio of market value to
book value for publicly traded shares and otherddads as they deem appropriate. The FRB and th& lI@@e adopted such standards.

Financial Services Modernization and Other Recent kgislation

The Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branchinficieihcy Act of 1994 (the “Riegle-Neal Act”) fadilites the interstate expansion and
consolidation of banking organizations by permgtbrank holding companies that are adequately degithand managed to acquire banks
located in states outside their home states, réggrdf whether such acquisitions are authorizettuthe law of the host state. The Rielyieal
Act also permits interstate mergers of banks, wsitime limitations, and the establishment of new ¢iraa on an interstate basis, provided that
such actions are authorized by the law of the biage.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 (the “GLB Actflermits banks, securities firms and insurance comegao affiliate under a common
holding company structure. In addition to allowimgw forms of financial services combinations, tHeBG\ct clarifies how financial services
conglomerates will be regulated by the differemnlefi@l and state regulators. The GLB Act amendetth&BHCA and expanded the permiss
activities of certain qualifying bank holding comrmpes, known as financial holding companies. In &ddito engaging in banking and activities
closely related to banking, as determined by thB BRregulation or order, financial holding compesimay engage in activities that are
financial in nature or incidental to financial atfiies that are complementary to a financial atfiand do not pose a substantial risk to the
safety and soundness of depository institutiorth@ifinancial system generally. Under the GLB Aditfinancial institutions, including the
Company and the Bank, are required to develop gyipalicies, restrict the sharing of non-publictomser data with non-affiliated parties at
the customer’s request, and establish proceduckpraictices to protect customer data from unauthdraccess.

USA Patriot Act

The USA Patriot Act of 2001 (the “Patriot Act”) irmpes additional obligations on U.S. financial instdbns, including banks and broker-dealer
subsidiaries, to implement policies, proceduresamdrols which are reasonably designed to prewsiéct and report instances of money
laundering and the financing of terrorism. In aitbdi provisions of the Patriot Act require the feaddinancial institution regulatory agencies to
consider the effectiveness of a financial institnts anti-money laundering activities when reviegvimank mergers and bank holding company
acquisitions. The Company and its impacted subsédidnave approved policies and procedures thdiereved to be compliant with the
Patriot Act.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Since the enactment of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 82 20hd the SEC’s implementing regulations of thmesécollectively, the “Sarbanes-Oxley
Act”), companies that have securities registeredeuthe Exchange Act, including the Company, abgesi to enhanced and more transparent
corporate governance standards, disclosure regeimenand accounting and financial reporting reguénets. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act, among
other things, (i) requires: the principal executiel principal financial officers of a public conmyato establish and maintain disclosure
controls and procedures and internal controls émancial reporting for the company, and to evaduate effectiveness of these controls and
certify and report on their findings in the companyeriodic reports; a public company to estabéisld maintain audit committees, comprised
solely of independent directors, which committeestrhe empowered to, among other things, engagengap and discharge the company’s
auditors; that a public company’s financial statatede certified by the principal executive anahpipal financial officers of such company;
increased and quicker public disclosure — real timebligations by the company and its directors effiters, including disclosures of off-
balance sheet transactions and accelerated repoftinansactions in company stock; (ii) prohilgessonal loans to company directors and
officers, except certain loans made by insurednféied institutions on non-preferential terms and@mpliance with other bank regulatory
requirements; and (iii) creates or provides foliaas increased civil and criminal penalties forlatmns of the securities laws.
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Monetary Policy and Economic Control

The commercial banking business is affected not bylgeneral economic conditions, but also by tlemetary policies of the FRB. Change:
the discount rate on member bank borrowing, aviithalof borrowing at the “discount window,” openarket operations, the imposition of
changes in reserve requirements against membestaeiosits and assets of foreign branches anibesition of and changes in reserve
requirements against certain borrowings by bankistlaeir affiliates are some of the instruments ohetary policy available to the FRB. Th
monetary policies are used in varying combinationsfluence overall growth and distributions ohkdoans, investments and deposits, and
this use may affect interest rates charged on loapsid on deposits. The monetary policies offR® have had a significant effect on the
operating results of commercial banks and are @éggeo continue to do so in the future. The monygpalicies of these agencies are influen
by various factors, including inflation, unemploymbeand short-term and long-term changes in thermational trade balance and in the fiscal
policies of the United States Government. Futur@etary policies and the effect of such policiegtmnfuture business and earnings of the
Company cannot be predicted.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Evans National Financial Services, INnCENFS, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company felding company for the financial services
business of the Company, including ENBI.

ENB Insurance Agency, Inc.ENBI, a retail property and casualty insurance aggis a wholly-owned subsidiary of ENFS. ENBI is
headquartered in Angola, New York, with officesdted throughout Western New York. ENBI is a fulixdee insurance agency offering
personal, commercial and financial services praluthtlso has a small consulting department. Reryear ended December 31, 2007, ENBI
had a premium volume of approximately $43.2 millaovd commission revenue of $6.5 million.

ENBI’s primary market area is Erie, Chautauquataatigus and Niagara counties. All lines of perkirsairance are provided, including
automobile, homeowner’s, boat, recreational vehlaledlord and umbrella coverages. Commercial gasce products are also provided,
consisting of property, liability, automobile, imid marine, workers compensation, bonds, crop arateita insurance. ENBI also provides the
following financial services products: life and aliglity insurance, Medicare supplements, long teame, annuities, mutual funds, retirement
programs and New York State Disability.

ENBI has a small consulting division which workeakt exclusively with school districts. The majpiiff the work is done in preparing
specifications for bidding and reviewing existimgurance programs. The majority of the consultempants are located in central and eastern
New York.

In the personal insurance area, the majority of EN&mpetition comes from direct writers, as wadlsome small local agencies located in the
same towns and villages in which ENBI has offidagshe commercial business segment, the majorith@ftompetition comes from larger
agencies located in and around Buffalo, New Yonkofering the large number of carriers which istevailable to its customers, ENBI has
attempted to remain competitive in all aspectdobusiness.

ENBI is regulated by the New York State Insuranep&tment. It meets and maintains all licensing@minuing education requirements
required by the State of New York.

Frontier Claims Services, Inc. FCS, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ENBI, providesurance adjusting services for insurance compafi€S
is located in Angola, New York.

ENB Associates INcCENB, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ENBI, providesnadeposit investment products, such as mutual fandsannuities,
to Bank customers at Bank branch locations. ENBamaisvestment services agreement with O’Keefe S&@w., Inc., through which ENB
can purchase and sell securities to its customers.

Evans National Bank.The Bank is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Comparhe Bank’s business is described above.
Evans National Leasing, IncENL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, pro\dd#rect financing leasing of commercial small-dtk
general business equipment to companies locatedghout the contiguous 48 United States.
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Evans National Holding Corp.ENHC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, hotéstain real estate loans and provides management
services. ENHC is operated as a Real Estate Ineestiitust (“REIT”), which provides additional fléility and planning opportunities for the
business of the Bank.

ENB Employers Insurance Trust.ENB Employers Insurance Trust is a Delaware trastgany formed for the sole purpose of holding life
insurance policies under the Bank’s bank-owneditifairance program.

Evans Capital Trust I. Evans Capital Trust |, a wholly-owned subsidiarytef Company, was organized solely to issue ahdeeain
securities representing undivided beneficial irdes®f the Trust and investing the proceeds théreoértain debentures of the Company.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had no daeqtioyees. As of December 31, 2007, the followatgd summarizes the employment
rosters of the Company’s subsidiaries:

Full Time Part Time

Bank 122 14
ENL 11 —
ENBI 51 7
FCS 4 —
18¢ 21

The Company’s subsidiaries have good relationshiistheir employees.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quart&gports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Forkhaid amendments to those rep:
filed or furnished by the Company pursuant to $ecfi3(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, are avadatithout charge on the Company’s
website, www.evansbancorp.cem SEC filings section, as soon as reasonably atalié after they are electronically filed with arriished to
the SEC. The Company is providing the addresstmternet site solely for the information of int@s. The Company does not intend the
address to be an active link or to otherwise inomafe the contents of the website into this Repoftorm 10-K or into any other report filed
with or furnished to the SEC.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following factors identified by the Company’samagement represent significant potential risksttteCompany faces in its operations.

Direct Financing Leases Expose the Company to Incased Credit Risks.

At December 31, 2007, the Company’s portfolio @&dt financing leases totaled $45.1 million, or9®8.of total gross loans. The leasing
portfolio increased $13.3 million, or 42.0%, froned@mber 31, 2006. The leasing portfolio is the Camyfs fastest-growing segment of its
loan and lease portfolio and earns the highestl yiemmpared to other loans that the Company offdre.Company plans to continue to
emphasize the origination of direct financing lsaSéhe Company is able to earn the relatively higiedd on these leases because of the h
amount of credit risk assumed in its leasing p&idfd his is reflected in the fact that the leakase the highest rate of charge-offs among the
Company’s loan and lease portfolio. ENL commengaetations December 31, 2004, in conjunction withdbquisition of the M&C Leasing
Company. As ENL is relatively young, the portfoigostill seasoning and the Company has little Injsto support a projection as to what a
long-term run-rate of charge-offs will be. Alsoet@ompany has not held the leasing portfolio thhoaidull credit cycle and is unsure of the
impact a worsening economy could have on thisiveltriskier portfolio. Consequently, a furthertedoration in the credit quality of the
leasing portfolio could negatively impact earningswell as cause the Company to tighten lendengdstrds to lessees, which could
significantly slow the Company’s fastest-growingsent of the loan portfolio. This would also impénfyiture growth in net interest income as
the fast-growing leasing portfolio has buttressel@ompany’s overall net interest income growtleesiBNL'’s inception.
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Commercial Real Estate and Commercial Business LoarExpose the Company to Increased Lending Risks.

At December 31, 2007, the Company’s portfolio aihoeercial real estate loans totaled $131.1 millam}0.5% of total gross loans and the
Company'’s portfolio of commercial business loartalesl $34.6 million, or 10.7% of total gross loafike Company plans to continue to
emphasize the origination of commercial loans. Cenuial loans generally expose a lender to greatkrof non-payment and loss than one-to
four-family residential mortgage loans becauseyspnt of commercial real estate and business lofies depends on the successful
operations and the income stream of the borrovrsh loans typically involve larger loan balanaesihgle borrowers or groups of related
borrowers compared to one-to four-family residdntiartgage loans. Also, many of the Company’s bwes have more than one commercial
real estate or commercial business loan outstanithgthe Company. Consequently, an adverse demedap with respect to one loan or one
credit relationship can expose the Company to @ifgigntly greater risk of loss compared to an adealevelopment with respect to a one-to
four-family residential mortgage loan.

Continuing Concentration of Loans in the Company’sPrimary Market Area May Increase the Company’s Risk

The Company'’s success depends primarily on thergeaeonomic conditions in western New York Statelike larger banks that are more
geographically diversified, the Company provideskiag and financial services to customers primarilywestern New York State. The
Company’s business lending and marketing stratég@ss on loans to small- to medium-sized busiresséhis geographic region. Moreover,
the Company’s assets are heavily concentrated mtganges on properties located in western New Y d¢akeS Accordingly, the Company’s
business and operations are vulnerable to downtartie economies of western New York State. Theceatration of the Company’s loans in
this geographic region subjects the Company tothiaka downturn in the economy or recession i itagion could result in a decrease in loan
originations and increases in delinquencies anetfosures, which would more greatly affect the Camypthan if the Company’s lending were
more geographically diversified. In addition, then@pany may suffer losses if there is a declindémvalue of properties underlying the
Company’s mortgage loans which would have a mdtadeerse impact on the Company’s operations.

In the Event the Company’s Allowance for Loan and lease Losses is Not Sufficient to Cover Actual Loaand Lease Losses, the
Company’s Earnings Could Decrease.

The Company maintains an allowance for loan anskléasses in order to capture the probable logbeséant in its loan portfolio. There is a
risk that the Company may experience significaabland lease losses which could exceed the alleMandoan and lease losses. In
determining the amount of the Company'’s recordemhance, the Company makes various assumptionfudgchents about the collectibility

of its loan and lease portfolio, including the étedrthiness of its borrowers, the effect of chamgethe local economy on the value of the real
estate and other assets serving as collateraghéareppayment of loans, the effects on the Comzalogn and lease portfolio of current econc
indicators and their probable impact on borrowansl the Company’s loan quality reviews. In additioank regulators periodically review the
Company’s loan and lease portfolio and credit uwdéing procedures, as well as its allowance farl@and lease losses, and may require the
Company to increase its provision for loan andddasses or recognize further loan and lease chaffgeAt December 31, 2007, the Compi
had a net loan portfolio of approximately $319.@8lion and the allowance for loan and lease lossas approximately $4.6 million, which
represented 1.41% of the total amount of grossslaaual leases. If the Company’s assumptions andhjedts prove to be incorrect or bank
regulators require the Company to increase itsipi@mv for loan and lease losses or recognize fultie and lease charge-offs, the Company
may have to increase its allowance for loan anslé@sses or loan and lease charge-offs which dwud an adverse effect on the Company’s
operating results and financial condition. Thene ba no assurances that the Company’s allowandedorand lease losses will be adequate to
protect the Company against loan and lease lokageg thay incur.

Changes in Interest Rates Could Adversely Affect it Company’s Business, Results of Operations and Rincial Condition.

The Company’s results of operations and finanaaldition are significantly affected by changesriterest rates. The Company’s results of
operations depend substantially on its net inténestme, which is the difference between the irgkeicome earned on its interest-earning
assets and the interest expense paid on its itHeeasing liabilities. Because the Company’s indettgearing liabilities generally re-price or
mature more quickly than its interest-earning ass@t increase in interest rates generally would te result in a decrease in its net interest
income.

Changes in interest rates also affect the valueeoCompany’s interest-earning assets, and inqodaiti, the Company’s securities portfolio.
Generally, the value of securities fluctuates igedr with changes in interest rates. At Decembe2807, the Company’s securities available
for sale totaled $70.1 million. Net unrealized gagm securities available for sale, net of tax, amed to $0.4 million and are reported as a
separate component of stockholders’ equity.
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Decreases in the fair value of securities availfdiesale, therefore, could have an adverse effectockholders’ equity or earnings.

The Company also is subject to reinvestment risk@ated with changes in interest rates. Changesdrest rates may affect the average life
of loans and mortgage-related securities. Decrdaasaterest rates can result in increased prepaysra loans and mortgage-related securities,
as borrowers refinance to reduce borrowing costsledthese circumstances, the Company is subjeetrteestment risk to the extent that it is
unable to reinvest the cash received from suchaymapnts at rates that are comparable to the rategisting loans and securities.

Additionally, increases in interest rates may dasedloan demand and make it more difficult for baers to repay adjustable rate loans.

Strong Competition Within the Company’s Market Area May Limit its Growth and Profitability.

Competition in the banking and financial serviagduistry is intense. The Company competes with camialébanks, savings institutions,
mortgage brokerage firms, credit unions, finanamganies, mutual funds, insurance companies, andétage and investment banking firms
operating locally within the Company’s market asea elsewhere. Many of these competitors (whettgional or national institutions) have
substantially greater resources and lending lithi#s the Company does, and may offer certain ss\itat the Company does not or cannot
provide. The Company’s profitability depends uptsnciontinued ability to successfully compete irs timarket area.

Expansion of the Company’s Branch Network May Advesely Affect its Financial Results

The Company has increased its retail branch netivork eight branches to eleven branches by opesténgovo branches in three of the last
four years. In addition, the Company plans on opginother branch in mid-2008, and its stratedy tontinue to grow its branch network
through de novo branching and acquisitions. The @omw can not assure that its branch expansioregtratill be accretive to earnings or that
it will be accretive to earnings within a reasomapériod of time. Numerous factors contribute ® glerformance of a new branch, such as
suitable location, qualified personnel, and anaife marketing strategy. Additionally, it takem# for a new branch to gather sufficient loans
and deposits to generate income sufficient to citse@perating expenses.

The Company Operates in a Highly Regulated Environrant and May Be Adversely Affected By Changes in Lasvand Regulations.

The Company is subject to regulation, supervisioh @xamination by the OCC, FRB, and by the FDIGnasrer of its deposits. Such
regulation and supervision govern the activities/frich a bank and its holding company may engagesa@ intended primarily for the
protection of the deposit insurance funds and depss Regulatory requirements affect the Compalesisling practices, capital structure,
investment practices, dividend policy and growthe3e regulatory authorities have extensive dismréti connection with their supervisory i
enforcement activities, including the impositionrestrictions on the operation of a bank, the diassion of assets by a bank and the adequacy
of a bank’s allowance for loan and lease lossey.dhange in such regulation and oversight, whethére form of regulatory policy,
regulations, or legislation, could have a mateadlerse impact on the Bank, the Company and itsiéss, financial condition and results of
operations.

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable

Item 2. PROPERTIES

The Bank conducts its business from its adminiseatffice and eleven branch offices as of Decen®ie2007. The Bank’s administrative
office is located at One Grimsby Drive in Hambuxgw York. The administrative office facility is ZB)0 square feet and is owned by the
Bank. This facility is occupied by the Office oktlPresident and Chief Executive Officer of the Camyp as well as the Administrative and
Loan Divisions of the Bank.

The Bank has 11 branch locations. The Bank ownsuiiiding and land for five locations. The Bank aathe building but leases the land for
four locations. The other two locations are lea3éd: Bank also operates in-school branch bankiajtfas at two local high schools that do
not require lease payments.

ENBI operates from its headquarters a 9,300 sdoateoffice located at 16 North Main Street, Angdiew York, which is owned by the
Bank. ENBI has 14 retail locations. ENBI leaseol fhe locations. The Bank owns two of the locasiamd ENBI owns the remaining
building.
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Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The nature of the Company’s business generategarcamount of litigation involving matters arigiim the ordinary course of business.
However, in the opinion of management of the Comgp#rere are no proceedings pending to which thag2my is a party or to which its
property is subject, which, if determined adverselguld have a material effect on the Company’sltef operations or financial condition.

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matters were submitted to a vote of shareholdiersig the fourth quarter of fiscal 20(

PART Il
Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information. The Company’s common stock is quoted on The NASOGbal Market system (“NASDAQ”) under the symbol
EVBN.

The following table shows, for the periods indichtéhe high and low closing sales prices per sbftke Companys common stock as repor
on The Nasdaq Global Market for fiscal 2007 and&00

2007 2006
QUARTER High Low High Low
FIRST $21.0C $19.5: $21.5: $18.6¢
SECOND $20.5( $19.0¢ $23.3¢ $19.67
THIRD $20.0¢ $17.7C $23.0( $19.91
FOURTH $18.3¢ $15.7¢ $22.81 $19.2¢

Holders. The approximate number of holders of record ofGeenpany’s common stock at March 10, 2008 was 1,428.
Cash Dividends.The Company paid the following cash dividends aareb of the Company’s common stock during fisca@le2énd 2007:
. A cash dividend of $0.34 per share on April 3, 2@®6olders of record on March 13, 20
. A cash dividend on $0.34 per share on October @6 20 holders of record on September 8, 2!
. A cash dividend of $0.34 per share on April 2, 2@®tholders of record on March 12, 20
. A cash dividend of $0.37 per share on October 2726 holders of record on September 11, 2!
In addition, the Company declared a cash dividdr®DB7 per share payable on April 1, 2008 to hlae record as of March 10, 2008.

The amount and type (cash or stock), if any, airfeidividends will be determined by the Companyd&il of Directors and will depend upon
the Company’s earnings, financial conditions areepfactors considered by the Board of Directorsaaelevant. The Bank pays a dividend to
the Company to provide funds for: debt servicehmnjtinior subordinated debentures, a portion optioeeeds of which were contributed to
Bank as capital; dividends the Company pays; tigastock repurchases; and other Company expenkese Bre also various legal limitations
with respect to the Bank supplying funds to the @any. In particular, under Federal Banking Law, gher approval of the FRB and OCC
may be required in certain circumstance, priohtgayment of dividends by the Company or Bank.Ns&tes 8 and 19 to the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Patem 8 to this Report on Form 10-K for additadnnformation concerning contractual and
regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends

PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following Performance Graph compares the Colyiparumulative total stockholder return on its coomstock for a five-year period
(December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2007) with timeutative total return of the NASDAQ Bank
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Index and NASDAQ Market Index. The comparison facte of the periods assumes that $100 was invest&toember 31, 2002 in each of
the Companys common stock, the stocks included in the NASDAdpIBIndex and the stocks included in the NASDAQ kéatndex, and th:
all dividends were reinvested without commissiortss table does not forecast future performandb®Company’s stock.

Compare 5-Year Cumulative Total Return Among
Evans Bancorp, Inc.,
NASDAQ Market Index and NASDAQ Bank Index

5 8

Dollars
i3
LA

Tk
75 : : - - \l’

12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07

—=&— Evans Bancorp, Inc. —#— NASDACQ) Composite —k— NASDAQ) Ba1lk|

Period Ending
| ndex 12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07
Evans Bancorp, In¢ 100.0( 108.2¢ 123.5¢ 111.6!1 109.7¢ 91.2¢
NASDAQ Composite 100.0( 150.0! 162.8¢ 165.1¢ 180.8¢ 198.6(
NASDAQ Bank 100.0( 129.9¢ 144.2: 137.9% 153.1¢ 119.3¢

In accordance with and to the extent permittedfplieable law or regulation, the information setfficabove under the heading “Performance
Graph” shall not be incorporated by reference atg future filing under the Securities Act, as adeth or the Exchange Act and shall not be
deemed to be “soliciting material” or to be “filedith the SEC under the Securities Act or the ExgjeaAct.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and #fiiated Purchasers.The following table includes all Company repurctsasecluding
those made pursuant to publicly announced plapsagrams during the quarter ended December 31,.2007

Total Total number of share: Maximum number of
number of Average purchased as part of shares that may yet b
shares price paid  publicly announced purchased under
Period purchasec per share  plans or programs the plans or programs
October 200}
(October 1, 2007 through October 31, 20 0 $ 0 0 100,00(
November 200°
(November 1, 2007 through November 30, 2C 60C $ 17.4. 60C 99,40(
December 200
(December 1, 2007 through December 31, 2! 8,60C $ 16.8¢ 8,60( 90,80(
Total 9,20( $ 16.8¢ 9,20(
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All 9,200 shares were purchased in open markesaaions. On August 21, 2007, the Board of Directarthorized the Company to repurct

up to 100,000 shares over the next two years, sitthesprogram is terminated earlier. The Compadyndi make any repurchases during the
guarter ended December 31, 2007, other than purtmuéms publicly announced program. The Compaay flaced such repurchased shares in
the treasury and accounts for such shares ontarfifgst-out basis.

Item 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

(Dollars in thousands except per share data)

As of and for the year ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Balance Sheet Dat:
Assets $442,72¢ $473,89: $468,54¢ $429,04. $334,67
Interes-earning asse! 392,23t 426,83t 419,97: 391,46: 308,72.
Investment securitie 72,41( 137,73( 159,95: 169,87¢ 120,55¢
Loans and leases, r 319,55¢ 285,36° 256,81( 217,59¢ 185,52¢
Deposits 325,82¢ 355,74¢ 336,80¢ 301,92¢ 266,32!
Borrowings 63,23¢ 60,55¢ 81,79¢ 79,36¢ 25,38¢
Stockholder’ equity 43,30: 39,54 36,87¢ 35,47« 33,32«
Income Statement Date
Net interest incom $ 16,67: $ 14,847 $ 14,377 $ 12,597 $ 10,84¢
Nor-interest incom 8,84: 10,77: 10,37¢ 8,572 7,66¢
Non-interest expens 19,18: 17,72¢ 17,40¢ 14,77¢ 12,73¢
Net income 3,36¢ 4,921 4,81¢ 4,50¢ 4,06¢
Per Share Data
Earnings per sha— basic $ 1.2¢ $ 181 $ 177 $ 1.6F $ 151
Earnings per shar— diluted 1.2 1.8C 1.77 1.65 1.51
Cash dividend 0.71 0.6¢ 0.6% 0.61 0.57
Book value 15.7¢ 14.4¢ 13.51 13.0¢ 12.3i
Performance Ratios
Return on average ass 0.72% 1.05% 1.05% 1.1%% 1.25%
Return on average equi 8.1t 12.9¢ 13.3¢ 13.1¢ 12.7i
Net interest margi 4.0t 3.5t 3.4¢ 3.52 3.64
Efficiency ratio * 66.65 67.37 68.5: 68.7¢ 68.9:2
Dividend payout ratic 57.7i 37.7C 36.5¢ 36.71 37.71
Capital Ratios
Tier | capital to average ass! 10.0%% 8.9(% 8.2¢% 8.05% 8.3(%
Equity to asset 9.7¢ 8.34 7.87 8.27 9.9¢
Asset Quality Ratios
Total nor-performing assets to total ass 0.1€% 0.15% 0.41% 0.42% 0.27%
Total nor-performing loans and leases to total lo

and lease 0.2z 0.2% 0.7z 0.8z 0.4¢
Net charg-offs to average loans and lea 0.37 0.22 0.2 0.0¢ 0.0t
Allowance for loan and lease losses to total lcard

leases 1.41 1.2¢ 1.2¢ 1.3¢ 1.3t
Allowance for loan and lease losses to non- perifogr

loans and leas¢ 637.9¢ 564.8( 171.7] 166.0¢ 276.4

See Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysisrancial Condition and Results of Operationsfidaltem 8, “Consolidated Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data,” of this Repofform 10-K for further information and analysisatanges in the Company'’s financial
condition and results of operations.

* The calculation of the efficiency ratio excludesaatization of intangibles and gains and lossesad@ssof securities, for comparati
purposes
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
OVERVIEW

This discussion is intended to compare the perfomeaf the Company for the years ended Decembe2(8T,, 2006 and 2005. The review of
the information presented should be read in conjonavith Part |, “Item 1: Business” and Part Ilt¢m 6: Selected Financial Data” and
“Item 8: Financial Statements and Supplementargtiéral Data” of this Report on Form 10-K.

The Company is a financial holding company regetamder the BHCA. The Company currently condustbusiness through its two direct
wholly-owned subsidiaries: the Bank and the Baskissidiaries, ENL and ENHC; and ENFS and its sudnsés, ENBI and ENB. The
Company does not engage in any other substansaidss. Unless the context otherwise requiregetine “Company” refers collectively to
Evans Bancorp, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

The Company’s financial objectives are focused ammiegs growth and return on average equity. In72@% Company experienced a sharp
decline in net income, total assets, and total siegpdVost of the decline is explained by the Conmypadecision to restructure its balance sheet
in June 2007, which resulted in the realizatiom ohe-time loss of $2.3 million ($1.4 million aftex) on the sale of $45 million of the
Company'’s securities portfolio. In conjunction withis sale, the Company allowed most municipal tilaposits to mature without being
renewed and priced down the muni-vest savings mtddu municipalities without core operating acctauthat resulted in those customers
withdrawing their deposits. Deposits from municipi@$ are required to be collateralized by investtheecurities and are therefore not able to
be used to fund loan growth. The spread betweemthecipal time deposits and the securities sold megative. The funding of investment
securities with high-cost municipal deposits did fitowith the Company’s strategy of growing loaarsd improving return on equity.

Despite the effect of the balance sheet restrurwn the overall results, the Company continuegttev core deposits and loans. While
demand deposits declined from December 31, 200@&t@mber 31, 2007, average demand deposits inigéased $6.5 million, or 9.7%

from 2006. Given the nature of transactional dapaaid the fluctuation in balances day-to-day didaine in demand deposit balances at
December 31, 2007 belies the core growth seen0i.20et loans grew $34.2 million, or 12.0%, fromcBmber 31, 2006 to December 31,
2007. Direct financing leases remained the fagesitting portion of the portfolio. The strong growithdemand deposits and leases, in tandem
with the improved asset mix and leverage of the @amy from the balance sheet restructuring, resutt@d50 basis point improvement in net
interest margin in 2007 compared to 2006.

Another significant item affecting the 2007 finasaiesults was the 69.9% increase in the provifiotoan losses from $1.1 million in 2006 to
$1.9 million in 2007. The increase stemmed fromesahitems: (1) strong growth in commercial loand aigher risk direct financing leases;
(2) the downgrade of a small number of commerdiahk in the 4 quarter of 2007; (3) increased level of charge-iaifgely due to the
seasoning of the leasing portfolio; and (4) managga assessment of the impact on the loan pastéiflthe slowing economy.

Unlike many banks in the industry, the Companyrditiexperience widespread credit deterioratiomouii large write-offs in 2007, as the
Company has not engaged in sub-prime mortgagerigratiinvested in securities backed by sub-primetgages. Also, the Comparsymarke:
area has been largely unaffected by the declinedhestate values seen nationwide, as WesternYekvnever experienced the significant
appreciation in real estate prices that other prtise country did. Nevertheless, the credit atmwhemic ramifications may extend beyond the
sub-prime mortgage market. A widespread economigdibwn could likely negatively impact the Companfjfencial results.

To sustain future growth and to meet the Compafiyancial objectives, the Company has defined alvemof strategies. Five of the more
important strategies include:

. Expanding the Bar's market reach and penetration throug-novo branching and potential acquisitio

. Continuing growth of nc-interest income through insurance agency interr@akth and potential acquisition
. Focusing on profitable customer segme

. Leveraging technology to improve efficiency andtouser service; an

. Maintaining a community based approa

The Company'’s strategies are designed to diretitéhénvestment decisions supporting its finanaljectives. The Company’s most
significant revenue source continues to be netésténcome, defined as total interest incomeilessest expense. Net interest income
accounted for approximately 60% of total revenu20A7. To produce net interest income and condisgmings growth over the long-term,
the Company must generate loan and deposit growth
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at acceptable margins within its market of operatito generate and grow loans and deposits, thep@oynmust focus on a number of areas
including, but not limited to, the economy, bramofpansion, sales practices, customer and emplayséastion and retention, competition,
evolving customer behavior, technology, producbiation, interest rates, credit performance ofitstomers and vendor relationships.

The Company also considers non-interest income iitapbto its continued financial success. Fee iregeneration is partly related to the
Company’s loan and deposit operations, such assiteggyvice charges, as well as selling finanadiatipcts, such as commercial and personal
insurance through ENBI and non-deposit investmeodycts through ENB.

While the Company reviews and manages all customigs, it has focused increased efforts on sixdgd segments: (1) high value consun
(2) smaller businesses with smaller credit nee®)snjddle market commercial businesses; (4) comialereal estate and construction-related;
(5) diversified leasing portfolio; and (6) robusbss-sell between our insurance, financial sendgesbanking lines of business. These efforts
have resulted in growth in the commercial and fegagpiortfolios, as well as core deposits duringdi007 and 2006.

To support growth in targeted customer units, thekBopened a de-novo branch per year from 2004;20G6plans to open another mid-year
2008. With all new and existing branches, the Camgaas strived to maintain a local community basleitbsophy. The Bank has emphasized
hiring local branch and lending personnel with stydies to the specific local communities it entemsl serves.

The Company has expanded through acquisition, &glyeia its insurance agency segment, where ENBjured LR Frank Agency in
Williamsville, NY in 2007. ENBI also purchased twgencies in 2006 which included Fire Service Ageiny. and a small book of business
from another insurance agency in 2006. Additionahle Company acquired four companies in 2005 &@4 2including the Truax Agency in
July 2005, and Ulrich & Company in October 2004 &fid/ood and Easy PA Agencies in January 2004.dfisally, the Company has entered
a new market for the insurance agency segmentghraaquisition of an existing book of business.

The Bank serves its market through 11 banking effion Western New York, located in Amherst, Ang@larby, Evans, Forestville, Hamburg,
Lancaster, North Boston, West Seneca, North Buftahal Tonawanda. The Compasyrincipal source of funding is through depositsich it
reinvests in the community in the form of loans anestments. Deposits are insured up to the maximpermitted by the Insurance Fund of
the FDIC. The Bank is regulated by the OCC. The Gamy operates in two reportable segments — bardgtigities and insurance agency
activities.

APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The Company’s Consolidated Financial Statementprmeared in accordance with accounting princigkserally accepted in the United
States of America and follow general practices iwithe industries in which it operates. Applicatiminthese principles requires management to
make estimates, assumptions and judgments that &fle amounts reported in the Company’s Consditi&inancial Statements and Notes.
These estimates, assumptions and judgments are baseformation available as of the date of thesididated Financial Statements.
Accordingly, as this information changes, the Cdidated Financial Statements could reflect diffeérestimates, assumptions and judgments.
Certain policies inherently have a greater reliamtéhe use of estimates, assumptions and judgireemisas such, have a greater possibility of
producing results that could be materially diffdréran originally reported. Estimates, assumptems judgments are necessary when assets
and liabilities are required to be recorded atvalue, when a decline in the value of an assetawied on the financial statements at fair value
warrants an impairment write-down or valuation resdo be established, or when an asset or lighiéeds to be recorded contingent upon a
future event. Carrying assets and liabilities at\alue inherently results in more financial stagnt volatility. The fair values and the
information used to record valuation adjustmentscttain assets and liabilities are based eithequmted market prices or are provided by
other third-party sources, when available. Wherdtpiarty information is not available, valuatiorjusiments are estimated in good faith by
management primarily through the use of internahdéow modeling techniques.

The most significant accounting policies followedthe Company are presented in Note 1 to the Culagetl Financial Statements included in
Item 8 of this Report on Form 10-K. These policedsng with the disclosures presented in the ditates to the Company’s Consolidated
Financial Statements contained in this Report amF0-K and in this financial review, provide infoation on how significant assets and
liabilities are valued in the Company’s Consolideénancial Statements and how those values aegrdigted.

Based on the valuation techniques used and th&isgyp®f financial statement amounts to the methpassumptions and estimates underlying
those amounts, management has identified the det@tion of the allowance for loan and
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lease losses and valuation of goodwill to be tlemanting areas that require the most subjectiveorplex judgments, and as such, could be
most subject to revision as new information becoaveslable.

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

The allowance for loan and lease losses represgmagement’s estimate of probable losses in th&'Bdman and lease portfolio. Determin
the amount of the allowance for loan and leasee&sconsidered a critical accounting estimatab®e it requires significant judgment on the
part of management and the use of estimates reflathe amount and timing of expected future céshd on impaired loans and leases,
estimated losses on pools of homogeneous loankases based on historical loss experience anddesaton of current economic trends and
conditions, all of which may be susceptible to igant change. The loan portfolio also represémslargest asset type on the consolidated
balance sheets. Note 1 to the Consolidated FinaBtéements included in Item 8 of this Report onnfr 10-K describes the methodology used
to determine the allowance for loan and lease fosse

Goodwill

The amount of goodwill reflected in the Companyt@nSolidated Financial Statements is required ttebeed by management for impairment
on at least an annual basis. The test for impaitregoodwill on an identified reporting unit ismsidered a critical accounting estimate
because it requires judgment on the part of manageand the use of estimates related to the gragsgbmptions and market multiples used in
the valuation model.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS AND DEVELOPMENTS

Note 1 to the Compar's Consolidated Financial Statements includedemiB of this Report on Form 10-K discusses new attieg policies
adopted by the Company during fiscal 2007 and fpeeed impact of accounting policies recently éssar proposed but not yet required t
adopted. To the extent management believes theiadagd new accounting standards materially afféisesCompany’s financial condition,
results of operations, or liquidity, the impacts discussed in the applicable sections of this idameents Discussion and Analysis of Finan
Condition and Results of Operations and the Natékd Company’s Consolidated Financial Statememdsided in Item 8 of this Report on
Form 10-K.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2007 AND DECEMBER 31, 2006
Net Income

Net income of $3.4 million in 2007 consists of $tblion related to the Compa’s banking activities and $0.9 million related bet
Company’s insurance agency activities. The totaimeme of $3.4 million or $1.23 per basic anditéitl share in 2007 compares to
$4.9 million or $1.81 per basic share and $1.80diated share for 2006.

Supplemental Reporting of Non-GAAP Results of Opertions

In accordance with U.S. generally accepted accogrmfinciples (“GAAP”), included in the computatiohnet income for years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, are gains asddmn the sale of securities and amortizatiomangible assets associated with
acquisitions. To provide investors with greaterhilgy of Evans Bancorp’s operating results, Ev&@scorp uses “net operating income,”
which excludes items that management believes twheoperating in nature. Specifically, “net opergtincome” excludes gains and losses on
the sale of securities and amortization expenseagfisition intangibles. This non-GAAP informatimrbeing disclosed because management
believes that providing these non-GAAP financiabsiges provides investors with information usefulimderstanding the Company’s
financial performance, its performance trends, famahcial position. While the Company’s managemesgs these non-GAAP measures in its
analysis of the Companyperformance, this information should not be vidwe a substitute for financial results determiimeaccordance wit
GAAP or considered to be more important than fimanesults determined in accordance with GAAP, isdt necessarily comparable with
non-GAAP measures which may be presented by otirapanies.

When net income is adjusted for what managemersiders to be “non-operating” items, “net operatingfome was $5.17 million in 2007,
compared to $5.18 million for 2006, and $5.07 miilin 2005. Diluted net operating earnings pereliar 2007 was $1.89 compared with

$1.90 in 2006 and $1.86 in 2005. The reconciliatbnet operating income and diluted net operatiagqiings per share to net income and
diluted earnings per share can be found in thevidlig table.
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Reconciliation of GAAP Net Income to Non-GAAP Net @erating Income

Year ended

December 31
(in thousands, except per she 2007 200¢€ 200%
GAAP Net Income $ 3,36¢ $ 4,921 $ 4,81¢
(Gain) loss on sale of securitie 1,412 (86) (66)
Amortization of intangibles 394 34¢€ 31€
Net operating income $ 5,174 $ 5,181 $ 5,06¢
GAAP diluted earnings per share $ 1.2¢ $ 1.8C $ 177
(Gain) loss on sale of securitie 0.52 (0.09) (0.09)
Amortization of intangibles’ 0.1¢ 0.1: 0.12
Diluted net operating earnings per share $ 1.8¢ $ 1.9 $ 1.8¢

* After any ta:-related effec

Net Interest Income

Net interest income, the difference between intéremme and fee income on earning assets, suldaas and securities, and interest expt
on deposits and borrowings, provides the primasisdfmr the Company’s results of operations.

Net interest income is dependent on the amountyiatds earned on interest earning assets as cedhpathe amounts of and rates paic
interest bearing liabilities.

The following table segregates changes in intexasted and paid for the past two years into amattributable to changes in volume and
changes in rates by major categories of assetfiabilities. The change in interest income and exggedue to both volume and rate has been
allocated in the table to volume and rate chang@sadportion to the relationship of the absolutbad@mounts of the change in each.
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2007 Compared to 2006 2006 Compared to 2005
Increase (Decrease) Due to Increase (Decrease) Due to
(in thousands
Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total

Interest earned ol

Loans $ 2,31t $ 1,19¢ $ 3,51: $ 2,304 $ 1,86¢ $ 4,17:
Taxable securitie (1,520 23C (1,290 (803%) 34¢ (454)
Tax-exempt securitie (227) 23 (19¢) (73 21 (52
Federal funds sol 263 5 26€ (120 52 (68)
Total interes-earning asse $ 837 $ 1,45¢ $ 2,29 $ 1,30¢ $ 2,29( $ 3,59¢
Interest paid on

NOW account: $ 1) $ 12 $ 11 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Savings deposil 2 13¢ 13t (56) 17¢ 122
Muni-vest 151 5) 14€ (504) 60C 96
Time deposit: (84 867 783 86t 1,65¢ 2,521
Fed funds purchased and other borrow (667) 57 (610 1C 37¢ 38¢
Total interes-bearing liabilities $ (599 $ 1,064 $ 46F $ 31t $ 2,818 $ 3,12¢

Net interest income, before the provision for laaud lease losses, increased $1.8 million or 128%4.6.7 million in 2007, as compared

$14.8 million in 2006. As indicated in the tableogb, the increase in 2007 attributable to volums $h4 million, while the amount

attributable to rates was $0.4 million. The inceeasthe volume of loans and leases was somewfsstdfy lower securities volume among
interest-earnings assets, while lower volumesniretdeposits and federal funds purchased and otinenkings provided the increase in net
interest income due to lower interest-bearing ligbvolume. $0.4 million of the increase in netanest income was due to more favorable rates
in loans and securities, somewhat offset by higaters being paid on interest-bearing liabilitiesstigularly time deposits. Overall, loan and
lease growth and improved rates on loans and lgaeg&gled much of the positive impact on net inséiecome. Net loans and leases grew
from an average balance of $268.5 million yieldin@0% in 2006 to an average balance of $297.9anilfielding 8.03% in 2007. The lower
securities, time deposits, and other borrowingsimas are reflective of the Company’s balance stesétucturing in 2007.

Total loan and lease growth continues to be drimenommercial loan and lease growth, which incrddse7%, from $189.7 million average
balance for 2006 to $211.8 million average balan@907. The success of the Company’s small tigaging subsidiary accounted for 58.8%
or $13.0 million of the total $22.1 million increa) average commercial loans. Consumer loansdserk9.1% from $81.8 million average
balance in 2006 to $89.2 million in 2007.

In addition to changes in the composition of thenpany’s earning assets and interest-bearing fiegslichanges in interest rates and spreads
can impact net interest income. Net interest spreathe difference between yield on earning asmedsrate on interest-bearing liabilities, was
3.39% in 2007, compared to 3.05% in 2006. The yoeldnteresiearning assets increased 65 basis points from 6i832306 to 7.00% in 200
while the cost of interest-bearing liabilities inased 31 basis points, from 3.30% in 2006 to 3.812007.

Net interes-free funds consist largely of non-interest-beadegosit accounts and stockholders’ equity, otfgebankewned life insurance at
non-interest-earning assets, including goodwill emtdngible assets. Average net interest-free fuotdded $74.9 million in 2007 compared to
$63.8 million in 2006. The contribution of net irgst-free funds to net interest margin was 0.66%20@7, compared with 0.50% in 2006. This
increase is primarily due to growth in non-interlesaring demand deposits and stockholders’ equi0D7.

Reflecting the changes to the net interest spreddtee contribution of interest-free funds as désd above, the Company’s net interest
margin increased from 3.55% during 2006 to 4.05%ngL2007.
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During 2007, the FRB held its benchmark overnigliefral funds target rate steady for the first eigbhths of the year. However, starting in
September, the FRB cut rates at three successigtnge in an effort to boost a slowing economy. €hts resulted in a total reduction in the
target overnight rate of 100 basis points to 4.2Bthe beginning of 2008, as economic indicat@tedorated further, the FRB continued to
aggressively cut rates and reduced its target gy@rmate by an additional 125 basis points. Whilés in the federal funds target rate usually
helps the banking industry’s net interest margiheofactors, such as the shape of the yield c{owthe spread between short-term and long-
term interest rates) and intense pricing competitio loans and deposits may continue to applyqueson the Company’s margin.

The Bank regularly monitors its exposure to interate risk. Management believes that the properagement of interest-sensitive funds will
help protect the Bank’s earnings against extrena@gés in interest rates. The Bank’s Asset/LiabMignagement Committee (“ALCQO”) meets
monthly for the purpose of evaluating the Bank’srstterm and long-term liquidity position and thetgntial impact on capital and earnings as
a result of changes in interest rates. The Banlaapted an asset/liability policy that specifidgaimum limits for liquidity and capital ratios.
This policy includes setting ranges for the negatimpact acceptable on net interest income anti®feir value of equity as a result of a shift
in interest rates. The asset/liability policy aiscludes guidelines for investment activities andds management. At its monthly meetings,
ALCO reviews the Banls status and formulates its strategies based serduwconomic conditions, interest rate forecdsts) demand, depo:
volatility and the Bank’s earnings objectives.

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

The allowance for loan and lease losses repretfem@mmount charged against the Bank’s earningstédbksh a reserve or allowance sufficient
to absorb probable loan and lease losses base@agement’s evaluation of the Bank’s loan portfdiactors considered by the Bank’s
management in establishing the allowance includecttlectibility of individual loans, current loaoncentrations, charge-off history,
delinquent loan percentages, input from regulatggncies and general economic conditions.

On a quarterly basis, management of the Bank nteetview and determine the adequacy of the alleedar loan and lease losses. In mal
this determination, the Bank’s management analgzesiltimate collectibility of the loans in the Bés portfolio by considering feedback
provided by internal loan staff, the Bank’s loamiesv function and information provided by examioats performed by regulatory agencies.

The analysis of the allowance for loan and leassds is composed of three components: specifidt @léatation, general portfolio allocation
and a subjectively determined allocation. The djgeciedit allocation includes a detailed revieweafch loan in accordance with SFAS

No. 114,“Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loaarid No. 118, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairnhefia Loan — Income
Recognition and Disclosure,” and an allocation elmbased on this analysis. The general portféboation consists of an assigned reserve
percentage based on the internal credit ratingolfiédoan, using the Bank’s historical loss expeeand industry loss experience where the
Bank does not have adequate or relevant experience.

The subjective portion of the allowance reflectsagement’s current assessment of the New York StatéVestern New York economies, as
well as the increased concentration of the Compsapgttfolio in commercial loans and riskier diripncing leases. Both the local and New
York State economies haves lagged behind nati@ualanic growth in recent years. Marginal job grovatbmbined with a declining
population base, has left the Bank’s primary mankete susceptible to potential credit problemssThiparticularly true of commercial
borrowers. Commercial loans represent a segmesigoificant past growth, as well as an area of eatration in the Bank’s real estate
portfolio. Recent national economic forecasts iatBa likelihood of slowed economic growth, withiacreasing chance of a recession. Also,
management is cognizant that commercial real egtdtes may be susceptible to decline in an adwseomy. The Bank’s management
believes that the Bank’s loan and lease loss ahee@omplies with United States Generally Acceptedounting Principles and regulations
promulgated by the OCC, and is reflective of itsessment of the local environment, as well as siraged growth trend in commercial loans.
For further information, see Note 1 to the Compargonsolidated Financial Statements included im Beof this Report on Form 10-K.

The Company’s provision for loan and lease lossas $1.9 million and $1.1 million in 2007 and 206&pectively. Total non-performing
loans amounted to $0.7 million and $0.7 milliorDacember 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The following table provides an analysis of th@athnce for loan and lease losses, the total ofgehatffs, non-performing loans and total
allowance for loan and lease losses as a perceatagtal loans outstanding for the five years ehBDecember 31:
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2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(in thousands
Balance, beginning of ye. $ 3,73¢ $ 3,211 $ 2,99¢ $ 2,53¢ $ 2,14¢
Provisions for loan and lease los 1,917 1,12¢ 76¢ 48k 48C
Addition to allowance from acquisitic — — — 13C —
Recoveries 17C 19¢ 11¢€ 6C 8
Loans and leases charged (1,277 (79¢) (675) (215) (95)
Balance, end of ye: $ 4,55¢ $ 3,73¢ $ 3,211 $ 2,99¢ $ 2,53¢
Net charg-offs to average loans and lea 0.37% 0.22% 0.23% 0.0&% 0.05%
Non-performing loans and leases to total loans anak& 0.22% 0.2%% 0.72% 0.82% 0.4%%
Allowance for loan and lease losses to total |car lease 1.41% 1.2% 1.22% 1.36% 1.35%
An allocation of the allowance for loan and leassses by portfolio type over the past five yealig¥es (dollars in thousands):
Percen Percen Percent ¢ Percent ¢ Percent ¢
Balance of loans Balance of loans Balance loans in Balance loans in Balance loans in
at in each at in each at each at each at each
12/31/2007 categon 12/31/200¢ categon 12/31/200¢ category 12/31/200¢ category 12/31/200: category
Attributable to total Attributable to total Attributable  to total Attributable  to total Attributable  to total
to: loans: to: loans to: loans to: loans to: loans
Real estate Loar $ 1,597 73.% $ 1,552 76.1% $ 1,46 80.4% $ 1,76¢ 82.5% $ 1,61¢ 85.1%
Commercial Loan 1,137 10.7% 88¢ 10.2% 851 11.5% 61€ 13.(% 384 12.%%
Consumer Loan 264 0.6% 194 1.1% 18: 1.1% 187 1.2% 147 1.4%
All other Loans 6 1.5% 41 1.€% 34 0.5% — 1.1% — 0.6%
Direct financing lease 1,40z 13.%% 90t 11.(% 47C 6.5% 13C 2.1% — —%
Unallocatec 14¢ —% 157 —% 21C —% 29€ —% 38¢ —%
Total $ 455t 100.(% $ 3,73¢ 100.(% $ 3,211 100.% $ 2,99¢ 100.% $ 2,53¢ 100.(%

Both the total increase in allowance for loan aabE losses and allocation of the allowance to emneiad loans and direct financing leases are
in response to the increase in commercial loangtantigher risk associated with direct financiegdes. The increased allowance to
commercial categories addresses the Bank’s stecatiegision to continue growing this product, aslaslthe local economy, which has lagged
the national economy. Commercial loans are moreegible to decreases in credit quality in cyclidanturns and the larger individual
balances of commercial loans expose the Bank ¢etdosses. The increased allowance for direchfimay leases is in response to the growth
of that portfolio during 2007, as well as the iraged level of charge-offs. Similar to commercialns, direct financing leases are susceptible to
decreases in credit quality in cyclical downtumnmghie economy. The direct financing lease portfoliyeased to $45.1 million or 13.9% of tc
loans at December 31, 2007 from $31.7 million a0 of total loans at December 31, 2006.

Much of the current economic turmoil in the natibeeonomy is due to the sub-prime mortgage creditsc As the Company has no exposure
to sub-prime lending, and the local real estateketaras not experienced the same high levels akajgiion seen in high-growth parts of the
country, the faltering sub-prime credit market hasaffected the Comparsg/loan portfolio, and local real estate values haweained steady
slightly up. However, management is closely moiniigpthe loan portfolio for potential losses andgiéned risk factors with customers. In
particular, management is monitoring the leasingfplo for signs of weakness in the most challerpéconomic environment since it was
acquired.
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The allowance for loan and lease losses is basedamagement’s estimate, and ultimate losses wiyl fram current estimates. Factors
underlying the determination of the allowance fmarl and lease losses are continually evaluateddmagement based on changing market
conditions and other known factors. Some factoedging the allocation of loan losses have changetD07 as a result of the evaluation of
underlying risk factors within each loan categdrize underlying methodology to determine the adegoéthe allowance for loan losses is
consistent with prior years.

Non-Interest Income

Total non-interest income decreased approximat2l§ fillion or 17.9% in 2007 over 2006. This congzato an increase of approximately
$0.4 million or 3.8% in 2006 over 2005. The declim@on-interest income was a result of the $2.[aniloss on sale of securities realized in
June 2007 as part of the Company’s strategy touaste its balance sheet. Insurance revenue isedeh 3% to $6.5 million as expanded
markets through acquisition and new accounts heipedfset the impact on premiums of a soft inseeamarket.

Non-Interest Expense

Total non-interest expense increased approxim&ely million or 8.2% in 2007 over 2006. The largestease in non-interest expense was in
the salaries and employee benefits line, whicheimsed $1.0 million, or 9.9%, in comparison to 200& new branch which opened in
Tonawanda, NY in December 2006, ENBI acquisiti@ms] merit increases contributed to the increaskdyseosts.

Occupancy expense increased approximately $0.mibr 10.8% from 2006 to 2007, primarily due te trew branch office and ENBI's
acquisition growth in both 2007 and a full yeaegpense for those acquisitions made in 2006.

Professional services expense increased $0.1 mithio14.3%, in 2007 over 2006, mainly due to iaserl accounting costs and consulting
Professional accounting fees increased as a m@stdimpliance with Sarbanes-Oxley and an increasled amount of state tax work due to
ENL'’s continued growth. The Company utilized cotisigl services on a more frequent basis in 200¥doious reasons, including branch
network consulting, executive recruitment fees, imwestor relations outsourcing.

Amortization of intangibles increased approximatlyl million, reflecting the LR Frank acquisitibg ENBI in 2007, as well as a full year of
amortization from the two insurance agency acqaisitcompleted in 2006.

The efficiency ratio expresses the relationshippgrating expenses to revenues. The Company’segiig ratio, or non-interest operating
expenses divided by the sum of net interest incantenon-interest income (exclusive of gains anddsgrom investment securities), was
66.65% in 2007, improved from 67.37% in 2006.

Taxes

The provision for income taxes in 2007 of $1.1 iwillreflects an effective tax rate of approximat2B/4%. This compares to $1.8 million or
27.2% in 2006. The decrease in effective tax mtaainly a result of the loss of $2.3 million reelil on the sale of securities in June 2007. The
proposed 2008 New York State budget bill contaipsaision that would continue to allow banks wétdsets under $2 billion the exclusion of
dividends paid by a Real Estate Investment Trussisliary (“REIT”). Until the bill is enacted as grosed, the Company could lose the tax
benefit associated with the REIT if the legislatisthanged to exclude the deduction. If the dednds lost in the budget, the Company may
have to increase the 2008 tax provision by appratety $0.2 million as compared to 2007 beginninthafirst quarter of 2008.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2006 AND DECEMBER 31, 2005

Net Income

Net income of $4.9 million in 2006 consisted ofB#illion related to the Compa’s banking activities and $0.8 million related ket
Company’s insurance agency activities. The totaimeme of $4.9 million or $1.81 per share, basid $1.80 per share, diluted in 2006
compared to $4.8 million or $1.77 per share, basit diluted for 2005.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income, before the provision for laaud lease losses, increased $0.5 million or 3.3%d408 million in 2006, as compared
$14.4 million in 2005. The increase in 2006 waslaitable to the increase in average interest-agrassets of $6.1 million, and an increase of
$1.4 million in average interest-bearing liabiltiever 2005. This
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increase accounted for an increase in net intaresie due to volume of approximately $1.0 millidine increase in net interest income du
volume increase on average earning assets wasrilidh. The main factor for the increase in averagrning assets was loans and leases
outstanding, which totaled $268.5 million in 2006, 13.4% from $236.8 million in 2005.

Non-Interest Income

Total non-interest income increased approximatély $nillion or 3.8% in 2006 over 2005. This comphte an increase of approximately
$1.9 million or 21.8% in 2005 over 2004. As ENBImages to a soft premium insurance market, its tevevas up slightly to $6.5 million, o
$0.1 million increase from 2005. The largest comgarof the increase in non-interest income wastduiee increased activity in leasing. Fees
from leasing increased $0.2 million or 104% comgare2005. These fees included mainly late chaegs ind non-compliance fees.

Non-Interest Expense

Total non-interest expense increased approxim&@y million or 1.9% in 2006 over 2005. The effiig ratio was 67.37% in 2006 compared
to 68.53% in 2005. The largest increase in norrésteexpense was in the salaries and employeeitseing, which increased $0.3 million, or
3.6% in comparison to 2005. The Tonawanda brantheoBank, increased loan staffing, ENBI acquisgiand merit increases contributed to
the increased salary costs. Notably, the leasiegatipns added personnel to accommodate the grexpigrienced in 2006, as well as
incentives paid to ENL personnel based on perfoo@an

Occupancy and repair and maintenance expense $ectegproximately $0.1 million or 2.7% from 2002@06, primarily due to ENBI's
acquisition growth in both fiscal 2006 and a fudlay of expense for those acquisitions made in 2005.

Professional services expense decreased $0.1mitlidl5.0% in 2006 over 2005, mainly due to ser¥@r a revenue enhancement and
incentive compensation project in 2005 which ditlexcur in 2006.

Other expenses increased $0.1 million or approxina.3% in 2006. Expenses associated with Intdrasking, ATM expense, telephone and
data line costs, postage costs, maintenance ocldsesl properties and correspondent bank servimeyeh fall under miscellaneous expenses.
The increase reflected other transaction-basednsggerelated to the increased size and volumesddimk’s business.

Amortization of intangibles increased approximat®yl million, reflecting the two insurance agemcyjuisitions completed in 2006.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

The Company had total assets of $442.7 millioneteémnber 31, 2007, a decrease of $31.2 million@¥&rom $473.9 million at

December 31, 2006. Net loans of $319.6 millionéased 12.0% or $34.2 million over 2006. Securdieeased $65.3 million or 47.4% from
2006. Deposits decreased by $29.9 million or 8.8f6ckholders’ equity increased $3.8 million or 9.996t unrealized gains on investment
securities held by the Bank were $0.7 million at&aber 31, 2007 compared to a net unrealized f52.0 million at December 31, 2006.

Loans and Leases

Net loans and leases comprised 72.4% and 64.2%ed@ompan’s total average earning assets in 2007 and 2@86¢ctively. Actual yeaend
balances increased 12.0% in 2007, as compareditwegase of 11.1% in 2006. The Company continadsdus its lending on commercial ¢
residential mortgages, commercial loans, home gdpgins and direct financing leases. Commerciatgages make up the largest segment of
the portfolio at 40.5% of total loans. Residentredrtgages comprise 21.2% of the loan portfolio &rido are home equity loans. Other
commercial loans account for 10.7% of outstandaam$. Commercial loans total $34.6 million at DebenB1, 2007, reflecting a 16.8% or
$5.0 million increase in 2007 over 2006. Directfige leasing totaled $45.1 million representin@%s3of the Company total loans and leas

at December 31, 2007 compared to $31.7 millionld6 bf total loans and leases at December 31, R@&dential mortgages totaled

$68.6 million at December 31, 2007, reflecting &B% or $10.9 million increase in 2007 over 2006.

At December 31, 2007, the Bank had a loan/depatd of 99.5%. This compares to a loan/deposibrati81.3% at December 31, 2006. The
sharp increase in the ratio was a result of theofblbf municipal deposits.
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At December 31, 2007, the Bank retained the sengidghts to $28.4 million in long-term residentibrtgages sold to the FNMA. This
compares to a loan servicing portfolio principaldnae of $28.7 million at December 31, 2006. Tharsgement that the Bank has with FNMA
allows it to offer long-term mortgages without espee to the associated interest rate risks, whtknming customer account relationships. In
2007 and 2006, the Bank sold loans to FNMA totaipgroximately $2.8 million and $2.6 million, resfieely. Including residential
mortgages held on the Company’s balance sheetpthleresidential mortgage servicing portfolio B7&nillion at December 31, 2007.

Securities and Interest-bearing Deposits at Banks

Securities and federal funds sold made up 27.68%eBank’s total average interest earning asse2807 compared to 35.8% in 2006. These
categories provide the Bank with additional soudguidity and income. The Bank’s securities ffolio outstanding balances declined
47.4% in 2007 from 2006. The Bank continues to helsrge concentration in tax-advantaged munidipalds, which make up 52.3% of the
portfolio at December 31, 2007 versus 30.9% at Bsez 31, 2006 and U.S. government-sponsored adgmmys of various types, which
comprise 19.6% of the total at December 31, 2003uge22.5% at December 31, 2006. The concentratiohnS. government-sponsored
mortgage-backed securities declined significandlgause many of them were sold in the Company’sibalaheet restructuring in June 2007.
These securities make up 23.2% of the portfolibetember 31, 2007, versus 43.8% at December 38, 2@0a member of both the Federal
Reserve System and the Federal Home Loan BanBahk is required to hold stock in those entitidse3e investments made up 4.9% of the
portfolio at December 31, 2007 versus 2.8% of thwtfplio at December 31, 2006. The credit qualityie securities portfolio is believed to be
strong, with 96.9% of the securities portfolio gaémg the equivalent of a Moody’s rating Aaa.

The Company sold $45 million in securities in J2067 at a loss of $2.3 million to restructure théhce sheet. The Company decided to
reduce its amount of municipal deposits as theyevignding investment securities at a negative maaigd, in management’s view, not
providing an adequate return on equity. Most ofgbeurities sold were U.S. government-sponsoredgage-backed securities.

All fixed and adjustable rate mortgage pools cantacertain amount of risk related to the uncetyaifi prepayments of the underlying
mortgages. Interest rate changes have a directingpgorepayment rates. The Company uses a thitgl-paveloped computer simulation
model to monitor the average life and yield voitibf mortgage pools under various interest rasuanptions.

Interest-bearing deposits at banks are largely taiaied for liquidity purposes. The average balaneitained in interest-bearing deposits at
banks increased in 2007 to 1.6% of total averageirgpassets from 0.3% in 2006. At December 3172€f Company was in an overnight
borrowed position of $34.0 million with the Fedelrldme Loan Bank of New York and First TennesseekBaich is reported as part of
“other borrowed funds” on the Company’s Consolidadalance Sheets included under Iltem 8 of this RepoForm 10-K.

SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investmemt$iebt and Equity Securities,” outlines accountingl reporting requirements for
investment securities. The Company designategallrties at the time of purchase as either “helchaturity” or “available for sale.”

Securities designated as held to maturity aredtatehe Companyg’ Consolidated Balance Sheets included under Itefrtt8s Report on For
10-K at amortized cost. Those designated as avaifabsale are reported at fair market value. &t@mber 31, 2007, $2.3 million in securities
were designated as held to maturity. These borelpranarily municipal investments that the Bank hesle in its local trade area.

The available for sale portfolio totaled $70.1 oill or approximately 96.9% of the Bank’s securipestfolio at December 31, 2007. Net
unrealized gains and losses on available for sadergies resulted in a net unrealized gain of $0illon at December 31, 2007, as compare

a loss of $1.9 million at December 31, 2006. Urized gains and losses on available for sale sézsiate reported, net of taxes, as a separate
component of shareholders’ equity. At December2BD7, the impact to equity was a net unrealized ghapproximately $0.4 million.

Certain securities available for sale were in arealizved loss position at December 31, 2007. Mamage: has assessed those securities
available for sale in an unrealized loss positiobDecember 31, 2007 and determined the declinaiirvlue below amortized cost to be
temporary. In making this determination, managensensidered the period of time the securities viregeloss position, the percentage decline
in comparison to the securities amortized costfitrencial condition of the issuer (primarily gomenent or government-sponsored enterprises)
and the Company’s ability and intent to hold theseurities until their fair value recovers to thainortized cost. Management believes the
decline in fair value is primarily related to marketerest rate fluctuations and not to the crddierioration of the individual issuer.
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Deposits

Total deposits decreased $29.9 million or 8.4%06872from 2006. The decline in deposits is due #oitittentional roll-off of certain municipal
time deposits in excess of $100,000 and muni-vasiunts belonging to customers who did not mairtr@insactional accounts with the Bank.
The most significant source of funding for the Camypis core deposits. Core deposit funding consist®n-interest bearing deposits, NOW
accounts, savings deposits, muni-vest, and timesiepunder $100,000. Core deposits decreaseddili@n from $275.5 million at
December 31, 2006 to $274.7 million at Decembe280y. Increases of $7.8 million and $2.1 milliarsavings accounts and time deposits
under $100,000, respectively, were offset by degeén muni-vest of $6.7 million, demand deposit$29 million, and NOW accounts of
$1.1 million.

Certificates of deposit in excess of $100,000 desed 36.3% to $51.1 million at December 31, 200 $80.2 million at December 31, 2006.
These funds are generally not considered core @epos

Pension

The Company maintains a qualified defined benefitgion plan, which covers substantially all empésyeAdditionally, the Company has
entered into individual retirement agreements wéttain of its executive officers providing for unfled supplemental pension benefits under
the Company’s Supplemental Executive Retirememi Rl “SERP”). The Company’s pension expenselferdefined benefit pension plan,
and the SERP, approximated $0.7 million, $0.7 onilland $0.6 million for each of the years endeddbdzer 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, and is calculated based upon a nupfletuarial assumptions, including an expected-term rate of return on the Company’s
plan assets of 7.50% for 2007, 2006 and 2005; cosgi®n rate increases of 4.75% for 2007, 2006280% for the defined benefit pension
plan and 5.00% in 2007, 2006 and 2005 for the SERP.

The expected long-term rate of return on pensian pksets assumption was determined based oridasteturns earned by equity and fixed
income securities, adjusted to reflect future reexpectations based on pension plan targeted alfsetion. In evaluating compensation rate
increases, the Company evaluated historical saitgy, as well as expected future increases. Thep@oynwill continue to evaluate its actua
assumptions, including its expected rate of retumth compensation rate increases at least annaatiywill adjust as necessary.

The Company bases its determination of pensionresger income on a market-related valuation oftasagnich reduces year-to-year
volatility. Investment gains or losses for thispose are the difference between the expected retdenlated using the market-related value of
assets and the actual return based on the matk&tdevalue of assets.

The discount rate utilized by the Company for dataing future pension obligations is based on @re\wf longterm bonds that receive one
the two highest ratings given by a recognized gatigency. The discount rate determined on thishes increased from 5.75% at
September 30, 2006 to 6.35% at September 30, 200A€ measurement date), for the Compsuaggfined benefit pension plan and from 5.
at December 31, 2006, to 6.25% at December 31, @iithe measurement date) for the SERP.

To demonstrate the sensitivity of pension expeasthénges in the Compasypension plan assumptions, 25 basis point incsgaséhe rate o
return on plan assets would have resulted in eedserin pension expense of $17 thousand; thefraterease in compensation would have
resulted in an increase in pension expense of @&tnd; and the discount rate would have resulteddiecrease in pension expense of $37
thousand. Decreases of 25 basis points in thosenggi®ns would have resulted in similar changeasnount, but in the opposite direction fr.
the changes presented in the preceding sentence.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had cumulativecognized actuarial losses of approximatel$ $dillion that could result in an
increase in the Company’s future pension expengerding on several factors, including whether doskes at each measurement date exceet
ten percent of the greater of the projected bepéfijation or the market-related value of plareéssin accordance with GAAP, net
unrecognized gains or losses that exceed thathibicbare required to be amortized over the expesgedce period of active employees, and
are included as a component of net pension costréiation of these net unrealized losses had ffleeteof increasing the Company’s pension
expense by approximately $96 thousand in 2007 t$@4sand in 2006 and $65 thousand in 2005.

The Company contributed $0.5 million to the Pen$?tam in 2007.
Management recently completed an analysis of tH:&a Benefit Pension Plan and the Evans NatiormalkBEmployee Savings Plan — 401
(k). Management considered industry trends, rediomapetition, as well as the new
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regulatory requirements involved in maintainingtbatdefined benefit pension plan, as well as tHgld(Pplan. Based upon the analysis, there
were significant changes made to the Defined BeRefnsion Plan and 401(k) plan in order to remainpetitive with the industry.

Effective January 31, 2008, the Defined BenefitdtmmPlan was frozen. All benefits eligible papigints have accrued in the plan to date will
be retained. Employees will not continue to acadditional benefits in the plan from that date. Eogpes will be eligible to receive these
benefits at normal retirement age. For the 401i@g) remployees now receive a 100% match from thagamy on contributions up to 4% of
base salary, and a 50% match on contributionsgréan 4% of base salary, up to 8% of salary. Byg@s vest in employer contributions ¢
six years. Previously, the Company contributed T&noemployee’s salary, regardless of employeeritnritons, and 25% of an employee’s
contribution up to 4% of base salary. Under thevipies benefits, employees vested in the employetrittions immediately.

Liquidity

The Company utilizes cash flows from its investmamtfolio and federal funds sold balances to marthg liquidity requirements it
experiences due to loan demand and deposit flichsatThe Bank also has many borrowing optionsaAsember of the FHLB, the Bank is
able to borrow funds at competitive rates. Givendhrrent collateral available, advances of up3®.& million can be drawn on the FHLB via
the Bank’s Overnight Line of Credit Agreement. An@unt equal to 25% of the Bank’s total assets cbalorrowed through the advance
programs under certain qualifying circumstance® Bhnk also has the ability to purchase up to $@dliibn in federal funds from its

correspondent banks. By placing sufficient collaltér safekeeping at the Federal Reserve BankB#mk could also borrow at the FRB's
discount window. Additionally, the Bank has accessapital markets as a funding source.

The cash flows from the investment portfolio adered, so that securities mature at regular iaterto provide funds from principal and
interest payments at various times as liquiditydsemay arise. Contractual maturities are also lesttjevith consideration as to the volatility of
market prices, so that securities are availablesdte from time-to-time without the need to incign#ficant losses. At December 31, 2007,
approximately 15.3% of the Bank’s securities hadurmity dates of one year or less, and approximat8l$% had maturity dates of five years
or less. At December 31, 2007, the Bank had net-gbon liquidity of $28.2 million as compared t8%6 million at December 31, 2006.
Available assets of $76.7 million, less public gnuichased funds of $149.8 million, resulted inrgglderm liquidity ratio of 51% at

December 31, 2007 versus 80% at December 31, 2006.

Management, on an ongoing basis, closely monitmsompany’s liquidity position for compliance wittternal policies, and believes that
available sources of liquidity are adequate to mgmding needs in the normal course of businessidgament does not anticipate engaging in
any activities, either currently or the long-teffor, which adequate funding would not be availalild ould therefore result in significant
pressure on liquidity.

Contractual Obligations

The Company is party to contractual financial adfigns, including repayment of borrowings, opemgigase payments and commitments to
extend credit. The table below presents certamréufinancial obligations.

Payments due within time period at December 31, 2007
(in thousands

Due After
0-12 Month: 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years Total
Securities sold under agreement to repurc $ 3,82¢ $ — $ — $ — $ 3,82¢
Operating lease obligatiol 52¢€ 89¢ 721 3,84z 5,987
Other borrowed fund 34,74 27C 69 13,00( 48,081
Junior subordinated debentu — — — 11,33( 11,33(
Total $ 39,09: $ 1,16¢ $ 79C $28,17: $69,22:
Interest expense on fixed rate d $ 484 $ 928 $ 90z $ 424 $ 2,73
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The Company'’s variable rate debt included in otl@rowed funds is related to sheetm funding which is used only to cover seasounatling
needs, which are subject to fluctuation.

At December 31, 2007, the Company had commitmengstend credit of $63.3 million compared to $6@i8ion at December 31, 2006. For
additional information regarding future financiainsmitments, this disclosure should be read in amtjan with Note 15 to the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements included in I8ofi this Report on Form 10-K.

Capital

The Company and Bank have consistently maintaiegdlatory capital ratios at, or above, well capitad standards. For further detail on
capital and capital ratios, see Note 19 to the Gomijs Consolidated Financial Statements includetkuttem 8 of this Report on Form 10-K.

Total Company stockholders’ equity was $43.3 millat December 31, 2007, up from $39.5 million at&weber 31, 2006. Equity as a
percentage of assets was 9.8% at December 31, @@@pared to 8.3% at December 31, 2006. Book auehare of common stock rose to
$15.74 at December 31, 2007, up from $14.46 at Dbee 31, 2006.

Included in stockholders’ equity was accumulatdteotomprehensive income which reflects the net-aétx impact of unrealized gains or
losses on investment securities classified asabailfor sale. Net unrealized gains were $0.4 ami]lor $0.16 per share of common stock, at
December 31, 2007, as compared to net unrealizsg$oon available-for-sale investment securitiekld® million, and $0.43 per share of
common stock, at December 31, 2006. Such unreatjaets and losses are generally due to changeseirest rates and represent the
difference, net of applicable income tax effectw@en the estimated fair value and amortized costvestment securities classified as
available-for-sale.

The Company paid cash dividends per share of constomk of $0.71 in 2007 and $0.68 in 2006. Theddimd payout is continually reviewed
by management and the CompanBoard of Directors. The dividend payout ratiojehirepresents cash dividends paid, divided bynueme,
was 57.77% and 37.70% for the years 2007 and 288pectively.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss from adverse chanigemarket prices and/or interest rates of thekBafinancial instruments. The primary
market risk the Company is exposed to is interast risk. The core banking activities of lendingl aleposit-taking expose the Bank to interest
rate risk, which occurs when assets and liabiliteeprice at different times and by different amisuas interest rates change. As a result, net
interest income earned by the Bank is subjecteceffects of changing interest rates. The Bank oreasnterest rate risk by calculating the
variability of net interest income in the futureripels under various interest rate scenarios usiogged balances for interest-earning assets
and interest-bearing liabilities. Management's géiphy toward interest rate risk management isrtiv the variability of net interest income.
The balances of financial instruments used in tlogeptions are based on expected growth from fatedsbusiness opportunities, anticipated
prepayments of loans and investment securitieseapdcted maturities of investment securities, laardsdeposits. Management supplements
the modeling technique described above with théyaisaof market values of the Bank’s financial mishents and changes to such market
values given changes in interest rates.

The Bank’s Asset-Liability Committee, which incladmembers of the Bank’s senior management, mortherBank’s interest rate sensitivity
with the aid of a computer-based model that comsitlee impact of ongoing lending and deposit gatigeactivities, as well as the
interrelationships between the magnitude and timintdpe re-pricing of financial instruments, incing the effect of changing interest rates on
expected prepayments and maturities. When deenuelegpt, the Bank’s management has taken actiongsgertls to do so in the future, to
mitigate the Bank’s exposure to interest rate tiiskhugh the use of on—or off-balance sheet findricgruments. Possible actions include, but
are not limited to, changes in the pricing of l@entl deposit products, modifying the compositiomtdrest-earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities, and other financial instruments usedihterest rate risk management purposes.
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SENSITIVITY OF NET INTEREST INCOME
TO CHANGES IN INTEREST RATES

Calculated (decrease) increase
in projected annual net interest income
(in thousands

December 31, 200 December 31, 200
Changes in interest rat
+200 basis point $(67€) $(85%)
+100 basis point (333 (424)
-100 basis point 394 37¢
-200 basis point 62¢ 551

Many assumptions are utilized by the Bank to calieuthe impact that changes in interest rates raag bn net interest income. The more
significant assumptions related to the rate of gyepents of mortgage-related assets, loan and deqobsines and pricing, and deposit
maturities. The Bank also assumes immediate changeges, including 100 and 200 basis point ragnges. In the event that a 100 or 200
basis point rate change cannot be achieved, theable rate changes are limited to lesser amosntd that interest rates cannot be less than
zero. These assumptions are inherently uncertaipana result, the Bank cannot precisely pred&impact of changes in interest rates on net
interest income. Actual results may differ sigrafitly due to the timing, magnitude, and frequerfcypterest rate changes in market conditions
and interest rate differentials (spreads) betweaturity/re-pricing categories, as well as any atjsuch as those previously described, which
management may take to counter such changes hindfghe uncertainties and assumptions assocvaitbcthe process, the amounts presented
in the table, and changes in such amounts, areamsidered significant to the Bank’s projectedintgrest income.

Financial instruments with off-balance sheet riskacember 31, 2007 included $24.6 million in ubdised lines of credit at an average
interest rate of 7.1%; $25.7 million in fixed réd@n origination commitments at 7.7%; $15.9 millioradjustable rate loan origination
commitments at 7.6%; and $2.6 million in adjustable letters of credit at an approximate average of 9.0%.

The following table represents expected maturitieisterest-bearing assets and liabilities andrtbeiresponding average interest rates.

Expected maturity

year ended Fair

December 31, 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter Total Value
(dollars in thousand:

Interest-Assets

Net loans receivabl $ 49,07% $28,04¢ $20,49¢ $14,04¢ $15,43( $192,46( $319,55¢ $320,00¢
Average interes 9.52% 11.5%% 10.56% 9.34% 7.67% 6.71% 7.97% 7.97%
Investment securitie 11,03¢ 5,052 6,23¢ 5,66¢ 7,09¢ 37,31¢ 72,41( 72,41(
Average interes 3.6(% 4.34% 4.4€% 4.2(% 4.47% 4.55% 4.35% 4.35%
Interest — Liabilities

Interest bearing depos| 223,31¢ 25,70¢ 67% 6,491 24k 12¢ 256,56 258,42¢
Average interes 2.8¢% 4.95% 3.9%% 5.71% 4.24% 7.5(% 3.17% 3.17%

Borrowed funds &
Securities sold under
agreements to

repurchas: 38,56: 164 112 69 — 13,00( 51,90¢ 51,55¢
Average interes 3.3% 5.1%% 6.0(% 6.0(% — 3.4% 3.3™% 3.3%
Junior subordinate

debenture: — — — — — 11,33( 11,33( 11,33(
Average interes — — — — — 7.67% 7.67% 7.67%

When rates rise or fall, the market value of thenpany’s rate-sensitive assets and liabilities iases or decreases. As a part of the Company’
asset/liability policy, the Company has set limi@as on the negative impact to the market valuigsdfalance sheet that would be acceptable.
The Bank’s securities portfolio is priced monthhydaadjustments are made on the balance sheeteotrife market value of the available for
sale portfolio per SFAS No. 115, “Accounting forr@én Investments in Debt and Equity Securitiest'D&cember 31, 2007, the impact to
equity, net of tax, as a result of marking avaiafolr sale securities to market was an unrealiz#d gf $0.4 million. On a monthly basis, the
available for sale portfolio is shocked for immedieate increases of 200 basis points. At Dece®bge2007, the
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Company determined it would take an immediate @®een rates in excess of 200 basis points to mditaithe current capital cushion in excess
of regulatory requirements. The Company’s and thekis capital ratios are also reviewed on a quigrtesis.

Capital Expenditures

Significant planned expenditures for 2008 incluu reconfiguring of an existing building to accontate a new branch office planned for the
first half of the year. There will also be expendis related to furnishing the new branch. The Gongalso plans to institute an automated
teller system in the branch network, as well agousrother facility improvements and technology naglgs. The Company believes it has a
sufficient capital base to support these known@oténtial capital expenditures of approximately7&iillion with current assets.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

There will continually be economic events, suclelzanges in the economic policies of the FRB th#itheve an impact on the profitability of
the Company. Inflation may result in impaired aggetvth, reduced earnings and substandard capttakr The net interest margin can be
adversely impacted by the volatility of interesesathroughout the year. Since these factors doeawn, management attempts to structure the
balance sheet and re-pricing frequency of assetdiailities to avoid a significant concentratithrat could result in a negative impact on
earnings.

Segment Information

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. I'Bisclosures About Segments of an Enterprise arldtBe Information,” the Company’s
reportable segments have been determined basedtapoternal profitability reporting system, whiele comprised of banking activities and
insurance agency activities.

The banking activities segment includes all ofdbvities of the Bank in its function as a fullréiee commercial bank. This includes the
operations of ENL, which provides direct financiegses. Net income from banking activities was $&ilBon in 2007, which represents a $
million or 38.2% decrease from 2006. The decreaset income from banking activities was drivently loss on sale of securities and
increased provision for loan losses somewhat offgeéhe increase in net interest income. Totaltassethe banking activities segment
decreased $31.3 million or 6.8% during 2007 to $230illion at December 31, 2007, due to the salgeglrities in June 2007, offset by gro
in loans during 2007.

The insurance activities segment includes actiwitieENBI, which is a retail property and casuatisurance agency with locations in the
Western New York area. This includes the operata&iriSNB, which provides non-deposit investment patsl. Net income from insurance
activities was $0.9 million in 2007 and 2006. Tatabets of the insurance activities segment wezes$illion at December 31, 2007, which
compares to $12.4 million at December 31, 2006allfevenues increased $83 thousand, or 1.3% o@4. 20

Fourth Quarter Results

Net income was $0.8 million, or $0.29 per basic ditated share, for the quarter ended Decembe2®17, as compared to $1.2 million,
$0.43 per basic and diluted share, for the quarided December 31, 2006. Return on average eqagy/vb5% for the quarter compared with
11.81% in last year’s fourth quarter.

The Company’s net interest margin for the quartas W.36%, up 70 basis points from last year’s foqutarter net interest margin of 3.66%.
The largest contributing factors to the improvemegas the growth of interest free funds, particylamldemand deposits and stockholders’
equity, and the shift in interest-earning asset tinét has less reliance on interest income frorastment securities. Net interest income after
the provision for loan and lease losses was $3ll{omin the fourth quarter 2007, down $0.1 millicr 3.8% from $3.5 million in the same
period of 2006. A higher provision for loan anddedosses reflects loan growth, the internal doadgrof a small number of commercial lo¢
and management’s assessment of projected los@eddan portfolio, particularly its leasing porifm given the current economic environment
and historical trends.

Non-interest income, which represents 36.7% of taaénue, increased 1.5% to $2.53 million from $2miion in last years fourth quarter ¢
strong deposit service charge income growth wassdrat offset by lower bank-owned life insuranceoime, gains on sales of securities, and
other miscellaneous fee income. Revenue from imseraervice and fees was flat for the fourth quat&1.3 million as expanded markets
through acquisition and new accounts helped teebffee impact on premiums of a soft insurance ntarke
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Non-interest expense for the fourth quarter of 20@raased 5.3% to $4.7 million from $4.4 million iretfourth quarter of 2006, due primarily
to personnel and occupancy expenses associatetheibompany’s newest branch office, which openebonawanda, New York in
December 2006.

The efficiency ratio for the fourth quarter of 200@s 65.11%, a 251 basis point improvement wherpeoed with the efficiency ratio of
67.62% in last year’s fourth quarter.
Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

The information called for by this Item is incorpted by reference to the discussion of “Liquidigyid “Market Risk,” including the discussion
under the caption “Sensitivity of Net Interest Ine®to Changes in Interest Rates” included in “l'eriManagement’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Item 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPL EMENTARY DATA

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data caoofsise financial statements as indexed and preddrglow and the Unaudited Quarterly
Financial Data presented in Part Il, Item 8. of tReport.

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Managemer's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Finan&aporting Pfge
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiimm (internal control over financial reportin 44
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiimm (consolidated financial statemer 45
Consolidated Balance She— December 31, 2007 and 20 46
Consolidated Statements of Inco— Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and . 47
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity — Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and : 48
Consolidated Statements of Cash F- Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 49
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 51
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Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taigiing adequate internal control over financigla®ing for Evans Bancorp, Inc. (“the
Company”). Management has assessed the effectsvefiise Company’s internal control over financigborting as of December 31, 2007
based on criteria established in “Internal Contndégrated Framework” issued by the Committee afrSpring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). Based on that assessment, maeagieoncluded that the Company maintained effedtiternal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007.

The Company'’s consolidated financial statementshferfiscal year ended December 31, 2007 wereedibiy KPMG LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm. KPMG LLP alsalaed the effectiveness of the Company’s intermaitol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007, as stated in their report, wajpgiears in the “Report of Independent Registetdid®Accounting Firm” immediately
following this annual report of management.

EVANS BANCORP, INC.

/s/ David J. Nasca
DAVID J. NASCA
President and Chief Executive Offic

s/ Gary A. Kajtoch
GARY A. KAJTOCH
Treasurer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Evans Bancorp, Inc:

We have audited Evans Bancorp, Inc.’s internalrmbaiver financial reporting as of December 31, 20dflased on criteria established in
Internal Control— Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (COSQO). Evans
Bancorp, Inc.’s management is responsible for raaiirig effective internal control over financiapagting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financigboeting, included in the accompanying ManagemeRéport on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to exggen opinion on the Company’s internal controlrdwencial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightfq&@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordwer financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing aaldiaing the design and operating effectivenesstefnal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestaWe believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaasuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetméor external purposes in accordance with gelyesaktepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftajpeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettiiansactions and dispositions of the assetseoédmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®itbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢tisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdates may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Evans Bancorp, Inc. maintainedalirmaterial respects, effective internal contreéofinancial reporting as of December 31,
2007, based on criteria establishedniternal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe
Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@inited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Evans Bancorp, Inc. as of Deae®ih@007 and 2006, and the related consolidaggdmsents of income, stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for each of the years irttihee-year period ended December 31, 2007, anteport dated March 18, 2008 expressed
an unqualified opinion on those consolidated finalnstatements.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Buffalo, New York
March 18, 200¢
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Evans Bancorp, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of Evans Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiasie$ Becember 31, 2007 and 2006, and
the related consolidated statements of incomekBtidders’ equity, and cash flows for each of thargen the three-year period ended
December 31, 2007. These consolidated financitdrsients are the responsibility of the Company’sagament. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated finastaéments based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamigUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether the finestatements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aHasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenewntelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeeferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the financial position of Evans
Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December @27 2nd 2006, and the results of their operatiodistiaeir cash flows for each of the years in
the three-year period ended December 31, 200@rifoomity with U.S. generally accepted accountinggiples.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrste&dements, Evans Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiadepted Securities and Exchange
Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108pnsidering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatemé&tten Quantifying Misstatements in
Current Year Financial Statemerds of January 1, 2006 and Statement of Financiebéating Standards No. 15Bmployers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretiremeangas of December 31, 2006.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), Evans Bancorp
Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting @sDecember 31, 2007, based on criteria estaldighBternal Control — Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrike Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regated March 18, 2008
expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectigsrad the Company'’s internal control over financégorting.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Buffalo, New York
March 18, 200¢
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EVANS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivaler
Cash and due from ban
Interes-bearing deposits at ban
Securities
Available for sale, at fair valu
Held to maturity, at amortized cc
Loans and leases, net of allowance for loan arsklé&zssses of $4,555 in 2007 and $3,739 in -
Properties and equipment, 1
Goodwill
Intangible assel
Bank-owned life insuranc
Other asset

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Deposits:

Demanc

NOW

Regular saving

Muni-vest

Time

Total deposit:

Federal funds purchased and agreements to repersbasritie:
Other short term borrowing
Other liabilities
Junior subordinated debentu
Long term borrowing:
Total liabilities

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

STOCKHOLDERY EQUITY:

Common stock, $.50 par value, 10,000,000 sharémemred; 2,756,731 and 2,745,338 shares issued,

respectively, and 2,751,698 and 2,733,056 sharssamdgling, respectivel
Capital surplut
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)phttx
Less: Treasury stock, at cost (5,033 and 12,28&sheespectively

Total stockholder equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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2007

$ 12,33t
26¢

70,14/
2,26¢
319,55¢
8,36¢
10,04¢
2,507
10,76(
6,48(
$442,72¢

$ 69,26¢
10,14
92,86/
24,53(
129,02¢
325,82¢

3,82¢
33,98(
10,36:
11,33(
14,10:
399,42¢

1,37¢
26,38(
15,61
16

(83)
43,30:
$442,72¢

2006

$ 11,71(
882

133,51
4,211
285,36
8,74:
10,00:
2,20¢
10,14(
7,021
$473,89:

$ 72,12t
11,25:
85,08+
31,24(
156,04
355, 74¢

8,95/
24,75:
9,08¢
11,33(
24,47¢
434,35

1,37¢
26,16(
14,19¢

(1,917)

(26¢)
39,54:
$473,89
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EVANS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

INTEREST INCOME:
Loans
Interest bearing deposits at bal
Securities
Taxable
Non-taxable
Total interest incom
INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposits
Other borrowing
Junior subordinated debentul
Total interest expens
NET INTEREST INCOME
PROVISION FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSE
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR LOAN AND LASE LOSSES
NON-INTEREST INCOME:
Bank charge
Insurance service and fe
Net (loss) gain on sales of securit
Premium on loans so
Bank-owned life insuranc
Life insurance proceec
Other
Total nor-interest incom
NON-INTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries and employee bene
Occupancy
Supplies
Repairs and maintenan
Advertising and public relatior
Professional service
Amortization of intangible:
Other insuranc
Other
Total nor-interest expens
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES

INCOME TAXES
NET INCOME

Net income per common she basic

Net income per common she- diluted
Weighted average number of basic common st
Weighted average number of diluted shs

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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2007

2006

2005

$ 23916 $ 2040f $ 16,23
317 49 11€
2,91¢ 4,20¢ 4,66:
1,68¢ 1,881 1,93
28,831 26,54 22,94¢
10,05 8,97¢ 6,241
1,217 1,86¢ 1,66¢
891 85( 662
12,16: 11,69 8,56¢
16,67 14,84, 14,37
1,917 1,12¢ 76¢
14,75¢ 13,71 13,60
2,23 1,99( 2,071
6,54¢ 6,46€ 6,371
(2,299 14¢ 107
12 10 18
62C 554 51¢
— — 95
1,724 1,61¢ 1,18¢
8,84: 10,77 10,37¢
10,63 9,671 9,33¢
2,271 2,05¢ 1,97¢
29t 302 337
58( 54E 552
36¢ 44z 464
95¢ 83¢ 98¢
641 562 51E
364 347 36€
3,05¢ 2,95¢ 2,86¢
19,18: 17,728 17,40
4,41¢ 6,76/ 6,58(
1,051 1,84¢ 1,761

$ 3366 $ 4921 $ 48I¢

$ 12¢ 0§ 181 $ 177

$ 12¢ 0§ 180 $ 177

2,743,59 2,725,60. 2,722,64

2,743,59 2,727,33 2,723,96!
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EVANS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

(in thousands, except share and per share)

BALANCE - December 31, 200

Comprehensive incom:
Net income
Unrealized loss on available for s
securities, net of reclassification
adjustment and tax effe
Additional minimum pension liability, ne
of tax effect— $51
Total comprehensive incon
Cash dividends ($.65 per common shi
Stock option expens
Re-issuance of 15,856 shares under divid
reinvestment pla
Re-issuance of 11,312 shares under Emplc
Stock Purchase Pl:
Re-issuance of 800 shares under Directors
Stock Option Plai
Fractional shares paid in cash on stock
dividend
Stock dividend 5 percel
Purchase of 19,900 shares for treas
BALANCE - December 31, 200!

Adjustments to initially apply SFAS 158, r
of Taxes— $512
Impact of adopting SAB 108, net of tax $
Comprehensive incom:
Net income
Unrealized gain on available for s:
securities, net of reclassification
adjustment tax effect of $(5
Additional minimum pension liability, ne
of tax effect— $(56)
Total comprehensive incon
Cash dividends ($.68 per common shi
Stock option expens
Re-issuance of 18,754 shares under divide
reinvestment pla
Re-issuance of 10,873 shares under Emplc
Stock Purchase Pl:
Purchase of 26,350 shares for treas
BALANCE - December 31, 200!

Comprehensive incom

Net income

Unrealized gain on available for si
securities, net of reclassification of los
of $1,379 (after tax) and tax effect of
($1,043)

Amortization of prior service cost and net
loss, net of tax effect ($3!

Additional minimum pension liability, net
of taxes ($164
Total comprehensive incon

Cash dividends ($.71 per common shi
Stock option expens

Common Capital
Stock Surplus
$ 1,307 $23,36!
182
(37)
(45)
66 2,69:
$ 1,37: $26,15¢
93
(39
(49)
$ 1,37 $26,16(
131

Accumulated

Other
Retained Comprehensive Treasury
Earnings Income (Loss) Stock
$10,80¢ $ 565 $ (565)
4,81¢
(1,874
(76)
(1,769
2 40C
(23) 274
3 19
(13)
(2,739 (20)
(460)
$11,08: $  (1,38) $ (352
(702)
43
4,921
88
84
(1,85%)
41%
23t
(56E)
$14,19¢ $ (1,919 $ (269)
3,36¢
1,63¢€
52
24%
(1,952)

Total
$35,47¢

4,81¢

(1,879

(76)
2,86¢
(1,762
182

36
20€
16
(13)
__(460)
$36,87¢
(702)
43
4,921

88

84
5,00z

(1,855)
93

374
18€

(565)
$39,54¢

3,36¢

1,63¢
52

245
5,301
(1,957




Re-issued 14,212 shares under dividend

reinvestment pla (32
Issued 3,410 shares under divid¢

reinvestment pla 1 60
Re-issued 2,500 shares of restricted st (53
Issued 7,983 shares for e-out agreemer 4 161
Re-issued 11,137 shares under employee ¢

purchase pla 47)
Purchased 20,600 shares for trea:
BALANCE - December 31, 200 $ 1,37¢ $26,38(

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$15,61:

30¢

53

21¢
(385)

16 $ (89

2738
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EVANS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005
(in thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Interest receive
Fees and commission receiv
Proceeds from sale of loans held for re:
Originations of loans held for res:
Interest paic
Cash paid to employees and suppl
Income taxes pai

Net cash provided by operating activit

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Available for sale securitie

Purchase

Proceeds from sal¢

Proceeds from maturitie
Held to maturity securitie:

Purchase

Proceeds from maturitie
Cash paid for bar-owned life insuranc
Proceeds from barowned life insuranc
Additions to properties and equipmt
Increase in loans, net of repayme
Cash paid on ea-out agreement
Acquisitions

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from borrowin
Repayment of lor-term borrowings
Repayment of shc-term borrowings
(Decrease) increase in depo:
Dividends paic
Fractional shares paid in cash or stock divide
Purchase of treasury sto
Issuance of common sto
Re-issuance of treasury sto

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Beginning of yea

End of yeal

49

2007

$ 28,04
10,62
2,86(
(2,899
(12,22:)
(15,85¢)

(85%)
9,69

(245,90¢)
87,50¢
223,00

(255)
2,20(

(1,263)
(36,737)
(202)
(425)

27,92¢

9,94:
(10,66¢)
(5,129)
(29,920)
(1,957)
(385)

61

43¢

(37,609
12

12,59:

$ 12,60¢

2006

$ 27,40¢
10,12(
2,61¢
(2,602
(11,329)
(15,747)
(2,289)

8,17¢

(13,33
2,11z
33,25¢

(2,139
2,161

(1,400)
(29,68%)
(57)
(497)

(9,581)
2,517
(2,857)
(18,387)
18,94/
(1,855)
(565)
56C
(1,641)
(3,049

15,63¢

$12,59:

2005

$ 23,49
9,83¢
2,47¢
(1,957)
(8,241)

(14,186)
(1,799

9,61¢t

(23,225)
7,07¢
24,61

(1,992)
82C
(1,700)
665
(1,235
(41,356
(420)

(139

(36,897
23,48¢
(9,601)

(12,327)
34,88(
(1,762)

(13
(460)
587
34,79:

7,511

8,12¢

$ 15,63¢

(Continued
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EVANS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005
(in thousands)

RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDEDBOPERATING
ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigea by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Deferred tax benef
Provision for loan and lease los:
Proceeds from sale of loans held for re:
Originations of loans held for res:
Net loss (gain) on sales of ass
Premiums on loans so
Stock options expen:
Changes in assets and liabilities affecting camslv:{
Other asset
Other liabilities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH INVESTMENTS AND
FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES:
Issuance of shares for e-out agreemer
Note payable on acquisitic

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem:
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2007

2006

$ 4,921

1,81«
(291)
1,12¢
2,61¢
(2,60¢)
(140)

2005

$ 4,81¢

1,901
(102)
76¢
2,471
(1,957)
(107)
(18)
182

(125)
1,77¢

»

9,61t

(Concluded
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EVANS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTI NG POLICIES

Organization and General. Evans Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) was organiaed New York business corporation and incorpdrateler
the laws of the State of New York on October 2&8.fbr the purpose of becoming a bank holding camip&hrough August 2004, the
Company was registered with the Federal ReservedBasma bank holding company under the Bank Hol@ompany Act of 1956, as
amended. In August 2004, the Company filed for, @ad approved as, a Financial Holding Company utideBank Holding Company Act.
The Company currently conducts its business thratsgiwvo subsidiaries: Evans National Bank (theriBg, a nationally chartered bank, and
its subsidiaries, Evans National Leasing, Inc. (LENand Evans National Holding Corp. (“ENHC"); afityans National Financial Services,
Inc. (“ENFS”) and its subsidiary, ENBI. Unless ttentext otherwise requires, the term “Company”refmllectively to Evans Bancorp, Inc.
and its subsidiaries. The Company conducts itslessithrough its subsidiaries. It does not engagey other substantial business.

Regulatory Requirements. The Company is subject to the rules, regulatiang, reporting requirements of various regulatagiés,
including the Federal Reserve Board (“FRB”), thel€@al Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”), th#i€® of the Comptroller of the
Currency (“OCC"), and the Securities and Exchangmfission (“SEC").

Principles of Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements includeateounts of the Company, the Bank, ENBI and their
subsidiaries. All material inter-company accoumtd gansactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Accounting Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in camity with U.S. generally accepted accounting piies requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiettthe reported amounts of assets and liaksligied disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeamsl the reported amounts of income and expensexjdhe reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Securities. Securities which the Bank has the positive intemtt ability to hold to maturity are classifiedraedd to maturity and are stated at
cost, adjusted for discounts and premiums thatesm@gnized in interest income over the period &dérlier of the call date or maturity using
the level yield method. These securities repredeht issuances of local municipalities in the Bamnkarket area for which market prices are
not readily available. The amortized cost of theusiies approximates market value. Managemenbgerélly evaluates the financial condition
of the municipalities for impairment.

Securities classified as available for sale aredtat fair value with unrealized gains and logseduded from earnings and reported, net of
deferred income taxes, in accumulated other conemstie income (loss), a component of stockholdegaity. Gains and losses on sales of
securities are computed using the specific idexatifon method.

Securities which have experienced an other-thampdeany decline in fair value are written down toeav cost basis with the amount of the
write-down included in earnings as a realized I0$& new cost basis is not changed for subsegeeateries in fair value. Factors which
management considers in determining whether aniimpat in value of an investment is other than terapy include our intent and ability to
hold securities until fair values recover to anmati cost, the issuer’s financial performance aradt tegkm prospects, the financial condition and
prospects for the issuer’s geographic region addstry, and recoveries in fair value subsequetiiedalance sheet date.

The Bank does not engage in securities tradingities.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. The Company follows the Statement of Financiatdmting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgifgtivities,” as amended. SFAS No. 133 establislee®anting and reporting standards for
derivative instruments and for hedging activiti@bjch require that an entity recognize all derives as either assets or liabilities on a balance
sheet and measure those instruments at fair v@hemges in the fair value of derivatives must lmegaized in earnings when they occur,
unless the derivative qualifies as a hedge. Ifrvdive qualifies as a hedge, a company can ébegse hedge accounting to eliminate or ret
income statement volatility that would arise frogporting changes in a derivative’s fair value ioome.

Loans. The Bank grants mortgage, commercial and consuma@s|to customers. A substantial portion of the joartfolio is represented by
mortgage loans throughout Erie, Chautauqua andaxacpunties. The ability of the Bank’s

51




Table of Contents

debtors to honor their contracts is dependent umponerous factors, including the real estate anégeconomic conditions in this area.

Loans that management has the intent and abilityld for the foreseeable future, or until matuotypay-off, generally are reported at their
outstanding unpaid principal balances adjustedliarge-offs, the allowance for loan losses, anddafigrred fees or costs on those loans.
Interest income is accrued on the unpaid prindijpédnce. Loan origination fees, net of certainaimgigination costs, are deferred and
recognized as an adjustment of the related lodd yging the interest method of accounting.

The Bank considers a loan to be impaired when,caseurrent information and events, it is probabé it will be unable to collect principal
or interest due according to the contractual tesfrthe loan. Smaller balance homogeneous loansddiextively evaluated for impairment.
Loan impairment is measured based on the preskrg vhexpected cash flows discounted at the loafiective interest rate or, as a practical
expedient, at the loan’s observable market prich@ffair value of the collateral if the loan idlateral dependent.

Payments received on impaired loans are applieithstghe recorded investment in the loan. For lazther than those that the Bank expects
repayment through liquidation of the collateral ,emtthe remaining recorded investment in the impdian is less than or equal to the present
value of the expected cash flows, income is reabatea cash basis.

The accrual of interest on commercial loans andgages is discontinued at the time the loan is@@& dlielinquent, unless the credit is well
secured and in process of collection. In all casesis are placed on non-accrual status and ajectub charge-off at an earlier date if
collection of principal or interest is considerexzligtful.

All interest due but not collected for loans theg placed on noaecrual status or charged off is reversed agaitstast income. The interest
these loans is accounted for on the cash-basigsstirecovery method, until it again qualifies foraccrual basis. Loans are returned to accrual
status when all principal and interest amountsreatiially due are brought current, the adverseaigistances which resulted in the delinquent
payment status are resolved, and payments are imademely manner for a period of time suffici¢atreasonably assure their future
dependability.

Leases. The Bank’s leasing operations consists pringjpallthe leasing of various types of small ticketromercial equipment. The Company
follows Statement of Financial Accounting Standa¥ds 13, “Accounting for Leasedbdr all of its direct financing leases. The netéstment il
direct financing leases is the sum of all minimwade payments and estimated residual values,nessned income. All of the Bank’s leases
are classified as direct financing leases.

Insurance Commissions and FeesCommission revenue is recognized as of the éffiediate of the insurance policy or the date thstamer

is billed, whichever is later. The Company alsceregs contingent commissions from insurance congzawhich is based on the overall
profitability of their relationship based primaribn the loss experience of the insurance placatiddCompany. Contingent commissions from
insurance companies are recognized when determinabl

Allowance for Loan and Lease LossesThe allowance for loan and lease losses repregiemtamount charged against the Bank’s earnings to
establish a reserve or allowance sufficient to gbpoobable loan and lease losses based on thésBaakagemens evaluation of the loan a
lease portfolio. Factors considered by the Banlkdsiagement in establishing the allowance includectilectibility of individual loans and
leases, current loan and lease concentrationgyetwdf history, delinquent loan and lease percesgamput from regulatory agencies and
general economic conditions.

On a quarterly basis, management of the Bank niee&view and determine the adequacy of the alleedar loan and lease losses. In mal
this determination, the Bank’s management analjizesitimate collectibility of the loans and leage#s portfolio by considering feedback
provided by internal loan and lease staff, an irtelent loan and lease review function and inforomgpirovided by examinations performed
regulatory agencies.

The analysis of the allowance for loan and leassds is composed of three components: specifidt eléztation, general portfolio allocation
and a subjectively determined allocation. The djmeciedit allocation includes a detailed reviewtloé loan or lease in accordance with SFAS
No. 114,“Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loaarid No. 118, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairmefa Loan — Income
Recognition and Disclosures,” and allocation is enbdsed on this analysis. The general portfolmcation consists of an assigned reserve
percentage based on the internal credit ratingoffiédoan and lease, using the Bank’s historica éogperience and industry loss experience
where the Bank does not have adequate or relexpstience.
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The subjective portion of the allowance for load &ase losses reflects management’s evaluativarafus conditions, and involves a higher
degree of uncertainty because this component dditbeance is not identified with specific problemedits or portfolio segments. The
conditions evaluated in connection with this eletiealude the following: industry and regional cdi@hs, seasoning of the loan and lease
portfolio and changes in the composition of andadhoin the loan and lease portfolio, the strengttl duration of the business cycle, existing
general economic and business conditions in thdidgrareas, credit quality trends in non-accrumenk and leases, historical loan and lease
charge-off experience, and the results of Bankleggty examinations.

Foreclosed Real Estate Foreclosed real estate is initially recordechatlower of book or fair value (net of costs ofptisal) at the date of
foreclosure. Costs relating to development and awgment of property are capitalized, whereas qesising to the holding of property are
expensed. Assessments are periodically performeddnagement, and an allowance for losses is esttelliby a charge to operations if the
carrying value of a property exceeds fair valugeElmsed real estate is classified as other assdtse Consolidated Balance Sheets as of
December 31, 2007. The Company did not have angrdRkal Estate (“ORE") at December 31, 2007.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase prier the fair value of the identifiable net asset
acquired in connection with certain company acgjoiss. The Company accounts for goodwill and othtangible assets in accordance with
SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assetghich revised the accounting for purchased igthle assets, and in general, requires
that goodwill not be amortized, but rather thdtdttested for impairment at least annually. Otleguaed intangible assets with finite lives are
required to be amortized over their estimated liiesngible assets are amortized over estimateflilves ranging from five to ten years. 1
Company periodically assesses whether events oigelsan circumstances indicate that the carryinguars of intangible assets may be
impaired.

Bank-Owned Life Insurance. The Bank has purchased insurance on the liv€oofpany directors and certain members of Bank’BIEN
and ENB’s management. The policies accumulate assgts to meet future liabilities, including theyment of employee benefits, such as
retirement benefits. Increases in the cash surreradee are recorded as other income in the catest@ld statements of income.

Properties and Equipment. Properties and equipment are stated at cosatezsnulated depreciation. Depreciation is compusiag the
straightline method over the estimated useful lives ofakgets, which range from 3 to 39 years. Impairrosses on properties and equipn
are realized if the carrying amount is not recobkrdrom its undiscounted cash flows and exceedfait value.

Loan Servicing. The Bank, in its normal course of business, sEitain residential mortgages which it originatethe Federal National
Mortgage Association (“FNMA”). The Company maintaiservicing rights on the loans that it sells tad#Nand earns a fee thereon. At
December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company had appatedy $28.4 million and $28.7 million, respectiveh unpaid principal balances of
loans that it services for FNMA. For the years ehBecember 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company soldri§i#lin and $2.6 million,
respectively, in loans to FNMA and realized gainglwse sales of $12 thousand and $10 thousamatdeely. The Company had a related
asset of approximately $0.2 million for the sem@portfolio rights as of December 31, 2007 and6208spectively. There was $0.1 in loans
held for sale at December 31, 2007 compared to abBecember 31, 2006.

Income Taxes. Income taxes are accounted for under the asddtadoility method under SFAS No. 109, “Accountiftg Income Taxes.”
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflectezlirently enacted income tax rates applicabkaggoeriods in which the deferred tax assets or
liabilities are expected to be realized or setthesichanges in tax laws or rates are enacted, reeféax assets and liabilities are adjusted
through income tax expense.

Net Income Per Share Net income per common share is based on the vesigltverage number of shares outstanding duriny yesar,
retroactively adjusted for stock splits and stonkd#nds. Dilutive earnings per common share istam increasing the weighted-average
number of shares of common stock by the numbeharfes of common stock that would be issued assuthengxercise of stock options. Such
adjustments to weighted-average number of sharegroion stock outstanding are made only when sdiglstents are expected to dilute
earnings per common share. While the Company hazbtemtial dilutive securities at December 31, 20B8&re were 1,730 and 1,316
potentially dilutive shares of common stock for yfears ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respgcthatential common shares that would
have the effect of increasing diluted earningsgbre are considered to be anti-dilutive. In acaocd with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per
Share,” these shares were not included in calogatiluted earnings per share. As of December 32722006, and 2005, there were 92
thousand, 59 thousand, and 59 thousand sharesctegty, that are not included in calculating tBldi earnings per share because their effect
was anti-dilutive.
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Comprehensive Income Comprehensive income includes both net incomeotimek comprehensive income, including the change i
unrealized gains and losses on securities avaifabkale, and the change in additional minimurhility related to pension costs, net of tax.

Employee Benefits. The Bank maintains a hon-contributory, qualifiddfined benefit pension plan (“Pension Plan”) ttaters substantially
all employees who meet certain age and servicarergents. The actuarially determined pension beirethe form of a life annuity is based
on the employee’s combined years of service, agecampensation. The Barkpolicy is to fund the minimum amount requiredgmwernmen
regulations.

The Bank maintains a defined contribution 401 (l@nphnd accrues contributions due under this plaaased by employees. In addition, the
Bank maintains a non-qualified Supplemental ExeeuRetirement Plan for certain members of seniaragament, a non-qualified Deferred
Compensation Plan for directors and certain memiiemsanagement, and a non-qualified Executive IticerRetirement Plan for certain
members of management, as described more fullyobe N1 to these “Notes to Consolidated Financiale®tents.”

Management recently completed an analysis of timsiBe Plan and the 401(k) plan. Management coraidiedustry trends, regional
competition, as well as the new regulatory requésts involved in maintaining both a defined bengdihsion plan, as well as the 401(k) plan.
Based upon the analysis, there were significamigds made to the plans in order to remain competitith the industry. Effective January .
2008, the Pension Plan was frozen. All benefitgilglie participants have accrued in the plan to dallebe retained. Employees will not
continue to accrue additional benefits in the ftam that date. Employees will be eligible to reeeihese benefits at normal retirement age.

Stock-based Compensation Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adoptediSSINo. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based PaymeSEAS

No. 123R), an amendment of SFAS No. 1‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” Priothat date, the Company recognized expense
for stock-based compensation using the fair valethod of accounting described in SFAS No. 123.18tiased compensation expense is
recognized over the vesting period of the stocleggant based on the estimated grant date valiee agtock-based compensation that is
expected to vest. Information on the determinatibtihe estimated value of stock-based awards usedltulate stock-based compensation
expense is included in Note 12 to “Notes to Comstéd Financial Statements.”

Advertising Costs. Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.

Loss Contingencies Loss contingencies, including claims and legéibas arising in the ordinary course of businessracorded as liabilities
when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amiau range of loss can be reasonably estimated.

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk In the ordinary course of business, the Bankdmasred into off-balance sheet financial
arrangements consisting of commitments to exteaditand standby letters of credit. Such finanicisiruments are recorded in the financial
statements when the transactions are executed.

Cash and Cash Equivalents For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash asti eguivalents include cash and due from banksraerst-
bearing deposits at other banks.

Cash and due from banks includes reserve balahatthe Bank is required to maintain with Federaé&ve Banks. The required reserves are
based upon deposits outstanding, and were apprelyn®il.2 million and $3.8 million at December 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Reclassifications. Certain reclassifications have been made to @ 2and 2005 financial statements to conform with2007 presentation.

ACCOUNTING CHANGES

Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108 — In Septembef80the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting Bullélio. 108, “Considering the Effects of
Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatata in Current Year Financial Statements” (SAB)182\B 108 was issued in order to
eliminate the diversity of practice surrounding hpublic companies quantify financial statement taitgssnents. There are two widely
recognized methods for quantifying the effectsimdficial statement misstatements: the “roll-overd &ron curtain” methods. The roll-over
method, the method the Company historically usecli$es primarily on the impact of a misstatemertherincome statement, including the
reversing effect of prior year misstatements. Tha turtain method focuses primarily on the effefatorrecting for the accumulated
misstatements as of the balance sheet date, edlsenbirrecting the balance sheet with less emghasithe reversing effects of prior year er
on the income statements. In SAB 108, the SEC staff
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established an approach that requires quantificatidinancial statement misstatements based ogffeets of the misstatements under botf
roll-over and iron curtain methods. This framewirkeferred to as the “dual approach.” SAB 108 pereompanies to initially apply its
provisions either by restating prior financial staents as if the dual approach had always beenaugedording the cumulative effect of
initially applying the dual approach as an adjustirie the balance sheet as of the first day ofifoal year with an offsetting adjustment
recorded to opening retained earnings. Use of theutative effect transition method is not permitfedotherwise immaterial misstatements
that may be identified by a company and requiref smmaterial misstatements to be recorded in atiperiod earnings.

The Company adopted SAB 108 as of January 1, 20@6completed its analysis of uncorrected misstatésnunder the “dual approach,”
concluding that certain adjustments were matendkeu the iron curtain method, that were previogglgmed to be immaterial under the
rollover method. The Company sells loans to FNMA egtains the rights to service the loans. The Gomhad previously not recorded an
asset for the servicing rights it retains for maggs sold to FNMA totaling approximately $164 ttamts The Company has certain operating
leases with rent escalation clauses. The Compatgridally has recorded rent expense based omstateannual rents rather than recognizing
total rent expense under the agreements on alstiaig basis over the terms. The correspondirgjlitg recognized to properly record the
lease liability on a straight line basis was $18®usand. Lastly, the Company has historically hadressupported tax reserve of $30 thousand,
which was reversed. As of January 1, 2006, the Gamppas increased retained earnings by approxiyn®@ thousand, increased other
liabilities by approximately $139 thousand and @ased other assets by approximately $182 thousahdf tax effects, to address these items.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (FIN48). In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, “Accountfiog Uncertainty in Income
Taxes,” to set out a consistent framework for teepprers to use to determine the appropriate tEtalx reserves to maintain for uncertain tax
positions. This interpretation of FASB StatementI® uses a twetep approach wherein a tax benefit is recognizaghosition is more likel
than not to be sustained. The amount of the beisdfien measured to be the highest tax benetiighgreater than 50 percent likely to be
realized. FIN 48 also sets out disclosure requirgm® enhance transparency of an entity’s taxveseThe Company adopted FIN 48 as of
January 1, 2007. There were no unrecognized tagfiteor penalties at the date of adoption.

The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) commenced exaioms of the Company’s U.S. Federal income taxrnstfor 2003, 2004, and 2005 in
the first quarter of 2007. The examination relatethese returns was completed during the thirdtguarhere were no proposed adjustments
that had a material impact on the Company’s firgrmosition or results of operations. Interest djustments, if any, is included in income tax
expense.

Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets (SFA356). In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, ‘@atting for Servicing of
Financial Assets — an amendment of FASB StatementlM0” (SFAS 156). SFAS 156 amends SFAS 140, “Antiog for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishmerftisiabilities — a replacement of FASB Statement N&5,” by requiring, in certain
situations, an entity to recognize a servicing agsservicing liability each time it undertakesahiigation to service a financial asset by
entering into a servicing contract. All separatelgognized servicing assets and servicing liaggitire required to be initially measured at fair
value. Subsequent measurement methods includertbeization method, whereby servicing assets orisiag liabilities are amortized in
proportion to and over the period of estimatedseeticing income or net servicing loss or the ¥ailue method, whereby servicing assets or
servicing liabilities are measured at fair valueath reporting date and changes in fair valueegrerted in earnings in the period in which t
occur. If the amortization method is used, an gmtitist assess servicing assets or servicing ligsilfor impairment or increased obligation
based on the fair value at each reporting datepfolio of SFAS 156 on January 1, 2007 did not hasigificant impact on the Company’s
financial statements.

Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensions and Other &stretirement Benefits. In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158,
“Employer’s Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensicarsd Other Postretirement Benefits” (SFAS 158). Cohenpany adopted SFAS 158 as of
December 31, 2006. In accordance with this standaedCompany recorded the funded status of eaith défined benefit pension and
postretirement plans as an asset or liability siCibnsolidated Balance Sheet with a correspondisgtpnet of taxes, recorded in Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Within Stockhadequity. SFAS 158 requires that plan assetshamfit obligations be measured as of
the date of an employer’s fiscal year-end stateragfihancial position, thus eliminating the altative of a measurement date that could be up
to three months earlier. The Company currentlyehfiscal year end of December 31 and a measuretagmf September 30. For fiscal year-
end 2008, the Company will need to measure thegdanats and benefit obligations at December 3teddsof September 30. The Company is
currently evaluating the potential impact of champgihe measurement date.
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Split-Dollar Life Insurance. At its September 2006, meeting the Emerging Is3aasForce (“EITF”) reached a final consensus onés3604,
“Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Posteatient Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollée Insurance Arrangements.” The
consensus stipulates that an agreement by an eemgtoghare a portion of the proceeds of a lifeiiasce policy with an employee during the
postretirement period is a postretirement benefitrgement required to be accounted for under SRASL06 or Accounting Principles Board
Opinion (“APB”) No. 12, “Omnibus Opinion — 1967."hE consensus concludes that the purchase of alsjit life insurance policy does 1
constitute a settlement under SFAS No. 106 andetbtee, a liability for the postretirement obligatimust be recognized under SFAS No. 106
if the benefit is offered under an arrangement tloatstitutes a plan or under APB No. 12 if it id part of a plan. Issue 06-04 is effective for
annual or interim reporting periods beginning aBecember 15, 2007. The provisions of Issue 06k@4lsl be applied through either a
cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnirgyefahe beginning of the year of adoption or rgbextive application. The Company has
endorsement split-dollar life insurance policiesearing certain directors and employees, but nonehiich the Company shares a portion of the
proceeds of the policy with the employee aftereatient.

FUTURE APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Fair Value Measurements (SFAS 157)In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. ‘F&it Value Measurements” (SFAS 157). This
standard defines fair value, establishes a comsismework for measuring fair value and expandsldsure requirements about fair value
measurements. In addition, SFAS 157 precludesgsbefiblock discounts and supersedes the guidar€E'F 02-3, which prohibited the
recognition of day-1 gains on certain derivatiads when determining the fair value of instrumentstraded in an active market. With the
adoption of this standard, these changes will Beated as a cumulative effect adjustment to thenopg balance of retained earnings. The
standard also requires the Company to reflecivits credit standing when measuring the fair valudedit it has issued that is carried at fair
value, including derivatives, prospectively frone tthate of adoption.

SFAS 157 is effective for the Company’s fiscal yeaginning January 1, 2008, with earlier adoptiermptted for the Company’s fiscal year
beginning January 1, 2007. The Company did noyeafbpt FAS 157. The Company is currently evalgptive potential impact of adopting
this standard.

Fair Value Option (SFAS 159). On February 15, 2007, the FASB issued SFAS N8, THhe Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities” (SFAS 159). Under this Stamd, the Company may elect to report financialrinsents and certain other items at fair
value on a contract-by-contract basis with chamgeslue reported in earnings. This election isvocable. SFAS 159 provides an opportunity
to mitigate volatility in reported earnings thatsused by measuring hedged assets and liabitii¢svere previously required to use a diffe
accounting method than the related hedging costraben the complex provisions of SFAS 133 hedgewtting are not met.

SFAS 159 is effective for years beginning after Blmber 15, 2007. Early adoption within 120 daysheflbeginning of a compars/2007 fisce
year was permissible, provided the company hageioissued interim financial statements for 200d bhad adopted SFAS 157. The Comp
did not early adopt FAS 159. Adoption of SFAS 159January 1, 2008, did not have a significant imnpache Company’s financial
statements.

Business Combinations (SFAS 141R)in December 2007, the FASB issues SFAS No. 18dsithess Combinations (Revised 2007)" (SFAS
141R). SFAS 141R replaces SFAS 141, “Business Quatibns,” and applies to all transactions and o#ivents in which one entity obtains
control over one or more other businesses. SFAR ¥dquires an acquirer, upon initially obtainingittol of another entity, to recognize the
assets, liabilities and any non-controlling int¢iaghe acquiree at fair value as of the acquisitiate. Contingent consideration is required to
be recognized and measured at fair value on tleeafatcquisition rather than at a later date wihenaimount of that consideration may be
determinable beyond a reasonable doubt. This &irevapproach replaces the cost-allocation praeegsred under SFAS 141 whereby the
cost of an acquisition was allocated to the indiaildassets acquired and liabilities assumed baséldedr estimated fair value. SFAS 141R
requires acquirers to expense acquisition-relabstsas incurred rather than allocating such ¢odtse assets acquired and liabilities assumed,
as was previously the case under SFAS 141. Prdsitigu contingencies are to be recognized atvalue, unless it is a non-contractual
contingency that is not likely to materialize, ifish case, nothing should be recognized in purchaseunting and, instead, that contingency
would be subject to the probable and estimablegrition criteria of SFAS 5, “Accounting for Contiagcies.” SFAS 141R is to be applied
prospectively to business combinations for whiahabquisition date is on or after January 1, 28FAS 141R is expected to have a signifi
impact on the Company’s accounting for businesshioations closing on or after January 1, 2009.

Non-controlling Interest in Consolidated FinancialStatements (SFAS 160)In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 160, “Non-
controlling Interest in Consolidated Financial 8taents, an amendment of ARB No. 51” (SFAS 160). SE80 amends Accounting Research
Bulletin (ARB) No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statents,” to establish
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accounting and reporting standards for the camtrolling interest in a subsidiary and for thealesolidation of a subsidiary. SFAS 160 clari
that a non-controlling interest in a subsidiaryjahhis often referred to as a minority interestaisownership interest in the consolidated entity
that should be reported as a component of equitiydrconsolidate financial statements. Among oteguirements, SFAS 160 requires
consolidated net income to be reported at amobatsriclude the amounts attributable to both themeand the norentrolling interest. It als
requires disclosure, on the face of the consol@tlateome statement of the amounts of consolidagtdicome attributable to the parent and to
the non-controlling interest. SFAS 160 is effectisethe Company on January 1, 2009 and is not@gpeo have a significant impact on the
Company'’s financial statements.

Written Loan Commitments Recorded at Fair Value Through Earnings (SAB 109) In November 2007, the SEC staff issued Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 109, “Written Loan Commitmts Recorded at Fair Value Through Earnings” (SAB)1SAB 109 supersedes SAB
105, “Application of Accounting Principles to Lo@ommitments,” and indicates that the expecteduteté cash flows related to the
associated servicing of a loan should be includatié measurement of all written loan commitmeiis &re accounted for at fair value thro
earnings. The guidance in SAB 109 is applied oroagective basis to derivative loan commitmentsddsor modified in fiscal quarters
beginning after December 15, 2007. SAB 109 is rpeeted to have a material impact on the Compdinesicial statements.

2. SECURITIES

The amortized cost of securities and their apprexénfair value at December 31 were as follows:

2007
(in thousands
Amortized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available for Sale:
Debt securities
U.S. government agenci $ 14,18: $ 51 $ (49 $14,18¢
States and political subdivisio 34,82 83¢ 2 35,65¢
Total debt securitie $ 49,00 $ 88¢ $ (46 $49,847
Mortgage-backed securitie:
FNMA 8,19( 13 (68) 8,13t
FHLMC 7,09¢ 2 (35 7,06
GNMA — — — —
CMO’s 1,60¢ — (22 1,58
Total mortgag-backed securitie $ 16,89¢ 15 (125) 16,78t
FRB and FHLB Stocl 3,512 — — 3,512
Total $ 69,417 $ 904 $ (A7 $70,14¢
Held to Maturity:
Debt securities
U.S. government agenci $ 35 $ — $ — 35
States and political subdivisio 2,231 — — 2,231
Total $ 2,26¢ $ — $ — $ 2,26¢
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2006
(in thousands
Amortized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available for Sale:
Debt securities
U.S. government agenci $ 31,597 $ — $ (70€) $ 30,89
States and political subdivisio 37,59: 89t (49) 38,43t
Total debt securitie $ 69,18¢ $ 89t $ (755 $ 69,32¢
Mortgage-backed securitie:
FNMA 31,08« 2 (918) 30,16¢
FHLMC 8,68¢ 15 (25€) 8,44¢
GNMA 1,08t — (42) 1,04«
CMO’s 21,51% — (88¢) 20,62¢
Total mortgag-backed securitie $ 62,37¢ 17 (2,109 60,28¢
FRB and FHLB Stocl 3,901 — — 3,901
Total $135,46! $ 91z $ (2,85§) $133,51¢
Held to Maturity:
Debt securities
U.S. government agenci $ 35 $ — $ — $ 35
States and political subdivisio 4,17¢ — — 4,17¢
Total $ 4,211 $ — $  — $ 4,217

Available for sale securities with a total fair walof $65.8 million at December 31, 2007 were péetgs collateral to secure public deposits
and for other purposes required or permitted by law

The scheduled maturities of debt and mortgage-luhs&eurities at December 31, 2007 are summariZesvbAll maturity amounts are
contractual maturities. Actual maturities may diffie@m contractual maturities because certain isshave the right to call or prepay
obligations with or without call premiums.

Available for Held to Maturity
Sale Securities Securities
Amortizec Fair Amortizec Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
(in thousands (in thousands
Due in one year or let $10,90¢ $10,86¢ $  17¢ $ 17¢
Due after year one through five ye 22,93( 23,22¢ 82¢ 82¢
Due after five years through ten ye 19,66 20,16: 511 511
Due after ten yeal 12,40: 12,37% 754 754
Total $ 65,89¢ $66,63: $ 2,26¢ $ 2,26¢
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Realized gains and losses from $46.1 million, $2illion and $7.0 million gross sales on securifimsthe years ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively, are summarized asAsll

2007 2006 2005
(in thousands
Gross gain: $ 14 $ 14C $ 11:
Gross losse 2,31 — (6
Net (loss) gair $ (2,29¢ $ 14C $ 107

Management has assessed the securities availaldaléoin an unrealized loss position at Decemtef807 and 2006 and determined the
decline in fair value below amortized cost to bmperary. In making this determination, managemensiered the period of time the
securities were in a loss position, the percentigpdine in comparison to the securities amortizest,¢he financial condition of the issuer
(primarily government or government-sponsored gmiges) and the Company’s ability and intent talitbese securities until their fair value
recovers to their amortized cost. Management bedi¢le decline in fair value is primarily relatecharket interest rate fluctuations and not to
the credit deterioration of the individual issuer.

Information regarding unrealized losses within @@mpany’s available for sale securities is sumnearizelow. The securities are all US
government-guaranteed agency securities or fulyred municipal securities. All unrealized losses@nsidered temporary and related to
market interest rate fluctuations.

2007
Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Fair Unrealize( Fair Unrealize« Fair Unrealizec
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
(in thousands (in thousands (in thousands
Description of Securities
Debt securitie:
U.S. government agenci $ — $ = $ 7,33¢ $ (49 $ 7,33¢ $ (49
States and political subdivisio — — 722 2 722 2
Total debt securitie $ — $ — $ 8,05¢ $ (46) $ 8,05¢ $ (46)
Mortgage-backed securitie
FNMA $ 27¢ $ @ $ 5,897 $ (67) $ 6,17( $ (69
FHLMC 21t (8] 5,70z (39 5,917 (35)
GNMA — — — — — —
CMO's — — 1,73¢ (22) 1,73¢ (22
Total mortgag-backed securitie $ 49 $ @) $13,32¢ $ (129 $13,82: $ (12%)
Total temporarily impaired Securiti $ 49 $ (2 $21,387 $ (169 $21,88( $ (A7)
2006
Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Fair Unrealize« Fair Unrealize« Fair Unrealize«
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
(in thousands (in thousands (in thousands
Description of Securities
Debt securitie:
U.S. government agenci $ 5,92i $ (84 $20,96¢ $ (622) $26,89: $ (70€6)
States and political subdivisio 13E — 5,732 (49 5,86 (49
Total debt securitie $ 6,062 $ (89 $26,69¢ $ (67]) $32,75¢ $ (75%)
Mortgage-backed securitie
FNMA $ 1,99¢ $ 4) $ 27,66 $ (919 $29,65¢ $ (919
FHLMC 332 4 7,32¢ (252) 7,65¢€ (25€)
GNMA — — 1,04 (471) 1,04 (472)
CMO's — — 20,62 (88¢) 20,62: (888
Total mortgag-backed securitie $ 2,32¢ $ 8) $56,65: $ (2,09t $58,98( $ (2,109
Total temporarily impaired Securiti $ 8,39( $ 92 $83,34¢ $ (2,76¢€ $91,73¢ $ (2,85¢)
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3. LOANS AND LEASES, NET
Major categories of loans and leases at Decemhe2(®7 and 2006 are summarized as follows:

2007 2006
(in thousands
Mortgage loans on real esta

Residential -4 family $ 68,55 $ 57,70:
Commercial and mu-family 131,14¢ 123,70:
Constructior 11,44¢ 11,84¢
Second mortgage 9,452 8,62¢
Home equity lines of cred 16,92¢ 18,14
Total mortgage loans on real est 237,52: 220,02:
Direct financing lease 45,07¢ 31,74:
Commercial loan 34,56 29,58¢
Consumer loan 2,08: 3,101
Other 3,98:¢ 3,997
Net deferred loan and lease origination ¢ 881 654
324,11 289,10¢

Allowance for loan and lease loss (4,55Y) (3,739
Loans and leases, r $319,55¢ $285,36°

Other loans include $0.4 million and $0.2 millianDeecember 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, ofdregyn deposit accounts classified as
loans.

Changes in the allowance for loan and lease |dssele years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 andl &@0as follows:

2007 2006 2005
(in thousands

Balance, beginning of ye $ 3,73¢ $ 3,211 $ 2,99¢

Provision for loan and lease los: 1,917 1,12¢ 76¢

Recoveries 17C 19¢ 11¢

Loans and leases charged (1,277 (799 (679)

Balance, end of ye: $ 4,55t $ 3,73¢ $ 3,217

Non-accrual loans totaled approximately $0.6 milliod &0.6 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, rethgely. The allowance for loan a
lease losses related to nacerual loans was $0.1 million, $0.2 million andZfillion at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005eetvely. The
average recorded investment in these loans dufifg,2006 and 2005 was approximately $0.6 milli&h5 million and $1.6 million,
respectively. If such loans had been in an accrsiatys, the Bank would have recorded additiortat@st income of approximately $85
thousand; $83 thousand and $128 thousand in 2008, &nd 2005, respectively. Actual interest recogphion consolidated statements of
income on non-accrual loans was $23 thousand, i#lisand and $140 thousand in 2007, 2006 and 28§Bectively.

The Bank had no loan commitments to borrowers maccrual status at December 31, 2007.
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Bank hadmer toans which were impaired as defined by SFASINA4.
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The following lists the components of the net irtagnt in direct financing leases as of December 31:

2007 2006
(in thousands
Direct financing lease payments receive $54,32¢ $39,19(
Estimated residual value of leased as 471 31¢
Unearned incom (9,719 (7,76€)
Net investment in direct financing leas $45,07¢ $31,74.

Deferred fees related to direct financing leaseewe.2 million and $0.1 million at December 3102@&nd 2006, respectively. The allowance
for loan and lease losses allocated to direct fimanleases was $1.4 million and $0.9 million atBaber 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

At December 31, 2007, minimum future lease paymenke received are as follows:

Year Ending December 31.

2008 $15,35:

2009 13,95(

2010 9,62

2011 4,68(

2012 1,44¢

Thereaftel 29
$45,07¢

As of December 31, 2007, there were $32.6 millioioans pledged to FHLB.

4. PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT

Properties and equipment at December 31 were lasvil

2007 2006
(in thousands

Land $ 26¢ $ 26¢
Buildings and improvemen 9,38¢ 9,20¢
Equipment 7,381 7,26(
Construction in progres 113 3

17,15 16,73t
Less accumulated depreciati (8,786 (7,997
Properties and equipment, 1 $ 8,36¢ $ 8,74:

Depreciation expense totaled $926 thousand in 2R879 thousand in 2006 and $834 thousand in 2005.
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5. OTHER ASSETS
Other assets at December 31 were as follows:

2007 2006
(in thousands

Net deferred tax ass $ 2,08t $ 3,17¢

Accrued interest receivab 1,73¢ 2,052

Prepaid expenst 361 53t

Other 2,29¢ 1,25¢

Total $ 6,48( $ 7,021

6. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Company applies the provisions of SFAS No. 1@&podwill and Other Intangible Assets,” and dis®s goodwill separate from other
intangible assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

The Company evaluates the carrying amount of gdbélwipotential impairment on at least an annuadib.

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for tiwelve-month period ended December 31, 2007 an@,2®0operating segment, are as
follows:

Banking Insurance Agenc)
Activities Activities __Total _
(in thousands
Balance as of January 1, 2C $ 1,902 $ 8,101 $10,00:
Goodwill acquired during the peric 43 — 43
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 1,94 $ 8,101 $10,04¢
Banking Insurance Agenc)
Activities Activities __Total _
(in thousands
Balance as of January 1, 2C $ 1,53¢ $ 8,101 $ 9,63¢
Goodwill acquired during the peric 364 — 364
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 1,902 $ 8,101 $10,00:
Information regarding the Company’s other intangiasets at December 31 follows:
Gross Weighted Average
Carrying Accumulated Amortization
2007 Amount Amortization Net __ Period
(in thousand:
Non-compete agreemer $ 68¢ $ (596) $ 92 5 years
Insurance expiratior 4,19: (1,77%) 2,41 7 years
Total $ 4,881 $ (2,379 $2,507 7 years
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Gross Weighted Average
Carrying Accumulated Amortization
2006 Amount Amortization Net Period
(in thousand:
Non-compete agreemer $ 63¢ $ (509 $ 134 5 years
Insurance expiratior 3,392 (1,22¢) 2,16¢ 7 years
Total $ 4,03( $ (1,739 $2,29¢ 7 years

Amortization expense related to intangibles forybars ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005%@ddethousand; $563 thousand and
$515 thousand, respectively. Estimated amortizagigrense for each of the five succeeding fiscals/isaas follows:

Year Ending
December 31 Amount
(in thousands
2008 $64¢
2009 47%
2010 44¢
2011 39¢
2012 25¢
7. DEPOSITS

Time deposits, with minimum denominations of $106usand each, totaled $51.1 million and $80.2 omilat December 31, 2007 and 20086,
respectively. There were $0.4 million of overdi@itounts in deposits that have been reclassifitzhtes as of December 31, 2007.

At December 31, 2007, the scheduled maturitiegmd tleposits are as follows:

(in thousand:

2008 $ 95,78
2009 25,70¢
2010 67&
2011 6,491
2012 24¢
2013 12¢

$ 129,02

8. BORROWED FUNDS AND JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

Borrowed funds mainly consisted of various advaricms the Federal Home Loan Bank with interestsasmging from 3.02% to 3.61%. The
FHLB advances are collateralized by certain queld@yassets of $48.1 million at December 31, 200 maturities of other borrowed funds
are as follows:

(in thousand:

2008 $ 33,98(
2009 92C
2010 112
2011 69
2012 —
Thereaftel 13,00(
Total $ 48,08
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Short-term borrowings outstanding at December B072f $34.0 million consisted of an overnight lofecredit with the Federal Home Loan
Bank and federal funds purchased through one dB#m’s correspondent banks. The Bank has theyahiliborrow additional funds with the
Federal Home Loan Bank based on the available isiesurollateral of the Bank, and to purchase aolditl federal funds through one of the
Bank’s correspondent banks.

The amounts and interest rates of short-term bongswvere as follows:

Federal Funds Other Short-Term
Purchased Borrowings Total
(dollars in thousand:

At December 31, 200
Amount Outstandin 33,98( — 33,98(
Weightec-average interest ra 3.62% — 3.62%

For the year ended December 31, 2

Highest amount at a mor-end 33,98( —

Daily average amount outstandi 9,20¢ — 9,20¢

Weightec-average interest ra 5.0&% — 5.0&%
At December 31, 200

Amount Outstandin 24,75 — 24,75:

Weightec-average interest ra 5.3% — 5.3%
For the year ended December 31, 2

Highest amount at a mor-end 43,17¢ —

Daily average amount outstandi 16,71¢ — 16,71¢

Weightec-average interest ra 5.02% — 5.08%
At December 31, 200

Amount outstandin 37,13t — 37,13t

Weightec-average interest ra 4.1% — 4.1%
For the year ended December 31, 2

Highest amount at a mor-end 37,13t 4,00(

Daily average amount outstandi 8,281 647 8,93¢

Weightec-average interest ra 3.8% 2.49% 3.7%

On October 1, 2004, Evans Capital Trust |, a stayubusiness trust wholly-owned by the Company f{ffrest”), issued $11.0 million in
aggregate principal amount of floating rate prefércapital securities due November 23, 2034 (thapit@l Securities”) classified on the
Company’s consolidated balance sheets as Juniar@inhated Debentures. The distribution rate onGhpital Securities of the Trust adjust
quarterly based on changes in the three-month Lohaterbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) and was 7.35%&cember 31, 2007.

The Capital Securities have a distribution rateI8OR plus 2.65%, and the distribution dates arbriary 23, May 23, August 23 and
November 23

The common securities of the Trust (the “Commorugges”) are wholly-owned by the Company and de only class of each Trust’s
securities possessing general voting powers. Tip#al&ecurities represent preferred undividedregss in the assets of the corresponding
Trust. Under the Federal Reserve Board’s currektivased capital guidelines, the Capital Securitiesncludable in the Company’s Tier 1
(Core) capital.

The proceeds from the issuances of the Capitalriesuand Common Securities were used by the Taugtirchase $11.3 million aggregate
liquidation amount of floating rate junior subordiad deferrable interest debentures (“Junior Subated Debentures”) of the Company, due
October 1, 2037, comprised of $11.0 million of ¢apsecurities and $330 thousand of common seesrilihe $330 thousand of common
securities represent the initial capital contribntof the Company to the Trust, which, in accor@anith the provision of FIN 46R
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” hast been consolidated.
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The Junior Subordinated Debentures represent teeseets of the Trust, and payments under therd8nbordinated Debentures are the sole
source of cash flow for the Trust. The interest radyable on the Junior Subordinated Debenturesv8886 at December 31, 2007.

Holders of the Capital Securities receive prefeaticimulative cash distributions on each distiifmutdate at the stated distribution rate, unless
the Company exercises its right to extend the paymkinterest on the Junior Subordinated Debestioeup to twenty quarterly periods, in
which case payment of distributions on the respedliapital Securities will be deferred for compéegieriods. During an extended interest
period, in accordance with terms as defined intdenture relating to the Capital Securities, tlwen@any may not pay dividends or
distributions on, or repurchase, redeem or acquiseshares of its capital stock. The agreementsrgig the Capital Securities, in the
aggregate, provide a full, irrevocable and uncoowl@l guarantee by the Company of the paymentsifidutions on, the redemption of, and
any liquidation distribution with respect to thegtal Securities. The obligations under such gumeand the Capital Securities are
subordinate and junior in right of payment to athi®r indebtedness of the Company.

The Capital Securities will remain outstanding Lttt Junior Subordinated Debentures are repaitb#rity, are redeemed prior to maturity
are distributed in liquidation to the Trust. Thep@al Securities are mandatorily redeemable in whbut not in part, upon repayment at the
stated maturity dates of the Junior SubordinateoeDires or the earlier redemption of the JunidroBdinated Debentures in whole upon the
occurrence of one or more events (“Events”) sahfor the indentures relating to the Capital Sdi®sj and in whole or in part at any time after
the stated optional redemption date of Novembe@89, contemporaneously with the optional redeompdif the related Junior Subordinated
Debentures in whole or in part. The Junior Subatid Debentures are redeemable prior to theirdstatgurity dates at the Company’s option:
(i) on or after the stated optional redemption gaite whole at any time or in part from time to ¢inor (ii) in whole, but not in part, at any time
within 90 days following the occurrence and durihg continuation of one or more of the Events,dalecase subject to possible regulatory
approval. The redemption price of the Capital Siéiegrand the related Junior Subordinated Debestupen early redemption would be at the
liquidation amount plus accumulated but unpaidrithigtions.

9. SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE

The Bank enters into agreements with depositoselido the depositors securities owned by the Bankrepurchase the identical security,
generally within one day. No physical movementhef $ecurities is involved. The depositor is infodntlee securities are held in safekeepin
the Bank on behalf of the depositor.

10. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The following tables display the components of ott@mprehensive income (loss):

2007
Beforetax Income
Amount Taxes Net

(in thousands
Unrealized gains on investment securit

Unrealized holding gains during peri $ 38C $ (129 $ 25€
Less: reclassification adjustment for losses redlin net incom: (2,299) 92(C _ (1,379
Net unrealized gai 2,67¢ (1,049 _1,63¢
Decrease in additional minimum pension liabi 49t (199 2917
Net other comprehensive incol $ 3,174 $ (1,240 $ 1,93t
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2006
Before-tax Income
Amount Taxes Net

(in thousands
Unrealized gains on investment securit

Unrealized holding gains during peri $ 284 $ (112 $ 17z
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains redlimenet income 14C (56) 84
Net unrealized gai 144 (56) 88
Decrease in additional minimum pension liabi 14C (56) 84
Net other comprehensive incot $ 284 $ (119 $ 17z
2005
Beforetax Income
Amount Taxes Net

(in thousands
Unrealized losses on investment securi

Unrealized holding losses during per| $ (2,967) $ 1,15: $ (1,810
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains redlirenet income __ 107 43 64
Net unrealized los _ (3,069 1,09 _ (1,879
Increase in additional minimum pension liabil _ (129 51 ____ (79
Net other comprehensive lg M) $ 1,24¢ ﬂﬁ)

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLA NS
Employees’ Pension Plan

The Bank has a defined benefit pension plan cogesirbstantially all employees. The plan providesefies that are based on the employees’
compensation and years of service. The Bank usastaarial method of amortizing prior service castl unrecognized net gains or losses
which result from actual experience and assumpti@isg different than those that are projected. dertization method the Bank is using
recognizes the prior service cost and net gaihgsses over the average remaining service periedtofe employees which exceeds the
required amortization.
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Selected Financial Information for the Bank’s Enyales’ Pension Plan is as follows:

2007 2006
(in thousands

Change in benefit obligatiol

Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $ 4,02¢ $ 3,44«
Service cos 361 32t
Interest cos 244 20z
Assumption chang (415) (155)
Actuarial gain 23t 252
Benefits paic (227) (42
Benefit obligations at end of ye 4,23( 4,02¢
Change in plan asse

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y 3,17t 3,00(¢
Actual return on plan asse 45(C 217
Employer contribution 482 —
Benefits paic (227) (42
Fair value of plan assets at end of y 3,88¢ 3,17¢
Funded statu (349 (857)

Amount recognized in the Consolidated Balance Shemtsists of

Accrued benefit liabilitie! (349 (857)
Amount recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehenkigs consist o

Net actuarial los 124 534
Prior service cos (209) (129
Net transition asse — (3
Net amount recognized in equ— pre-tax $ 15 407
Net amount recognized on Consolidated Balance S (329 (449
Accumulated benefit obligation at year € $ 3,28: $ 3,101

The Plan’s assets are primarily invested in eqaiity fixed income mutual funds. Valuations of thedten Plan as shown above were
conducted as of September 30, 2007 and 2006. Asaamepised by the Bank in the determination of RenBlan information consisted of the
following:

2007 2006 2005
Weightec-average discount ra 6.35% 5.7% 5.5(%
Rate of increase in compensation le\ 4.7% 4.7% 4.7%
Expected lon-term rate of return on plan ass 7.5(% 7.5(% 7.5(%
The components of net periodic benefit cost coedisf the following:

2007 2006 2005

(in thousands

Service cos $ 361 $ 32t $ 29
Interest cos 244 20z 17¢
Expected return on plan ass (250) (234 (199
Net amortization and deferr 12 12 (13
Net periodic benefit co: $ 367 $ 30t $ 25¢
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The estimated amounts to be amortized from accusuilather comprehensive loss into net periodic kp2008 for amortization of prior
service costs and actuarial loss will be $15 thnds&6 thousand and $30 thousand, respectively.

The expected long-term rate of return on Pensian Btsets assumption was determined based oridabteturns earned by equity and fixed
income securities, adjusted to reflect future meexpectations based on plan targeted asset éinc&iquity and fixed income securities were
assumed to earn returns in the ranges of 5.5%.5%d.and 4.5% to 6.0%, respectively. When theseabiveturn expectations are applied to
Pension Plan’s targeted allocation, the expectedafareturn is determined to be 7.50%, which igrapimately the mid-point of the range of
expected return. The weighted average asset atooatt the Pension Plan at September 30, 2007 @06,2he Pension Plan measurement (
was as follows:

2007 2006
Asset category
Equity mutual fund: 65.6% 63.6%
Fixed income security mutual fun 34.4% 36.4%
100.(% 100.(%

The Company’s targeted long-term asset allocatioawerage will approximate 60%-70% with equity ngera and 30%-40% with fixed
income managers. This allocation is consistent tighCompanys goal of diversifying the Pension Plan assetgdeioto preserve capital wh
achieving investment results that will contributethie proper funding of pension obligations andhd&sv requirements. The Company’s
management regularly reviews the Pension Planisahasset allocation and periodically rebalancemitestments to the targeted allocation
when considered appropriate. The Company’s managdmedieves that 7.50% is a reasonable long-tetenafreturn on the Pension Plan’s
Qualified Plan assets. The Company’s managemehtavitinue to evaluate its actuarial assumptiomslpiding the expected rate of return, at
least annually, and will adjust as necessary. Tém@ny’s required minimum contribution to the Pendplan for the 2007 plan year was
approximately $98 thousand.

The discount rate utilized by the Company for dataing future pension obligations is based on @fewf longterm bonds that receive one
the two highest ratings given by a recognized gatigency. The discount rate determined on thisheas increased from 5.75% at
September 30, 2006 to 6.35% at September 30, 200A€ measurement date), for the Company’s defigeefit pension plan.

The following benefit payments, which reflect exigecfuture service, as appropriate, are expectée jmaid:

(in thousands

2008 $ 10z
2009 113
2010 152
2011 20¢E
2012 251
Years 201-2017 1,611

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

The Bank also maintains a non-qualified supplementacutive retirement plan (the “SERP”) coverirgtain members of the Company’s
senior management. The SERP was amended duringt@@d8vide a benefit based on a percentage of éiverage earnings, as opposed tc
fixed benefit that the superceded plan providedToe obligations related to the SERP are indiydfathded by various life insurance contracts
naming the Bank as beneficiary. The Bank has aldivdctly funded the SERP, as well as other besmpfibvided to other employees through
Bank-owned life insurance which was purchased bri@y 2003. The Bank uses an actuarial methodhofiizing unrecognized net gains or
losses which result from actual experience andmagans being different than those that are prejgcThe amortization method the Bank is
using recognizes the net gains or losses oventirage remaining service period of active employaich exceeds the required amortizat
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Selected financial information for the SERP isa@®fvs:

Change in benefit obligatiol

Benefit obligation at beginning of ye
Service cos

Interest cos

Actuarial loss

Benefits paic

Benefit obligations at end of ye

Change in plan asse

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \
Actual return on plan asse

Contributions to the pla

Benefits paic

Fair value of plan assets at end of y
Funded statu

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance tStwesists of

Accrued benefit liability

Amount recognized in Accumulated other Comprehenkigs consist o

Net actuarial los
Prior service cos

Net amount recognized in equ- pre-tax
Net amount recognized on Consolidated Balance S
Accumulated benefit obligation at year €

2007

2006

(in thousands

IESII

rm

2,83

(2,835)

38¢

317

70<
2,13:

$ 2,52(

t
:

$ 2,83
117
151
177

:

2,82

~

9

~

2,82

~

(2,825)

434

37<

807
2,021

$ 2,435

Valuations of the SERP liability, as shown aboverewconducted as of December 31, 2007 and 2006n##ns used by the Bank in both

years in the determination of SERP information ¢sted of the following

Weightec-average discount ra
Expected lon-term rate of return on plan ass
Salary scal

2007 2006 2005
6.25% 5.7%% 5.5(%
N/A N/A N/A

5.0(% 5.0(% 5.0(%

The discount rate utilized by the Company for dataing future pension obligations is based on deme\of longierm bonds that receive one
the two highest ratings given by a recognized gatigency. The discount rate determined on thishes increased from 5.75% at
December 31, 2006 to 6.25% at December 31, 200th¢éameasurement date) for the SERP.

The components of net periodic benefit cost coedisf the following:

2007 2006 2005
(in thousands
Service cos $ 56 $ 117 $ 104
Interest cos 164 151 14¢
Net amortization and deferr 84 82 78
Net periodic benefit co: $ 304 $ 35C $ 33C
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The estimated amounts to be amortized from accusuitather comprehensive loss into net periodic fier@st in 2008 for prior service costs
and actuarial loss will be $71 thousand and $16ghnd, respectively.

The following benefit payments, which reflect exigecfuture service, as appropriate, are expectée jmaid:

(in thousands
2008 $ 192
2009 19z
2010 19z
2011 30t
2012 30t
201:-2017 1,51(C

Other Compensation Plans

The Company also maintains a ngualified deferred compensation plan for certanectors. Expenses under this plan were approxim&tel
thousand in 2007, $55 thousand in 2006 and $8X#dmaliin 2005. The estimated present value of theftiebligation included in other
liabilities was $0.8 million at December 31, 200il&006. This obligation is indirectly funded bfelinsurance contracts naming the Bank as
beneficiary. The increase in cash surrender valireciuded in other non-interest income on the Gbdated Statements of Income.

Effective April 1, 2003, the Company implementedom-qualified deferred compensation plan wherebtagedirectors and certain officers
may defer a portion of their base pre-tax compeémsafdditionally, effective April 1, 2003, the Cgrany implemented a non-qualified
executive incentive retirement plan, whereby thenBany will defer on behalf of certain officers afimn of their base compensation, as well
as an incentive award based upon Company perfomnantil retirement or termination of service, sdbjto certain vesting arrangements.
Expenses under these plans were approximately thb88and in 2007, $96 thousand in 2006 and $6%#malin 2005. The benefit obligation,
included in other liabilities in the Company’s Colidated Balance Sheets, was $1.1 million and $@lison at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

Many of the benefit plans are indirectly fundedBank-owned life insurance contracts with a totajragate cash surrender value of
approximately $10.8 million and $10.1 million atd@enber 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Increaseash surrender value are included in
the “Other Non-Interest Income” financial statemiam¢ on the Company’s Consolidated Statementa@drhe. Endorsement split-dollar life
insurance benefits have also been provided totdireand certain officers of the Bank and its stilbsies.

The Bank also has a defined contribution retirenaeat thrift 401(k) Plan (the “401(k) Plan”) for iksnployees who meet certain length of
service and age requirements. The provisions of@i€k) Plan allow eligible employees to contribatportion of their annual salary, up to the
IRS statutory limit, with a matching contributiog the Bank equal to 1% of the employees’ base cosgt®n plus 25% of the employees’
contribution up to 4% of their annual salary. ThenB can also make discretionary contributions &401(k) Plan. The Company’s expense
under this plan was approximately $89 thousand,ti84sand and $76 thousand for the years endechibere31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

The Company has a Dividend Reinvestment Plan iiP") which provides each holder of record of @@mpany’s common stock the
opportunity to reinvest automatically the cash di&vids they receive on shares of the Company’s constoek. Stockholders who do not wish
to participate in the DRIP continue to receive cdisfdends, as declared, in the usual manner. Céenghare Investor Services LLC (the
“Agent”) is the administrator of the DRIP. Sharesghased under the DRIP are held in safekeepirtdygent until the stockholder
terminates his/her participation in the DRIP. ThgeAt also acts as transfer agent and registrdhéo€ompany’s common stock.

12. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

At December 31, 2007, the Company had two stockdaempensation plans, which are described belbe.Gompany accounts for the fair
value of its grants under those plans in accordanitteSFAS No.123(R). The compensation cost chaggainst income for those plans was
$131 thousand, $93 thousand, and $183 thousargd@, 2006 and 2005, respectively, included in48as and Employee Benefits” in the
Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income. Altlsbption expense is amortized on a straightiiasis over the expected vesting term. In
addition, expense for director options was recagphio reflect $0, $0 and $71 thousand in 2007, 20052005,
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respectively, as part of “Other” expense in the @any’s Consolidated Statements of Income. Thereantag benefit for the directors’ options
of $28 thousand for 2005. The net compensationregsirded for the directors’ options was $43 thadgar 2005.

Fixed Stock Option Plan

Under the Company’s 1999 Employee Stock Optionlaomdy-Term Incentive Plan, as amended (the “Optilam’®, the Company may grant
options or restricted stock to officers, directansl key employees for up to 289,406 shares of camstuxk (as adjusted for stock dividends).
Under the Option Plan, the exercise price of egitloo is not to be less than 100% of the marketepof the Company’s stock on the date of
grant and an option’s maximum term is ten yearg Chmpany normally issues shares out of its trgefeurany options exercised. The options
have vesting schedules from 1 1/2 years througka®sy At December 31, 2007, there were a totaD8f1210 shares available for grant under
the Option Plan. All share and per share amourttsimihis note have been adjusted retroactivehefiect the effect of stock dividends,
including the number and exercise price of shanbgest to option under the terms of the Option Plan

The fair value of each option grant is estimatedhendate of grant using the Black-Scholes optinaipg model with the following weighted-
average assumptions used for grants in 2005; didigéld of 2.89%; expected volatility (based ostaiical data) of 20.06%; risk-free interest
rate of 4.24%; and expected life of 6.53. The wiEdlaverage fair value of options granted duriregytkar were $4.63 per share in 2005. The
Company used historical volatility calculated usdaily closing prices for its common stock overipés that match the expected term of the
option granted to estimate the expected volatititythe grant made in 2005. The risk-free interagt assumption was based upon U.S.
Treasury yields appropriate for the expected tefrithe@ Company’s stock options based upon the degeamt. The expected term of the stock
options granted was based upon the options expeettihg schedule and historical exercise pattdins.expected dividend yield was based
upon the Company’s recent history of paying diviierand the expectation of paying dividends inftiheseeable future. No options were
granted in 2006 or 2007. Future compensation ogetaed to be expensed over the weighted averag&imang contractual term for remaini
outstanding options is $89 thousand.

Stock options activity for 2007 was as follows:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Average contractual Intrinsic
Options Exercise Price Term (years) Value
Balance, December 31, 20 82,057 $21.3¢
Grantec — —
Exercisec — —
Expired (8,150 20.9¢
Forfeited (500 22.0(
Balance, December 31, 20 73,40" 21.3¢ 6.52 $0
Exercisable, December 31, 20 37,12« $21.77 6.34 $0

In 2007, there were 2,500 restricted shares graméddr the Plan. A summary of the status of the @y's restricted shares as of
December 31, 2007, and changes during the yeaddddeember 31, 2007, is presented below:

Weighted-
Average Grant
Shares Date Fair Value
Balance, December 31, 20
Granted 2,50( $19.77
Vested —
Forfeited —
Balance, December 31, 20 2,50( $19.77

As of December 31, 2007, there was $15 thousanatalfunrecognized compensation cost related toicesd share-based compensation
arrangements granted under the Plan. The cospeceed to be recognized over the first 4 montr200B. No shares vested during the year
ended December 31, 2007.
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During fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, the folt@nactivity occurred under the Company’s plans:

(in thousands 2007 2006 2005
Total intrinsic value of stock options exercis $— $— $—
Total fair value of stock awards vest $5 $18 $78

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

On February 18, 2003, the Board of Directors of@loenpany adopted the Evans Bancorp, Inc. Employeek$urchase Plan (the “Purchase
Plan™). As of December 31, 2007, there were 67 &%8es of common stock available to issue to Itstime employees, nearly all of whom
eligible to participate. Under the terms of thedhaise Plan, employees can choose each year tapdawel 5% of their annual base earnings
withheld to purchase the Company’s common stock. Company grants options on January 1 and Julyeadf year during the term of the
Purchase Plan. The purchase price of the stock%s & the lower of its price on the grant datehar éxercise date. During fiscal 2007,
approximately 43% of eligible employees participkitethe Purchase Plan. Under the Purchase PluGdmpany issued 11,137 and 10,873
shares to employees in 2007 and 2006, respecti@elynpensation cost is recognized for the fair valune employees; purchase rights, which
was estimated using the Black-Scholes model witHdHowing assumptions for 2007, 2006 and 2008peetively: dividend yield of 3.46%,
3.08% and 2.79%; expected life of six months; etgrbeolatility of 15.13%, 20.84% and 22.84%; riskd interest rates of 5.06%, 4.73% and
3.04%. The weighed average fair value of thosehasge rights granted in 2007, 2006 and 2005 was8$$623 and $6.82 per share,
respectively. The compensation cost that has blegrged against income for the Purchase Plan wath®&3and, $63 thousand and $70
thousand for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

13. INCOME TAXES

The components of the provision for income taxeseves follows:

2007 2006 2005
(in thousand:
Income taxes currently payat $ 1,19t $ 2,13« $ 1,86:¢
Deferred tax benef (144) (297) (102)
Net provision $ 1,057 $ 1,84 $ 1,761

The Company’s provision for income taxes diffemnfrthe amounts computed by applying the Federahirctax statutory rates to income
before income taxes. A reconciliation of the diffieces is as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Amount Percen Amount Percen Amount Percen
(Dollars in thousands

Tax provision at statutory ra $ 1,502 34% $ 2,301 34% $ 2,237 34%
Decrease in taxes resulting fro

Tax-exempt incomi (53¢) (12 (602) 9 (722) (11)

Tax-exempt insurance procee — — — — (32 @
State taxes, net of federal ben 92 2 162 3 184 3
Other items, ne (5 — (18) (1) 94 2
Provision for income taxe $ 1,051 24% $ 1,848 27% $ 1,761 27%
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At December 31, 2007 and 2006 the components af¢hdeferred tax asset were as follows:

2007 2006
(in thousands

Deferred tax asset

Pension premium $ 1,20« $ 1,43
Allowance for loan losse 1,64¢ 1,337
Net unrealized losses on securit — 75¢
Deferred compensatic 74¢ 644
Stock options grante 82 83
Leases 8C 67
Gross deferred tax ass: $ 3,75¢ $ 4,321
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 84c¢ $ 65¢
Prepaid expense 48( 42C
Net unrealized gains on securit 284 —
Mortgage servicing ass 60 66
Gross deferred tax liabilitie $ 1,67: $ 1,14¢
Net deferred tax ass $ 2,08t $ 3,17¢

The net deferred tax asset at December 31, 2002@0®lis included in “other assets” in the accomnypanConsolidated Balance Sheets.

In assessing the realizability of the deferredassets, management considers whether it is maly ikan not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. The wtarealization of deferred tax assets is depengeon the generation of future taxable income
during the periods in which those temporary diffees become deductible. Management considers lieelsied reversal of deferred tax
liabilities, availability of operating loss carnatks, projected future taxable income and tax pranstrategies in making this assessment.
Based upon the level of historical taxable incothe,opportunity for net operating loss carry-baeks] projections for future taxable income
over the periods which deferred tax assets arediétk; management believes it is more likely thahthe Company will generate sufficient
taxable income to realize the benefits of theseidigtle differences at December 31, 2007.

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank has entered into loan transactions wittaitedirectors, significant shareholders and thffifiates (related parties) in the ordinary
course of its business. The aggregate amount n§lasuch related parties on December 31, 200B&.&smillion and $4.5 million at 2006.
During 2007, there were $3.2 million of advanced aew loans to such related parties, and repaynaemtsinted to $2.1 million. Terms of
these loans have prevailing market pricing thatld/de offered to a similar customer base.

15. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements do not refi@ious commitments and contingent liabilitiesietharise in the normal course of
business and which involve elements of credit risterest rate risk and liquidity risk. These cormmeénts and contingent liabilities are
commitments to extend credit and standby lettexgedit. A summary of the Bank’s commitments andticgent liabilities at December 31,
2007 and 2006 is as follows:

2007 2006
(in thousands
Commitments to extend cre! $63,31¢ $ 65,55¢
Standby letters of crec 2,62¢ 2,51¢
Total $65,94: $68,07:
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Commitments to extend credit and standby lettexgedit all include exposure to some credit losthnevent of non-performance of the
customer. The Bank’s credit policies and procedfoesredit commitments and financial guaranteesthe same as those for extensions of
credit that are recorded on the Consolidated Bal&@teets. Because these instruments have fixeditpatates, and because they may expire
without being drawn upon, they do not necessaeipresent cash requirements to the Bank. The Bamkdtancurred any losses on its
commitments during the past three years.

The Company has entered into contracts with thémtigs, which contracts include indemnificationudas. Examples of such contracts include
contracts with third party service providers, bnskand dealers, correspondent banks, purchasegsidéntial mortgages. Additionally, the
Company has bylaws, policies and agreements unkiehvit indemnifies its officers and directors frdiability for certain events or
occurrences while the directors or officers areyere, serving at the Company’s request in suchatgs. The Company indemnifies its
officers and directors to the fullest extent alloMzy law. The maximum potential amount of futurgrpants that the Company could be
required to make under these indemnification piowssis unlimited, but would be affected by allensint defenses to such claims, as well as
directors’ and officersfiability insurance maintained by the Company. Da¢he nature of these indemnification provisidhis not possible t
quantify the aggregate exposure to the Companytirmgirom them.

The Company leases certain offices, land and ecgripnnder long-term operating leases. The aggregaienum annual rental commitments
under these leases total approximately $526 thaLisa?008; $507 thousand in 2009; $391 thousaraDi0; $352 thousand in 2011; $370
thousand in 2012; and $3.8 million thereafter. Tdmgal expense under operating leases containthe i@ompanys Consolidated Statements
Income included $597 thousand, $528 thousand a8 Bwusand in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

16. CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT

All of the Bank’s loans, commitments and standhtels of credit have been granted to customerseérBank’s market area. Investments in
state and municipal securities also involve govesntal entities within the Bank’market area, which is Western New York. The cotre&on:
of credit by type of loan are set forth in Noté'l3pans, Net.” The distribution of commitments taexd credit approximates the distribution of
loans outstanding. Standby letters of credit weamtgd primarily to commercial borrowers. The Basaka matter of policy, does not extend
credit to any single borrower or group in exces&5%o of capital.

17. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company is comprised of two primary businegsmsats: banking and insurance agency activities.réportable segments are separately
managed and their performance is evaluated basadtdncome. The banking business segment inclodéscommercial and consumer
banking services, including a wide array of lendamgl depository services. The banking business eegafso includes direct financing leas

of commercial small-ticket general business equimiriehe insurance agency segment includes theitgesiof selling various premium-based
insurance policies on a commission basis, includimginess and personal insurance, surety bondsnesagement, life, disability and long-
term care coverage, as well as providing claimesinfjg services to various insurance companieffedng non-deposit investment products,
such as annuities and mutual funds. All sourcesegfent specific revenues and expenses attribvteanagement’s definition of net income.
Revenues from transactions between the two segraemtsot significant. The accounting policies & fegments are the same as those
described in Note 1.
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The following table sets forth information regamlithese segments for the years ended Decembe®@1, 2006 and 2005.

Net interest income (expens
Provision for loan and lease los:

Net interest income (expense) after provision danl losse

Non-interest incom:
Insurance services and fe
Net loss on sales of securiti
Nor-interest expens

Income before income tax
Income taxe:

Net income

Net interest income (expens
Provision for loan and lease los:

Net interest income (expense) after provision éaml losse
Nor-interest income

Insurance services and fe

Net gain on sales of securiti

Nor-interest expens

Income before income tax
Income taxe:

Net income

2007
Banking Insurance Agenc)
Activities Activities Total
(in thousands
$17,11¢ $ (44%) 16,67¢
1,915 — 1,91
15,201 (44%) 14,75¢
4,59:¢ — 4,59:¢
— 6,54¢ 6,54¢
(2,299 (2,299
14,49¢ 4,68¢ 19,18
2,99¢ 1,42( 4,41¢
483 56¢ 1,051
$ 2,51¢ $ 852 $ 3,36¢
2006
Banking Insurance Agenc)
Activities Activities Total
(in thousands
$15,32: $ (474 14,84’
1,12¢ — 1,12¢
14,19: (474) 13,71¢
4,167 — 4,167
— 6,46¢ 6,46¢
14C — 14C
13,15¢ 4,574 17,72¢
5,34¢ 1,41¢ 6,76¢
1,27¢ 567 1,84:
$ 4,07( $ 851 $ 4,921
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2005
Banking Insurance Agenc)
Activities Activities Total
(in thousands

Net interest income (expens $14,77¢ $ (399 14,377
Provision for loan and lease los: 76¢ — 76¢
Net interest income (expense) after provision éaml losse 14,00 (399 13,60¢
Non-interest income 3,892 — 3,892
Insurance services and fe — 6,37 6,371
Net gain on sales of securiti 107 — 107
Non-interest expens 12,78¢ 4,62( 17,40
Income before income tax 5,22: 1,35¢ 6,58(
Income taxe: 1,21¢ 54¢ 1,761
Net income $ 4,00< $ 81t $ 4,81¢

December 31, 20C December 31, 20C
(in thousands

Identifiable Assets, Nel

Banking activities $ 430,18 $ 461,48t
Insurance agency activiti 12,54¢ 12,40¢
Consolidated Total Asse $ 442,72¢ $ 473,89«

18. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following methods and assumptions were usedtimate the fair value of each class of finanicistruments for which it is practicable to
estimate that value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents For these short-term instruments, the carryinguamis a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Interest Bearing Deposits at Other Banks The carrying amount of Interest Bearing Depaait®©ther Banks approximates fair value due to
their short-term nature.

Securities.For securities, fair value equals quoted marketepiif available. If a quoted market price is neitable, fair value is estimated
using quoted market prices for similar securiti®se Note 2, “Securities” for further informatiomgaeding unrealized gains and losses in the
securities portfolio.

Loans Receivable The fair value of fixed rate loans is estimatgdiiscounting the future cash flows using the autrrates at which similar
loans would be made to borrowers with similar drealings and for the same remaining maturities phéhe appropriate portion of the
allowance for loan losses. For variable rate lo#tmescarrying amount is a reasonable estimateiofddue.

Deposits. The fair value of demand deposits, NOW accouMtsi-vest and regular savings accounts is the ampayable on demand at the
reporting date. The fair value of time depositesimated using the rates currently offered forodé@p of similar remaining maturities.
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Borrowed Funds. The fair value of the short-term portion of otherdewed funds approximates its carrying value. ftievalue of the long-
term portion of other borrowed funds is estimatsithg a discounted cash flow analysis based on @mep@ny’s current incremental borrowing
rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements.

Junior Subordinated Debentures. The carrying amount of Junior Subordinated Delr@stis a reasonable estimate of fair value dleeto
fact that they bear a floating interest rate thijists on a quarterly basis.

Commitments to extend credit and standby letters o€redit . As described in Note 15 “Contingent Liabilities @addmmitments,” the
Company was a party to financial instruments witibalance sheet risk at December 31, 2007 and.2B0éh financial instruments consist of
commitments to extend permanent financing andrietiecredit. If the options are exercised by thespective borrowers, these financial
instruments will become interest-earning asseth@fCompany. If the options expire, the Companginstany fees paid by the counterparty in
order to obtain the commitment or guarantee. Thevédue of commitments is estimated based upos éeerently charged to enter into similar
agreements, taking into account the remaining terfntise agreements and the present creditworthiofetbee counterparties. For fixed-rate
commitments, the fair value estimation takes imdnsideration an interest rate risk factor. The ¥alue of guarantees and letters of credit is
based on fees currently charged for similar agredsndhe fair value of these off-balance sheetstabDecember 31, 2007 and 2006
approximates the recorded amounts of the relatsl fehich are not considered material.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the estimated &ires of the company’s financial instruments werééows:

2007 2006
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(in thousands (in thousands
Financial asset:
Cash and cash equivale $ 12,60/ $ 12,60/ $ 12,59: $ 12,59:
Securities $ 72,41( $ 72,41( $137,73( $137,73(
Loans and leases, r $319,55¢ $320,00¢ $285,36° $281,52(
Financial liabilities:
Deposits $325,82¢ $327,00¢ $355,74¢ $356,57¢
Borrowed funds and securities sold under agreentemepurchas $ 51,90¢ $ 51,55¢ $ 58,18t $ 57,09:
Junior Subordinated Debentul $ 11,33( $ 11,33( $ 11,33( $ 11,33(

19. REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company is subject to the dividend restrictiseisforth by the FRB and the OCC. Under suchiatistns, the Company may not, without
the prior approval of the FRB and the OCC, dedttivelends in excess of the sum of the current weaarnings (as defined in FRB regulatic
plus the retained earnings (as defined in FRB egguis) from the prior two years.

Quantitative measures established by regulatiemsure capital adequacy require the Company totaiaiminimum amounts and ratios (set
forth in the table that follows) of total and Tietapital (as defined in FRB regulations) to riskighted assets (as defined in FRB regulations),
and of Tier | capital (as defined in FRB regulaipto average assets (as defined in FRB regulatidtenagement believes as of December 31,
2007 and 2006, that the Company and the Bank rheapital adequacy requirements to which it is eabj

The most recent notification from its regulatortegarized the Company and the Bank as well capédlunder the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action. To be categorized as eagtitalized, the Company and the Bank must maintahimum total risk-based, Tier I risk-
based and Tier | leverage ratios as set forthdrtable. There are no conditions or events sirgerthtification that management believes have
changed the Company’s or Bank’s category rating.
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The Company’s and the Bank’s actual capital amoandsratios were as follows:

2007

(dollars in thousand:

Minimum for Capital

Minimum to be Well
Capitalized Under
Prompt Corrective

Company Bank Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Total Risl-Based Capital (t

Risk Weighted Asset: $48,45! 14.2%  $43,28¢ 12.¢%  $27,04: 8.0%  $33,80: 10.(%
Tier | Capital (to Risk

Weighted Assets $44,22¢ 13.1%  $39,10! 11.7%  $13,52: 4.0%  $20,28! 6.C%
Tier | Capital (to Averag

Assets) $44,22: 10.C%  $39,10¢ 9.0%  $18,03¢ 4.0% $22,54 5.C%

2006

(dollars in thousand:

Minimum for Capital

Minimum to be Well
Capitalized Under
Prompt Corrective

Company Bank Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Total Risl-Based Capital (t

Risk Weighted Asset: $44,22¢ 14.(%  $41,57¢ 13.2%  $25,34! 8.0%  $31,67¢ 10.(%
Tier | Capital (to Risk

Weighted Assets $40,48¢ 12.€%  $37,84: 12.(%  $12,67: 4.0%  $19,00¢ 6.C%
Tier | Capital (to Average

Assets) $40,48¢ 8.9% $37,84: 8.4%  $18,69: 4.0%  $23,36¢ 5.C%

20. PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Parent company (Evans Bancorp, Inc.) only condefisadcial information is as follows:

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

Cash
Other equity securitie
Investment in subsidiarie

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
LIABILITIES:

Junior subordinated debentu
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

STOCKHOLDER¢ EQUITY
Total Stockholder Equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity
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2007 2006
(in thousands

52¢ $ 84

33C 33C
53,79( 50,45¢
$54,64: $50,87¢
$11,33( $11,33(
10 —
11,34( 11,33(
$43,30¢ $39,54!
$54,64: $50,87¢
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Dividends from subsidiarie
Expense:

Income before equity in undistributed earningsulfsdiaries

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidial

Net income

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating Activities
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigesl by operating activitie:

Change in other equity securiti
Undistributed earnings of subsidiar

Net cash provided by operating activit

Investing Activities:
Net cash used by investing activit

Financing Activities:
Cash dividends paid, n
Purchase of Treasury sto
Net cash used in financial activiti
Net increase (decrease) in ci

Cash beginning of ye:

Cash ending of ye:
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2007 2006 2005
(in thousands
$ 4,20t $ 3,60( $ 2,94(
(1,429 (1,149 (83¢€)
2,77¢ 2,45¢€ 2,104
592 2,46 2,71°F
$ 3,36¢ $ 4,921 $ 4,81¢
Year Ended
2007 2006 2005
(in thousands
$ 3,36¢ $ 4,921 $ 4,81¢
(592) (2,465 (2,715
2,77¢ 2,45¢ 2,10¢
(1,957) (1,855 (1,769
(389 (56%) (460
(2,337) (2,420) (2,229
43¢ 36 (120
84 48 16€
$ 52¢ $ 84 $ 48
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21. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA — UNAUDITED

(in thousands, except per share date 4t Quarter 3rd Quarter 2 nd Quarter 1stQuarter

2007
Interest incomt $ 7,201 $ 7,09/ $  7,40( $ 7,14:
Interest expens 2,82¢ 2,85¢€ 3,20¢ 3,272
Net interest incom 4,372 4,23¢ 4,19¢ 3,87(
Net income 80t 1,41¢ (239 1,28i
Earnings per share ba: 0.2¢ 0.5z (0.05) 0.47
Earnings per share dilutt 0.2¢ 0.52 (0.05) 0.47

2006
Interest incomt $ 6,98 $ 6,82¢ $ 6,51¢ $ 6,214
Interest expens 3,13¢ 3,10( 2,88¢ 2,57(
Net interest incom 3,84t 3,72¢ 3,63( 3,64¢
Net income 1,162 1,282 1,071 1,40¢
Earnings per share ba: 0.4z 0.47 0.3¢ 0.5Z
Earnings per share dilutt 0.43 0.47 0.3¢ 0.52

Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES
Not applicable

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedure:. Based upon their evaluation of the effectiversddhe Compan’s disclosure controls at
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a)Hnd 15d-15(e)), David J. Nasca, President dnef Executive Officer (principal
executive officer), and Gary A. Kajtoch, Treasymincipal financial officer) concluded that the @pany’s disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of December 31, 2

(b) Managemen’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting . Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting appears at “Item 8. Fimarstatements and Supplementary Financial DatdhisfReport on Form 185 and is
incorporated herein by reference in response folteim 9A.

(c) Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accourihg Firm . The effectiveness of the Comp{’s internal control over financii
reporting as of December 31, 2007 has been auoit&PMG LLP, an independent registered public aotiog firm, as stated in their
report, which appears in the “Report of Independagistered Public Accounting Firm” at page 45efit8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Financial D’ of this Report on Form -K, and is incorporated herein by reference in raspdo this Item 94

(d) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting . No changes in the Company’s internal control dwencial reporting were
identified in the fiscal quarter ended December22}7 that have materially affected, or are redsigrikely to materially affect, the
Compan’s internal control over financial reportir

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not Applicable
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PART Il

Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information called for by this item is incorpted herein by reference to the material undecdipions, “Information Regarding Directors,
Director Nominees and Executive Officers” and “S&ttl6(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Complidnaed to the discussion of director
nominees and the Audit Committee under the cagBaard of Director Committees” in the Company'’s idéfve proxy statement relating to
its 2007 annual meeting of shareholders to be tieldpril 24, 2008 (the “Proxy Statement”).

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information called for by this item is incorpted herein by reference to the material undecéipions, “Director Compensation,”
Executive Compensation,” “Compensation Committeerlacks and Insider Participation” and “CompermatCommittee Reporth the Proxy
Statement.

The material incorporated herein by reference ¢ontlaterial under the caption, “Compensation ConemiRepot” in the Proxy Statement shall
be deemed furnished, and not filed, in this ReporForm 10-K and shall not be deemed incorporayecterence into any filing under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Seesriikxchange Act of 1934, as amended, as a reghiisdiirnishing, except to the extent that
the Company specifically incorporates it by refern

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information called for by this item as to bédiel ownership is incorporated herein by referetucthe material under the captior®eturity
Ownership of Management and Certain Beneficial Qwfién the Proxy Statement.

Equity Compensation PlansAll equity compensation plans were approved byafhalders. Shown below is certain information as of
December 31, 2007 concerning the shares of the @oy'gopcommon stock that may be issued under egigtijuity compensation plans.

Number of Weighted- Number of
securities to average securities
be issued exercise remaining
upon exercise price of available for
of outstanding outstanding future issuance
options options under the plans
Equity Comensation Plan Approved by Security Holdes (#) ($) (#) (1)
Evans Bancorp, Inc. 1999 Employee Stock Optionlamt-Term Incentive Plal 73,401 21.3¢ 209,14(
Evans Bancorp, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase — — 67,85:

(1) This column excludes shares reflected undecdhenn “Number of Securities to be issued uporr@ge of outstanding options.”

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information called for by this item is incorpted herein by reference to the material undecéipions, “Information Regarding Directors,
Director Nominees and Executive Officers” and “Tgsactions with Related Persons” in the Proxy Statgme

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information called for by this item is incorpted herein by reference to the material undec#iption, “Independent Auditorsfi the Prox:
Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
The following documents are filed as a part of fRéport on Form 10-K:

1.

3.

Financial statements: The following audited corgaitd financial statements and notes thereto anch#tterial under the captis
“Reports of Independent Registered Public Accognkitm” on pages 44 and 45 in Part Il, Item 8.lo§ tReport on Form 10-K are
incorporated herein by referen:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiimm (internal control over financial reportin
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimm (consolidated financial statements)
Consolidated Balance Sheets — December 31, 2002G0%@I

Consolidated Statements of Income — Years Ende@mber 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity ears Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow — Years Efsegmber 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

All other financial statement schedules arétach because they are not applicable or the reduirformation is included in the
Compan’s Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes thémetuded in Part II, Item 8. of this Report onrfol(-K.

Exhibits

Exhibit No. Exhibit Descriptior

3.1

3.11

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4*

10.5%

Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (incorgted by reference to Exhibit 3a of the Com|'s Registration Statement
Form ¢-4 (Registration No. :-25321), as filed on November 7, 198

Certificate of Amendment to the Compi’s Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated byerefince to Exhibit 3.3 of tr
Compan’s Form 1-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 1997jled bn May 14, 1997

Bylaws of the Company (incorporated by referencExbibit 3.2.1 of the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on
December 26, 2007

Indenture between the Company, as Issuer, and Wjtmin Trust Company, as Trustee, dated as of Octigt004 (incorporate
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s FAiGrQ for the fiscal quarter ended September 304 2&¢ filed on
November 4, 2004

Form of Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Debt 8cdue 2034 (incorporated by reference to Exhiffit3 of the Company’s
Form 1(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2884iJed on November 4, 200

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust of E2aysital Trust |, dated as of October 1, 2004 (ipooated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 of the Compar's Form 1-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2894iJed on November 4, 200«

Guarantee Agreement of the Company, dated as ab®cil, 2004 (incorporated by reference to ExHibBib of the Compar's
Form 1(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2884iJed on November 4, 200

Evans Bancorp Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incatgmbby reference to Exhibit 4.7 of the Com[’s Registration Stateme
on Form &8 (Registration No. 3:-106655, as filed on June 30, 20C

Evans Bancorp, Inc. 1999 Stock Option and L-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencexbilit 4.2 of the
Compan’s Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003iled 6n March 18, 2004

Evans Bancorp, Inc. Dividend Reinvestment Plararasnded (incorporated by reference to the Con’s Registratior
Statement on Form-3D (Registration No. 3:-123678, as filed on March 30, 200

Employment Agreement between Evans National Baakvdilliam R. Glass (incorporated by reference tdibik 10.3 of the
Compan’s Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997jled &én March 30, 1998

Specimen 1984 Director Deferred Compensation Agezertincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5h&f Compan’s
Form 10 (Registration No-18539), as filed on April 30, 199(
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Exhibit No. Exhibit Descriptior

10.6* Specimen 1989 Director Deferred Compensation Agesgrfincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6haf Compan’'s
Form 10 (Registration No-18539), as filed on April 30, 199(

10.7* Summary of Provisions of Director Deferred CompéinsaAgreements (incorporated by reference to BxAi.7 of the
Compan’s Form 10 (Registration No-18539), as filed on April 30, 199(

10.8* Employment Agreement between ENB Insurance Ageimcy,and Robert Miller (incorporated by referenodeihibit 10.1 of th
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K, as filed on February 26, 200°

10.9* Amendment to Annual Bonus Formula for Robert Millieicorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of @@mpan’s Current
Report on Form-K, as filed on February 25, 200t

10.10* Employment Agreement among Evans Bancorp, Inc.n&Wational Bank and David J. Nasca dated as oé@ber 1, 200!
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to therpanys Current Report on Forn-K, as filed on December 7, 2001

10.11* Evans National Bank Executive Life Insurance Plandrporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to tlenPany’s Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003 as fileslarch 18, 2004)

10.12* First Amendment to the Evans National Bank Exeeutiife Insurance Plan (incorporated by referencéxioibit 10.3 of the
Compan’s Form 1-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2007 led éin August 14, 2007

10.13* Evans National Bank Supplemental Executive Retirgr®éan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1ad the Company’s
Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003jled 6n March 18, 2004

10.14* Evans National Bank Deferred Compensation Pla®fficers and Directors (incorporated by refererc&xhibit 10.12 to the
Compan’s Form 1K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003iled &6n March 18, 2004

10.15* Form of Supplemental Executive Retirement ParticippAgreement incorporated by reference to ExHiBitl5 of the
Compan’s Form 1K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004iled &6n March 28, 2005

10.16* Form of Deferred Compensation Participatory Agresnigcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 & €ompany’s Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004iled 6n March 28, 2005

10.17* Form of Executive Life Insurance S|-Dollar Endorsement Participatory Agreement incoaped by reference to Exhibit 10.
of the Compan’s Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004iled 6n March 28, 2005

10.18* Employment Agreement between Evans National Baak@ary A. Kajtoch (incorporated by reference to iBithL 0.1 of the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K, as filed on April 23, 2007

10.19* Restricted Stock Agreement between Evans Bancoepahd David J. Nasca (incorporated by refereadexhibit 10.2 of the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K as filed on April 23, 2007

10.20* Letter Agreement Regarding Insurance Coveragedioes Tilley (incorporated by reference to Exhilditdlof the Compar’s
Form 1(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2007 led éin August 14, 2007

211 Subsidiaries of the Company (incorporated by refeeeo Exhibit 10.21 of the Compé's Form 1i-K for the fiscal year ende
December 31, 2004, as filed March 28, 201

23.1 Independent Registered Public Accounting I's Consent from KPMG LLP (filed herewitt

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuit@o Rule 13-14(a) and 15-14(a), as adopted pursuant to section 302 @
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursutato Rule 13-14(a) and 15-14(a), as adopted pursuant to section 302 ¢
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursutdo 18 USC Section 1350 Chapter 63 of Title18itéthStates Code, i
adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursatato 18 USC Section 1350 Chapter 63 of Title18itéthStates Code, i

adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

*  Indicates a management contract or compensatony ptaarrangement
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this Annual Repor
Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undgrsd, thereunto duly authorized:

EVANS BANCORP, INC.

By: /s/ David J. Nasc
David J. Nasce
President and Chief Executive Offic
Date: March 21, 200

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgéa Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on behalf of 1
registrant and in the capacities and on the dathsdted:

Signature Title Date
President and Chief Executi
Officer/Director

/s/ David J. Nasc (Principal Executive Officel March 21, 200¢
David J. Nasci
/s! Gary A. Kajtoch Treasurer (Principal Financial Officer) March 21, 2008

Gary A. Kajtoch

/s/ John B. Connerton Principal Accounting Officer March 21, 2008
John B. Connerto

/s/ Phillip Brothmar Chairman of the Board/Directc March 21, 200¢
Phillip Brothman

/s/ Thomas H. Waring, Jr. Vice Chairman of the Board/Director March 21, 2008
Thomas H. Waring, J

/s/ James E. Biddle, . Director March 21, 200¢
James E. Biddle, J

/s/ Kenneth C. Kirst Director March 21, 2008
Kenneth C. Kirs

/s/ Mary Catherine Militellc Director March 21, 200¢
Mary Catherine Militellc

/s/ Robert G. Miller, Jr. Director March 21, 2008
Robert G. Miller, Jr

/s/ John R. ¢ Brien Director March 21, 200¢
John R. CBrien

/s/ David M. Taylot Director March 21, 200¢
David M. Taylor

/sl James Tilley Director March 21, 2008
James Tilley

/s/ Nancy W. Wart Director March 21, 200¢

Nancy W. Ware
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Exhibit Descriptior

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (incorated by reference to Exhibit 3a of the Com(’'s Registration Statement
Form ¢-4 (Registration No. -25321), as filed on November 7, 198

3.1.1 Certificate of Amendment to the Compi’s Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated byerefnce to Exhibit 3.3 of tF
Compan’s Form 1-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 1997jlad bn May 14, 1997

3.2 Bylaws of the Company (incorporated by referencExbibit 3.2.1 of the Company’s Current Report amrf 8-K filed on
December 26, 2007

4.1 Indenture between the Company, as Issuer, and Wjtmin Trust Company, as Trustee, dated as of Octigt004 (incorporate
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s FA®rQ for the fiscal quarter ended September 304286 filed on
November 4, 2004

4.2 Form of Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Debt 8cdue 2034 (incorporated by reference to Exhilfit3 of the Compar's
Form 1(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2884iJed on November 4, 200«

4.3 Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust of Exzaqsital Trust I, dated as of October 1, 2004 (ipooated by reference
Exhibit 10.4 of the Compar's Form 1-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2894iJed on November 4, 200«

4.4 Guarantee Agreement of the Company, dated as ab®ctl, 2004 (incorporated by reference to ExHiBib of the Compar's
Form 1(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2884iJed on November 4, 200

10.1 Evans Bancorp Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incatgubby reference to Exhibit 4.7 of the Comy’s Registration Stateme
on Form &8 (Registration No. 3:-106655, as filed on June 30, 20C

10.2 Evans Bancorp, Inc. 1999 Stock Option and L-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencexhilit 4.2 of the
Compan’s Registration Annual Report on Formr-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003iled 6n March 18, 2004

10.3 Evans Bancorp, Inc. Dividend Reinvestment Plararasnded (incorporated by reference to the Compd®gigstration
Statement on Form-3D (Registration No. 33123678, as filed on March 30, 200

10.4* Employment Agreement between Evans National Baakvdilliam R. Glass (incorporated by reference tdiik 10.3 of the
Compan’s Form 1K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997iled &6n March 30, 1998

10.5* Specimen 1984 Director Deferred Compensation Agezertincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5haf Company’s
Form 10 (Registration No-18539), as filed on April 30, 199(

10.6* Specimen 1989 Director Deferred Compensation Agezertincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6haf Company’s
Form 10 (Registration No-18539), as filed on April 30, 199(

10.7* Summary of Provisions of Director Deferred CompéinsaAgreements (incorporated by reference to Exhid.7 of the
Compan’s Form 10 (Registration No-18539), as filed on April 30, 199(

10.8* Employment Agreement between ENB Insurance Agelmcy,and Robert Miller (incorporated by referengeekhibit 10.1 of th
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K, as filed on February 26, 200°

10.9* Amendment to Annual Bonus Formula for Robert Millercorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of @@mpan’s Current
Report on Form-K, as filed on February 25, 200t

10.10* Employment Agreement among Evans Bancorp, Inc.n&Wational Bank and David J. Nasca dated as oéDber 1, 200!
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thmrpanys Current Report on Forn-K, as filed on December 7, 2001

10.11* Evans National Bank Executive Life Insurance Plandrporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to tleenpanys Form 1K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003 as fileslarch 18, 2004)

10.12* First Amendment to the Evans National Bank Exeeutiife Insurance Plan (incorporated by referendéxtoibit 10.3 of the
Compan’s Form 1-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2007 led fin August 14, 2007

10.13* Evans National Bank Supplemental Executive RetirdrRéan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1add the Compar’'s

Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003iled 6n March 18, 2004
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Exhibit No. Exhibit Descriptior

10.14* Evans National Bank Deferred Compensation Pla®fficers and Directors (incorporated by referera&xhibit 10.12 to thi
Compan’s Form 1K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003jled é6n March 18, 2004

10.15* Form of Supplemental Executive Retirement ParticipaAgreement incorporated by reference to ExHibitl5 of the
Compan’s Form 1K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004iled &6n March 28, 2005

10.16* Form of Deferred Compensation Participatory Agreeinnecorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 & @ompan’s Form 1
K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004iled 6n March 28, 2005

10.17* Form of Executive Life Insurance Sj-Dollar Endorsement Participatory Agreement incoaped by reference to Exhibit 10.
of the Compan’s Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004iled 6n March 28, 2005

10.18* Employment Agreement between Evans National BankGery A. Kajtoch (incorporated by reference to iBkHL0.1 of the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K, as filed on April 23, 2007

10.19* Restricted Stock Agreement between Evans Bancoepahd David J. Nasca (incorporated by refereadexhibit 10.2 of the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K as filed on April 23, 2007

10.20* Letter Agreement Regarding Insurance Coveragedimes Tilley (incorporated by reference to Exhilfit4lof the Company’s
Form 1(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2007 led in August 14, 2007

211 Subsidiaries of the Company (incorporated by refegeo Exhibit 10.21 of the Company’s Form 10-K thoe fiscal year ended
December 31, 2004, as filed March 28, 201

23.1 Independent Registered Public Accounting I's Consent from KPMG LLP (filed herewitt

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursutt@o Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adoptedipatgo section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursutato Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adoptedipatgo section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursutdo 18 USC Section 1350 Chapter 63 of Title18itéthStates Code, as
adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursatato 18 USC Section 1350 Chapter 63 of Title18itéthStates Code, as

adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

*  Indicates a management contract or compensatony ptaarrangement
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Evans Bancorp, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrRbgistration Statements (No. 333-106655 and N8-128679) on Form S-8 and (No. 333-
123678 and No. 333-34347) on Forn8B-of Evans Bancorp, Inc. of our reports dated Malr8, 2008, with respect to the consolidated ba
sheets of Evans Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiarie$§ Becember 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related &dated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each efybars in the thregear period ended December 31, 2007, and assesefrtbeteffectivenes

of internal control over financial reporting asicember 31, 2007, which reports appear in the mbee 31, 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-
K of Evans Bancorp, Inc.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrste&dements, Evans Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiadepted Securities and Exchange
Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108pnsidering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatemevtien Quantifying Misstatements in
Current Year Financial Statemerds of January 1, 2006 and Statement of Financiebéating Standards No. 15Bmployers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretiremeangas of December 31, 2006.

/s KPMG LLP
KPMG LLP
Buffalo, New York
March 18, 200¢
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Exhibit 31.1
Certification
I, David J. Nasca, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fEvans Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or anditate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeker which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegos presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimlisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(H and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tbgistrant, including its consolidated subsidigrie made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglarting, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggatite reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygedeaccounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentindsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the itegi’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrantourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabmg that has materially affected, or is reasopéikély to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anltlve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theittemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisisaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 21, 2008

/s/ David J. Nasc

David J. Nasc:

President and Chief Executive Offi
(Principal Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2
Certification
I, Gary A. Kajtoch, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fEvans Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or anditate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeker which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegos presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimlisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(H and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tbgistrant, including its consolidated subsidigrie made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglarting, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggatite reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygedeaccounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentindsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the itegi’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrantourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabmg that has materially affected, or is reasopéikély to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anltlve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theittemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisisaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 21, 2008

/s/ Gary A. Kajtoct

Gary A. Kajtoch
Treasure
(Principal Financial Officer

88






Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE AND FINANCIAL  OFFICERS
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, David J. Nasca, the President and Chief Exeeuiifficer of Evans Bancorp, Inc., certify, pursutni8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2D02, that, to my knowledge: (1) the Annual RemdrEvans Bancorp, Inc. on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 fudlyplies with the requirements of Section 13(a)®(d}, as applicable, of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and (2) the information camgdiin such Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly prasein all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations oh&s Bancorp, Inc.

Date: March 21, 2008

By /s/ David J. Nasc

Name David J. Nasci

Title: President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE AND FINANCIAL  OFFICERS
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Gary A. Kajtoch, the Treasurer of Evans Bancdmp,, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13&9adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowleddgthe Annual Report of Evans Bancorp, Inc. omir@0-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2007 fully complies with the requiraiseof Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, ef $lecurities Exchange Act of 1934 and

(2) the information contained in such Annual Remort~orm 10-K fairly presents, in all material rests, the financial condition and results of
operations of Evans Bancorp, Inc.

Date: March 21, 2008

By /s/ Gary A. Kajtoct
Name Gary A. Kajtoch
Title: Treasure
(Principal Financial Officer
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